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FUREWORD

One of the definitions of history is:- The science of aealirn  systemat-
ically with the records whence information about nuuan action in tne pest is
derived,and sifting and co-ordinating the evidence which these records reveal.

In compiling this history of the Maynard Fire Department,I wouid first
like to acknowledge the co-operation of Chief George Whalen,in mexing &ll of
the existing records of the department available to me. Uther sources of
information,were tue complete tfiles of the annual town rsports in tae kaynard
Public Library. The files of the old Maynard News,Iirom 19UU to 194<. The riles
of the Concord Enterprise,in the Concord fublic Library,wnich carried ali of
the news items of the Maynard Enterprise. Records oi both the Concord and
Hudson fire departments;and the files of tne Hudson Daily Sun wnich carriea
Maynard news items going back to 1lsd4.

My own personal recollections go back to caiidhood @na cover wore wnen
the lest two thirds of the existance of the department., L[t vas also wy privilage
and pleasure to have served in the department with some of the nen who were
in the department irom it's earliiest days. den like John Wollerschied,Jonn Maley
and James Cheney,and to have lived in the old station on Nason bireet witn
Tony Collins and Bill Wuinn,and to have listened to some of their tales of
the pest.

No attempt was made to compile a roster of the calli iorce,as there are
very few records and these are ambiguous and conflicting. Even tie recoras of
the first orgenization meetings of the two companies do not coincide with those

of the board of engineers and the newspaper accounts difier from boti.
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Organization,Administration and Perscnnel

The first town meeting,whifn w&s held on April <7,1871,by accleamation,
elected three fire wardens,George R.Cuttihg,J.n.ﬂarriman and Williem Cullen. The
office of fire warden,often confused with forest warden,which did not exist
until 1908,was similar to that of fire ward,except that fire wards were appointed
by the selectmen. Few towns had fire werdens. Most towns hed fire waras if they
did not have a fire department. The duties of either,was to attempt to direct
any people at the scene of a fire,in the salvaging of goods and controlliing the
fire. The latter usually being futile,due to lack of eyuipment and organization.

The annual town meeting of 187<,voted $65.0uU for the purchuse ot ladders
for fire use. These ladders vere stored in & sned,owned by the mill,and located
on the site of the present post office. The laduers were kept chuined together
and padlocked to prevent their unautporized use. ;

At this time the mill had & voiunteer brigade of taneir workimen whose
primary purpose was the protection of the mill property. The mill haa pumps that
supplied river weter to their yarc hydrants. Although this miil brigade dia
respond to some fires outside the milli yard,there was l1ittle tnat they couid do
without a town water system or any kind of puuwping equipment. This arrangement
could hardly be called & fire department. It must be remembered,that even toaay,
there is no law that says a town must have a fire department,the laws are only
permissive legislation that allows a town to expend money Ior fire protection.

During tnese first years ol the town's existance &s a corporate oody, there
was continuous agitation to have a formally organized fire aepertuenty S0 at a
special town meeting held Januery 1,1890,it was voted to expen& ¥6,0uV for a

building and $<,000 for equipment tfor a fire department.



March 10,1890,it was voted in town meeting to establish & fire dspartment
under Chepter >5 of the Genersl Laws. This provided tuat the departuent would o€
governed by a board of iire engineers,appointea annually Dy Tue selecluen,wno
were empowered to appoint as many «s tweive engineers,vwho among taoeir nuuoers,
would elect & chief c¢ngineer,one or more assistent chiel cngineers and & clerk.
This law under which the department was orgenized,was enactea in 176l,unaer tae
colonial governuent and was intended to govern & purely voiunteer aepartuent.

The first board of engineers appointed,consistea oi: warren Peters,Davia
Henuerson,Julius Loewe,George W.Jordan and slired T.daynes. reters was electea
chicf'. Warren Peters was related by wmarraige to the Maynera I&éwlly ana nela e
executive position in the milljand until the station on Nason Street was
completed,the board of engineers held their meetings in tne mill ofiice.

March 19,1890,a hose company was organized &t « meeting neld in Cooperat-
ive Hall. The hose compeny consisted of Iifteen men. Oiricers elected were;
E.M.Johnson,foreman;D.4.Sawyer,assistent foreman;Thnomas Swecney,clers;i.h,
Gerlick,treasurer;James Clailin,steward;slex Mclniyre,nicnara fearmenter ua
Hugh W.McGrail,stending committee. Uther members electled were: U.h.brooks,
Peter Livilhan,George Dunn,C.Fred Canill,squilla Reynera,Jonn Dacey &anu
Charles Roberts.

April <9,1890,at & weeting in Cooperative Hall,& NOOK «nd laquer company
of twenty men was organized,with Levi Uneney,ioremen;Jonn Thnane,assistant
ioreman;wWarren Haynes,sscretary;william wciusiin,lreasurer;otner wenbers were:
Henry Ledgard,Jonn Lawton,P.J.Suilivan,sallie Martin,James uougniin,l.Murpny,
Jesse Sims,a.H.Heynes,slbert Ranacll,Daniel sane,killiam otarling,duga Mears,
Sem Harding,Joan Thompson,James R.3ent and Davia Sullivan.

A1l elections to membership in either company haa to be coniirmed py

tae board of engineers,who made the final appointments.
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The new hose wagon was deliverea may 3U,ls9U,end &s the station wes not

completed,it wes stored in & shed owned by the mill,located on the site ol ue
present Post Uffice. wWhen tne laaaer wagon wes deiiverea in hugust,the nose
wegon wes moved to & shed in the rear of tne Congregational Uhurcn ana tue
ladder wagon was put in it's place.

Shortly prior to the delivery of their apparztus,the hose COupany went 10
Hudson for a practice session with one of the Hudson hose coumpanies;in oruer to
familiarize themselves witn the eguipment and procedures. Alter potn oi tne
companies acquired their equipment,thcy held regular prectice sessions either cn
the Harrimen Laundry or the Acton Street Schoodl.

On October 3,13890,the S;ate Fire Insurance Commission witnessea a deumonst-
ration of the department throwing tfour streams oi weater over tae Glenaazle House
(Later known as the Maynard Hotei). They were satisiiea enougn with the periorm-
ance to give the town an insurance grading.

The new station on Nason Street was occupied on Janusry <9,.l89L &na in
April of this sume year the szme engineers were reappointed.

At town meeting it was voted to p&y the wen a s&aiary OI ten dollars per
sear. It was also voted To appropriate ¢5UU IOr taoe operating budagetl ol tne
department ana $<,UUU per year to tne water aepartment for nydrant rental.

At the end of nis second term in ldY<,Chiet Peters cecliined reappointment
because of pressure of business entaiiea wita nis position wita the miii. 9O
only tour engineers were reappointed;witn David Henderson peing elected chniet.

Henderson,a native of Nortihern lreland,was a jack of all traues,ne azd &t
various times held the office of selecunan,moderator,boara 0L nealin,overseer ol
the poor,constable and justice of the peace. For a livelinood ne was & wood
desler,a norse trader,a veterinarian(Of Sorts), an auctioneer ana operated &

livery stable.



During his term as chief he instituted the practice of hiring & horse to pull
the hose wagon. Of course the horse was from his livery steble;there wes no
conflict of interest law in those days. He also rode to rires in & style
befitting & large city chief,as he had & buggy equipyed with & gong operatea
by & foot pedal &nd pulled by & fast trotter.

In 1894,0nly three engineers were appointed,David nenderson,levi Chueney
and Alfred T. Haynes. Henderson was again elected chief. There was no chenge in
the board the following year,but in 18y6,a whole new board was &ppointed
consisting of Dennis Spain,Charles F.Cahill and Thomes Sweeney. Spain was elected
chief. He worked in tae mill &s a spinner and lived in one side of tue bheenan
house at the corner of Glendale and Acton streets. His regime waich lasted only
the one year,seemed to have been an uneventiul one.

The titles of foremen and assistant foreman were changed to captein and
lieutenant in 1897. In this same year and the following year,tae poara consist—
ed of Samuel Lawton,Thom&s Sweeney and John MacPherson. Lewton was elected caiel
in both of these years.'Samuel Lawton was irom one of the towns older fzmilies,
he was employed as & carpenter in the milil. He naa served as & selectman 1Toh
1893 through 1895. There were no significant changes in tne depeartuent during
his term as chief.

In the years of 1399 and 1900,Charies F.Cahili,Thouas Sweeney wna Joun
MacPherson were appointed engineers,witn Cahill oeing elected cnief in both ol
tnese years and continued to hold the post until LyJUbj;tne longest tenure of any
chief up untili that time. Charles F.Cahill was better Known oy his miaaie name
of Fred. He was active in town politics and had held numerous minur town oriices,
he had been a constaole,special police officer and lamplighter. He was employed
as a teamster in the mill yard. Before coming to Meynard ne nad served on tne

Saxonville Fire Department,and was a cherter memoer of tne maynard department.



Cehill loved excitement and if tnerc was not enougn of it e would create soue.

One quiet August Saturday afternoon in Ly0l;Cnief Canill decldea to test
the efficiency of his department,so with his watch in hena he pullea in box
eighty six,which was at the corner of Harriman Court and Mein Street. une or the
steple hends &t the Coughlin Stabie respondea promptly to thne station with &
peir of horses for the ladder wagon. dowever it so nappened tast there was
nobody &t the Sheehan Stable to get the single horse out for tne hose wagon. So
some of the men of the hose company who nhad assembled &t the stetion,ran down
to the Sheehen Stable,at tne corner of Acton and Glendale streeis,and odackea
out toe first horse thet they came to &nd ran him back to the iire station. It
heppened to be & very light driving horse,end witn tne ill Iitting coliar,n&d
trouble even getting the wagon started off of the revel floor. Unce tarougn toe
door and on the down grade,the men piled on the wegon,making & gooda load for a
pair of heavier horses. With tue ladder cowmpeany &pout Iive minutes &gesd 01 Tu€iy,
woich was humiliating to say tuoe least;the driver leid tne wuip onto thne poor
little horse unmercifully. People along Mein Street wao witnessea tnis cruelty,
informed Mrs.Sheehen of what haed taken place. She imueaiatery iniorumed uvhiel
Cahill tnat she would never &liow the fire departument the use c¢i any of ner
horses agein,even if the whole town was burning up.

In 1901,tne selectmen must have felt tnat they were a law unto tuemselves,
for after appointing Cehill,Sweeney and MacPherson &s engineers;they appointea
a fourth angineer in a speciel category of his ownj& procedure entireliy conir-
ary to the law under which tne departument was governea; They appointed faul
Wiison,the master mechanic of the mill,&s & special chniel Ior the will progerty.
He wes to have no pay,voice or vote witn the reguiar ooard ol engineers;out
was to assume full charge of the town Iire departuwent in the event oI & Iire

invoiving tne mill property.
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This was probubly done to attempt to relieve tie sireineu releiions oetween
the mill msnsgement and the fire depurtuwent. vuring the eatire Lccupency Ui
this property by the smericun koolen vompany,it nad osen tueir poiicy to
ettem,t to handie their fires with the mainwinance crew,as tucy wanlec no pubslic
records of fires;feuring &n adverse eilect on thelr insurance rates.

In 1902,the pay of callmen wes reilsed to $<0.00 per yeur &nd itiat of the
engineers to $35.00 per yeer. Cahill,Sweeney snd iacPnerson were reéypolinted
but the special category chlef was note Ushill was agein elected calel snglneer.

Early one balmy summer evening,& 8méil lire droke cut in toe ulendase house,
daynard's lesding hotel,iocated on the site of Lhe present Wir wmewdrial on cuuuer
Street. This wes not tueir first fire,nor wes it to be tauelir lLeste. lue uepariuent
responded to tne alarm in full force,und so aid &cout everyone else in townh,.
A difierence oi opinion arose vetween Uhlecf Caanllli una bogineer Muc Fnerson as o
the tactics thet should be used. Mecfnerson was & pretty ru,.eu wel,he wWue &
olackemitn,end run & shop in what 18 now the suvutnesst corner ol lhe scnouljeru
on Glenasle Street. With Johnn's strong arws waving and ie8iner ilungs bexlowing,
e seemed to De getting the best of ublel Canlli. ot aoout tne polat woele Join
secvmed ready to teke & swing at Cilel Candil's jaw, e luil odoura ol Seiecluen
apueared on tne scene snd MacPherson wes ready 1w ta8ke tieam on 100, &11er & nesly
retreet, the selectmen neld & brierf meeting after wnich toey returnea auua inloraecd
jacPherson tnst he wes firea. To wunich John repiled witn tuel tiue noncrcd
rejoindery; - "fou caen't fire mej;l yuit? artnur Cougnlen was &ppointea 0 1iis
ocut tne rest of MacPnerson!s term.

The rollowing yeer of 1l9Uj,arinur Coughlén wes elected & seieClaun i a
very uitter ciection. The ourning issue oceing the Liquor iiceuse yuestion. Tae
town votea"no license" oy & mergin of 7o votes,making deynera dry ior tae i1rst

tiue ln nine years.
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The same board of engineers wus reappointed,Cougnlan being & selectuman,was
& party to his own appointment. He was also the town moaerator. The poard organ-—
ized with Cahill again chief,Sweeney assistant,&nd Coughlan clLerk.

This year of 1903 was to see & monumental change in the iire department.
With the appointment of a full time man,tne department stariea to move out of the
status of & social orgenization towards that of & professional one.

Thomas F.Collins wus appointed the first permanent men on May 1,1903. The
term permanent men was just about what it meant. The job was twenty four hours &
day,seven days a week,with fourteen hours off of one day each month. The salary

of $600 per year came to less than eight cents per hour.

Thowas(Tony)Corlins was without doubt the most colorful character in tae
nistory of the department. He was born in Hudson iass.jnis fatoner irisn na nis
mother Canedian French. He had & mop of red hair end & typicel Irish face.
Altnough ne did not let it be generally xnown,he spoke Frencn quite vell,this
gave nim meny & chuckle when Frenchmen would carry on & conversation within
his hearing,tninking that tne Irishman wouid not unaerstand them.

In recalling &s to how he got the nicknaume of Tony;it sSeews Thal &s &

small boy he acquired a fascination for horses and managed to curtivate t..e

friendship of an Italian fruit peddler,who would let nim ride on his wagon &na
sometimes even let him hold the reins. When tae fruit pedaler &skead him nis
neme,he replied;"Tommy". This evidently did not 1it the Italian language,so ne
beceme Tony and the neme stuck to hiw for the rest of nis 1life.

There were four children in the Collins family;Tony being tne olaest. When
Tony was twelve years old nis father died,and in those auys it .was & nard
struggle for a widow to support & family oy sucn menial tasks ws. scruobing 1loors
and teking in washings. So Tony se&w little of school after tnat. ne managed 10
get & little work around & livery stable,allowing him to weke & littie conl-
ribution towards the support of the femily &nd to wWork with horses whica ne

thoroughly enjoyed. A couple of years later his wother remarried ana Tony



took to the road. He followed the trotting tracks for & number of yesrs,
working as & hostler and & treiner of trotting horses.

Shortly before the turn of the century,the activities at tne numerous
trotting tracks went into a drastic decline;brought about Oy the passing oI l&ws
ageinst betting. In the heyday of the.tracks,tne bookmekers usea to g0 tarough
the stands waving bills in the air and hawking their trade like a peanut vendor.

With the betting curbed,most of the swall tracks ciused downj;so Tony went
back to the livery stables,finelly landing at the Coughizh Stabie on Sumwer
Street. The building is now & part of the Fine Arts Theatre. He slept in an
upstairs room that was provided for tne night man. At tois time the stabie wad
iurnishing the horses for the fire department;so tuis job involved Tony wita
the department;so when it ceme to tne selection of tneir iirst permanent wman;
Tony was the most logicel choice.

The election of 1v04 was even more bitter tnen the yeur oerore;tne Liguor
license was beaten by & mergin of only sixteen votes. Sinister hands penina tne
scenes were out for revenge. Tne fire dcpartment pecame a political footbarl.
The selectmen became deadlocs<ed cn the &ppointment of tne fire engineers ior
four meetings. Finally &t a special meeting of the board of selectmen,nela &t
six thirty in the morning of April first,all of the engineers terms naving expirsa
on the previous midnight,the selectmen voted to regppoint the swme board,out
again added & special category engineer Ior the mill. Peter Wilcox,the master
mechanic of the will,was appointea to serve without pay,voice or vote in tne
fire department;but in case of fire in the mill property,ne was to heve fuli

authority over the regular board of engineers. &n entirely illegal procesaure.



At the organization meeting of the board,Thomas Sweeney was electea chief,
Fred Cahill,assistant and Artnur Cougnlen,clerx.

Thomas Sweeney was born August l4,1l86u,in & nouse on Main Street utnat wes
later moved across the street to make room for the snipping room of the mill.It
being before the incorporation of Haynard so was tuen a part of the town of
Sudbury. He was a charter member of the nose company end it's first clerk. He
lived on Nason Street and was employed &s & clerk in the Riversiae Cooperative;
so whether at home or at work he was always very close to the fire station.

Following their organization for the year,it had alweys been a matier of
routine,for the cngineers to reappoint the members ol each company from the
roster furnished them by the respective cowpany clerks. This year was to be
difrerent,Coughlen and Cahill reiused to sign tne eppointwents of obamuel sing of
the hose company &nd Joshua Edwerds of the Laader company. furely a poliitical
vendette. Both men were highly respectea,both in the departuwent &and tne cowmunity .
King had been & loysl member of tThe hose company since lgy< and Ldwards was &
cherter member of the department. He nad taken care ol tne Iire alaru datteries
for the eignt years prior to the appointment of tne 1irst permanent man. Tois
wes & disagreeable job tnet required deily attention,washing out tne jers and
handling toe corrosive chemicals,spoiling clotnes,all Ior the munificent séiarj
of twenty dollars per year. The report of the engineers in the 18y7 town report,
reads: —"We wish to make mention of the oattery room woich is under toe sSuger-
vision of Mr. J.Edwards,the management being nighly satisiactory and pleasing
to the department".-—— He was clerk of the ladder company,&na nis records,still

in the fire station,are complete,neat and legible. In spite of this vicious

unfair trestuent,he continued to serve tue town unselfishiy tor many years alier.
Serving at various times &s sealer of welgnts and weasurss,& wewoer of the ooara

of nealth and &< & member of the boerd of puplic welfare.
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The following ye&ar,1905,the same Doard was reappointed,but the speciel
category chief for the mili,Peter Wilcox,was dropped. Cahill was again electea
chief. Iﬁ 1906, tne seme board was again named but organized with Coughian &s
chief ,Cahill assistant and Sweeney clerk.

Arthur Coughlen was born in west Concord,but the family moved To Maynard
when he was twelve years old. He served the town as & selectman,tax collector and
moderator. He was elected to represent the district in the state legisleture
in 1912 and in 1915 was appointed postmaster of Maynard. While he was & membper of
the board of engineers he was engaged in real estate operation,was an insurance
agent,sold fire extinguishers and was é&n suctioneer. As & young men he had
served five years in the nevy,which accounted for his nicknsme of Admirel. ne
was a very dignified locking men,elways well dressed. It was said that ne woulad
not leave his house to go to a fire without a collar and tie on. At a tire,ne
would never enter a building,but stood out in the middle of the street,leaving
the details of the operations to his subcrdinates. This was of'ten called &
grendstend act,poy some of nis political adversaries.

In April of 1907, Tony Collins resigned from tne departwment 10 take Tne job
of coachmen for Reymond Kitchen the resiaent agent oif tne American Woolen Gompany.
John White was appointed to his pleace &as driver of the hose wagon. White stayed
on the job until November of that same year,and when he let't,Tony Coiiins
returned to the jobj;to continue it until the day of his death in 1939.

This same board of engineers continued to be reappointea each year through
1911. They each held the same position,with; Coughlian,chierl’; Cahili,assistant
and Sweeney clerk.

In 1908,the pay of callmen was reised to forty doilars per year. And in
this same year,the town accepted the statute tnat authorizea the appoinument
of & local forest warden. This office was actually a state appointment &s it

was made Dy the state commissioner of conservation upon the nomination oi tne
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board of selectmen,who usually named the head of the iire departuent. nowever,
some ewkward situations could develop,as the terws of fire engineers ren 10r one
year,starting in April,and the term of the forest warden ren for a yeaf starting
the first of January. So if & cnsnge was made in the nead of tue lire departuent
in April,the former chief,by virtue of nis autnority as torest uaruen,nﬁa control
of tne fire department in the event of a Iire involving woodland or orusn. S0
unless the old warden resigned,he neld the office 1or the rest oi ine year. He
could only be removed by the appointing authority,end then oniy 1or just cause,
efter a hearing. This the state otfricials were reiuctant to do. The tirst
controversy to develop over this division of authority,occurrea in the spring of
1911,vwhen Chief Coughlen was confined to nis home by & long illness. It was &
dry spring &nd there was & rash of brush tires. Assistent Cnieil Canili rerused
to accept responsipility for brush fires,claiming tnat Cougnlan was tne forest
warden and was collecting the twenty five dollear per year salery 1or tne job.
The outcome,wes Cehiil resigning from the board of engineers. He was repleced
by George Gatteridge;wno,with Albert Cougnlsan,captain ol the nose Coupany,were
mede deputy warcens o serve witnout pay.

ntil 1911,tne engineers nad always oeen paia the same pay,regardless Ol
the position they held on tne poard,vwnicn was tnen I1I'ty aollars per year. Toe
engineers voted to make tne salary of tne chiel engineer $lUU per year pius «n
additional twenty five dollars tor tne 1orest weraen joo. Inis action of the
engineers,which was entirely witnin tneir power,irkea tne selectwen who put
an article in the town meeting werrant Limiting the pay oi all of tue engin-
eers to rirty doiiars per year. The article passed easily,witnh CUnief Coughian

the victim of some verbal brickpats on tune town meeting lioor.

In 1912,the same board was reappointed,but reorganizea witn George
Gutteridge,cnief;Artour Cougnian,sssistant and Thomas Sweeney,clerk. & snort

time later Sweeney resigned and was replaced by James Uleary.
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George H. Gutteridge was a lifelong resident of Maynerd. ne was a graauate ol
the local schools and of & watchmakers schnool. He was town treasurer ior many years.
He operated a jewelry and watch repair snop on Nason Street. He joinea tne depart-
ment in 1399 and at the time of his appointment to the ooard,was captain ol the
nose company. Gutteriage was & very progressive chief. Everytning tnat ne bougnt
for the department was of the best quality avaiiable. ide was tne 1irst cnier to
drive a car,so had opportunities to visit other depariments and opserve tnelr mode
of operation and equipment. He traveled to the scenes of large fires,even outside
of the state. He held membership in the chief's organizations and attended their
meetings and conventions. He encouraged the men to do likewise and maae provisions
to provide substitutes so that the permanent men could attend thneir conventions.
He was interested in fire prevention and favored the adoption oi a local buiiding
code,despite the fact that the idea was very unpopular &t tnat time.

In 1913,the same board was reappointed but early in the year Jemes Uleary
resigned and was replaced by Peter Wilcox. In 1914 tney were again reappointed and
again organized witn Gutteridge,chief;Cougnian,assistant and Wik cox,clerx. In
this same year,tne hose company was motorized and tne horses were sniitea over to
the ladder wagon,which had always been drawn Dy nired teams. Tais weant tae
appointment of a second permanent man. To tue surprise ol most people WwiO Knew
him weil,altnough Tony Collins was & oorn horseman,ne cnose 1o give up ariving
tne horses and learn to drive the new motor truck. de nea iearneda 1o riae &
motorcycle a couple of years peiore oul nad never ownea one. Tnis weant hiring
a new driver for the ladder wagon. The records of the board of engineers
show that William Hagerty,who had been driving Strout's teaw tnat nad opeen
hzuling the ladder wagon,was appointed to Thne new permanent driver position,

however,he never worked at it and the job was fil.ed by Henry rodges.
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"Bud" Hodges,&s he was usually cuileu,like Tony Coilins nsa rollowed the trotiing
tracks and was a skilled horsemsn. He stayea on tne joo just a iittle more tuan

a year,during which time he naa &n understéanding with tne engineers tnat ne was
anxious to get out of the job &s soon as they could find & replacement for him.
The job paid nine dollars per week,for twenty four nours a day,seven days a week
wiih fourteen hours off on one day every second week.

In Merch of 1Y15,William wuinn toox the job. silli wuinn,iike lony Corlins,
was a native of Hudson,he too was a bacnelor,butWAid merry late in life when
the hours of tne job became & little more humane. sill wuinn nua ariven a
grocery wagon in Hudson. He lived with his parentis,next door to the fire station
and was & call wan in the department. As tne nudson department nta taree puirs
of horses in this stetion. bBill often filled in as & spare driver.

During the next twenty fbur years that piil and Tony workea togetner;it
was sad to say,but was to be expected,wnere two men were coniined togetner in
what were almost the conditions ot & y&ail;their reLationSnip was not exactly
congenial. They seldom spoke to each other unless it was necessary or concerned
some very unusual event. Un & warm suamer evening tney would be seen stanaing
out in front of the building on opposite sides of tne main aoors. Yet tuey
shared ihe work equally &and kept the old station on Nason Street spick and spang
end when Tony died suddenly in 193Y,5ill Guinn probaoly felt tne Loss more
deeply than anyone.

In 1915,Gutteridge and wughlan were reappointed but Peter hwiicox wus
not. He was repleced by Albert Cougnlan. George Gutteridge was'again elLectea
chief.vDuring this term,Arthur Coughlan who was a staunch Democrat, reeeived
the appointment of postmaster,éo nad to resign irom the potrd. He wes replacea

by Albert Axford. This seme board was reeppointea uguin in Llvle.
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In 1917 Gutteridge and axford were reappointea but Walter Priest was
appointed in place of hlbert Coughlen. Fred axfora resignea during the year
and he was replaced by Lee Donznue. From L9l until Ly<l,these same engin-
eers were reappointed.and orgeanized with Gutteriage chief,halter rriest
assistant and Lee Donahue clerk.
In September of 1913,8ill wuinn was drafted into the service in
World war 1 .His place was taken by Edward Redaing, wno oniy stayea & couple
of months.It was wertime and there were plenty of joos thet paia twice tae
money for half the hours. 1t was impossible to find anyone to fiii tne job.
Sc Joe Farreli,who slept in tne station nignts,woula arive toe teem &t nignt
and if an &alarm czme in auring the aay,uutteriage woula run &cross toe
street,irom his store,una arive the truck &and Tlony Collins woura tuke tae
horses with the ladder wagon. At tiwes that Tony would have tne norses out
on the street with the tip cert or the water weagon,there woulc be noboay
PR in the station.In case of & phone call,the cperator woula switch tne cell to
Gutteridge's jewelry store.
When Bill wuinn returned trom the service in lyliy,tee pay or Tony
Gollins had been reised to ¢15.75 per week &nd nis tc ylb.<5.The foilowing
year the pays were reaised to $<3.UU &nd $<<.UuU per week respectively.Tlne
pay of cellmen was now $75.UU per year ana that of engineers yLluu and cnieiglc5
Gutteridge nad not been chietf licng when ne reaitizea tuaet the system of
& board of engineers,wes years out of step witn the times,in nis &ssocieting
with otrer chiefs he had come to look upon the title of fire engineer as
something &s out of date &s & lampliighter.
In 1919 tne fire unaervwriters made & survey ol tae town,ana in taeir
report,the very iirst recommendation wes: “Taet the cnier of tne departunent
-~ be &ppointed for en indefinite term,with removel oniy lor cause,and sSOLlely
s responsible for the direction,efficiency,zna control oif the departument

subject to the approval of the boura of selectmen.''
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This meant that upon e§£ablishi£g the office of fire cnief,the
bourd of engineers would be zutometicelly saovorished.wnen wutteridge suggested
to the selectmen,that they put the question up to the voters in town weeting,
they attempted to find every pcssible excuse to evade the issue.lney did not
went to lose their politicel plums,the &nnual appointment of fire engineers.

Gutteridge wes not interected in &« job &s full time fire chief,but was
willing to carry on the job &s & celli cunief,witn Tony volliius &s tne Iull time
deputy chief.Ai similar arrengement existed in the poliice department.aitnougn
this would not have been the ideal sctup,it woula have been a iong step
in the right direction. The selectmen continued tc de evusive, s Gutteridge
turned in his resignation.They begzed nim t0 recondider &nd prowised hiw
that they would eventually correct the situstion.Tnes continued tu procrastinate.
When Gutteridge pressed them for action tuey harpea on the same Glu excuse,
that the people would not vote for it.

In ly«l the szme board was reapguintea;but oelore the end oi tae tera,
Lee Donehue died,ne waus replaced by williem Neyslor.Thne foiiowing seur Lli<k,
the scme board wes reappointed,and organized witn Gutteridge caoiel,rriest
assistent &nd Neylor clerk.Sefore the end of the yeur,LGutteriage,tired of
broxen promises,resigned. Joseph Farrell was ggpointed in anis piace,
the boerd reorganized with Neylor chnief,priect essistant end Ferreii clerk.

Williem Neylor hed peen & member of the department since LYlZ,ne was
superihtendant of the water depsrtment.de wes torn in Maynerd » gredutte of
the local schools,and to use the purience of nis day,w&as & wen of sterliing
character.Loy&al and generous to his cnurch &«nd fraternal criiilietions,znd a
lifelong apsteiner from liguor and tobacco.dnivrtunatiy tnese virtues were
not apprecieated by the boys at the firehouse.uis penny pinching posicies
aroused the ire of the entire departaent.nis phiilosopiy wes tne exact oppusite

to thet of his predecessor George Gutteriuge,vhouse tninking was tnat tue 0est
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was none too gooa,wnere with Waylor,tue cheapest cost too wucn.dis answer 1O

any suggestion oi improvement toet would cost money was:"l'ts not neccessary’
He wanted to abolish tne position of ariver ol tihe laduer Trucs and Irevert
beck to a one men aspartment.nowever ne waS OVEruleu Dy Lide OULET TWU LSWDETS
ol tne Dboard,wno naa pPeen pressured Dy Tne seleculden.

Wnen it beceme aosolutely neccessary to purchase LOS€,1l wWas OI the po0Test
quality,single jacket,usuaily celled mill hose,as 11 wWes generally yused 10r private
tire protection inside puiidings,wnere it would not nave To stena the &ouse OI Delng
araggea in the street wnere snerp peobles would puncture the single cotlon jacket,
me<ing tne whole Length useless.Wnen one of tune arivers complainea tnat the old
oattery would hardly turn tne motor over wnen starting,aespite uaily recnarging,
Naylor's answer was:"Use the crank! It wes tne same with patteries 1or Tue
fire alarm,due to age,tney were too weak 1o operate tne steww wuistle peyond
the first blast.lhne Maynard Enterprise reierred To it as our one Lung iire alara
system.

The men treated Naylor witn utter aisrespect ana insuboruination,ne was
even threatened with physicel vioience.iven wnen ne was riglt ue was lgnored.une
cese in particular,was when ue purcnased some one &na one il inch a0se.lue wen
flatiy refused to put it on tne trucks.Tney ailsparglneiy calieu it'hNaylor's garuen
nose'Yet it is stili the universaily acceptea type Ol equlpuent 1Or use on lnsiue
Iires today.

The pay of cailuen was reisea Irom sevents Iive to one aunarsa 4oLiars Jer
year in the nopes ol pacilying tne wen,dutl tuzt aia not seem 10 QO any goOuLUy
Pressurs was being put on the selectien ifrom &Ll sides 1o gel ria oi Neyior
45 chief;it becsme & mejor issue in tne election Ol Tae selectaen in 1Y<4.

When tne annual sppointments were made inet year,t:ue seiectuen nusa 10
o something about tneir pre-election promises.us&cging tne intecstinar iortituae
to tell Naylor outright that they aid not want him,they resortea to a

cowardly trick that beckiired on them.lhey appointea i1ive engineers,
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to Farrell,Naylor and Priest,who were on The board,tney added John Wollerschied
and Frank Parks. Hoping that Parks,with nis own vote,coula get two of the other
four votes and be elected chief. It did not work out tuat way. They sll wanted
to be chief except Farrell and he gave his vote 1o Neylor. So this scneme of
appointing five engineers accomplished nothing except to meke a baa situation
worse. When Farrell wes asked why he voted for Naylor,he replied that he thought
that Naylor was the lesser of five evils.‘Farrell,in his own mind, wes satisfied
thet the system of & board of engineers was then long outmodgd.'The next year
the same five engineers were appointed &nd agein the same deadlock prevaiiea,
with Naylér again the winner. The following year of 19<6,tne selectmen exected
promises from Wollerschied and Priest to vote for Parks as cpief,perore tney
would give them their appointments. So after three attempts,tney haa Iinally oustea
Naylor &s chief,but he was still on the board of engineers and orten neld tne
deciding vote on important matters.

Chief Parks nad been & member of the department since l9l7,ne served in
the army during World War l,and wus employed by the hwerican Woolen Lompany.

Progress in the department was &t & stanastill,if not in reverse. The only
improvements mentioned in the 1926 town report,was thne purchase of six electric
hand lights to replace the old kerosene ianterns,ana twelve new helmets,iive of
them white,for the engineers,these five white helmets were hung along one side
of the old hose truck,which was now a museum piece,making it look all tae
more ridiculous.

These same five engineers were reappointed eacn year througn 193<. The
department continued to retrogress. True tihey were getting fires out after &
feshion,but their mode of operation had not improved over tnat of the first
deys of the department, Things managea to keep going on.the loyzity of some of
the old timers,who still reteined the pride that they nad ior the aepartuent
when it was at it's best. There were men lixke Bill friest,who operatea & mérxet

next door to the fire station,who,when the alarm sounded,would be seen hanging
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to. Farrell,Naylor and Priest,who were on the board,they adaed Jonn Wollerschied
and Frank Parks. Hoping that Parks,with his own vote,could get two of the other

four votes and be elected chief. It did not work out toat wey. Tney ail wantea

to be chief except Farrell and he gave his vote to Waylor., So tuis schewe of
appointing five engineers accomplishea nothing except to wake & bad situation

worse. When Farrell was &sxed why ne voted for Naylior,nis reply was;lhal ne
thought thet Naylor was the lesser of five evils. Farreil,in nis own mina,wes
satisfied that the system of @ board of engineers was Long outmoded. 1lhe

next year tne same five were appointed and again tne same deadlock prevelled,
with Naylor again the winner. The following year,lY<0,tne selectmen exactea
promises from Wollerschied and Priest to vote for rarks as caiel Dpeilore utagy
gave them their esppointments. So after three attempis,tney had linally ousted
Naylor as chief,but he was still on tne board of engineers &na olten haa the
deciding vote on important matters.

Chief Parks had been & member of tne department since 1917,nhe served in
the army during World War I,ana was employed by the American Woolien Coumpany.

Progzress in the départment was at & standstili,if not in reverse. Tane oniy
improvements mentioned in the Ly<b6 town report,was ilne purcnase oi six electric
haend lights,to replace tne cold Kerosene lenterns,and twelve new heluwets,iive of
tnem white,for tue engineers,tnese five wnite helmets were hung &long one siae
of the old hose truck,which was now & museum piece,making it LOOK &ll the
more ridiculous.

These seme five engineers were reappointea eacn yeer througn lys<. Tne
department continued to retrogress. Irue,they were getting Iires out aiter &
fashion,but their mode of operation nad not improved over that ol the 1irst
deys of the departuent. Things awanaged to keep going on tne Loyelty oif sowme ot
the old timers,who still retainea tne price that tney haa Ior the department
when it was &t it's best. There were men like £ill Priest,who operateu & umarket

next door to the fire station,who,when the slsrm sounaed,wouica be seen nanging
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on to the tail end of the old La France hose wagon,his white butcher's apron
flying in the breeze,while his customers were left standing in the market with
nobody to wait on them. Or Mike Cleary who lived at 50 Summer Street,just over
the tracks in back of the fire station,who during brush fire season,would go to
the seven o!clock Mass on Sunday morning,so that he could get home early and
change into old clothes for the day,in anticipation of an alarm.There was nothing
to attract the interest of younger men and some of the older men were only

hanging on to collect the fifty dollar salary every six months.
In 1932,a Chamber of Commerce was formed in the town,witn the usual good

intentions. After electing a board of officers,a number of committees were
formed,most of which never functioned. The one netable exeption being the civic
committee,purely a political machine;which seemed to have had but one objective;
to tear the fire department apart. In the shape that the department was in,it
was like beating & dead horse. Any organization that was supposed to have had
civic betterment as an objective,should have been trying to do something to
improve the department,and there was plenty of room for that. Instead,tne hatchet
men managed to reduce the appropriation for salaries of call men enough to
cut the call force from twenty seven to twenty four men. This was the only
accomplishment of the civic committee,after which they folded up their tents
and stole away in the night. The whole Chamber of Commerce was to lay dormant
for years. In this shakeup,John Wollerschied and Joe Farrell resigned from the
board of engineers,leaving it again a three man board,with Frank Parks,chief,
Walter Priest,assistant chief,and Naylor clerk.

By 1934 things had reached bottom,true,they were still getting fires out

after a fashion,or at least confining the loss to one building. That the town
did not suffer a major conflagration could probably best be credited to

Divine Providence.
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A complete new board of selectmen was- elected in 1934,none of tnew nad ever
served on the board before. The terms of selectmen were tnen for onLy one ye&ar.
Frenk McCarron was elected chairmen. He wes in the insurance pbusiness and haa Qeen
having difficulty getting some of the companies to take coverage on mercantile
risks,so he was quite concerned with the condition of the fire departwment. dis two
colleagues on the board of selectmen agreed that they would go along with any
reasonaeble changes that he might propose in regards to the fire department.

McCarron did at least start out in the right direction,he arranged Ior a
conference with the manager of the rating bureau Percy Charnock;& very abrupt
man,careful of what he said and even more caretul what he wrote. Tne town of
Maynerd wes then graded sixth cless. Charnock at the very beginning informed
McCarron thet he would not make any comumitments without an up to date survey,
the last one was now fifteen years old. Underwriters reports were always oné OL
the best kept secrets of the board of selectmen. In fact there were men who nad
held the office of selectman for years,who would deny to tne uninitiated tnat
such & thing as an underwriters report existed.

After considerablre discussion,mostly one sided,during wnich Cnarnock Kept
his teeth tightly clamped on his ever present cigar;McCarron was able to get
just one brief suggestion out of him,it was:-"Get rid ot those engineers and
get a chief to run your department.” Unfortunately McCarron thougnt that ne
siuply meent to get rid of the present board of engineers and appoint otners
in their place. Of course what Charnock meant,was ior the town to estaoLish the
office of chief of the fire department,which would automatically abolish the
board of engineers. So when the new appointments were made; Parks and Naylor
were replaced by George Priest and Michael Louka. They organized witn George

Priest,chief;Waiter Priest,assistant and Michael Louka,cClerk.
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George Priest was known to most people &s Tom,nis miadle neuwe was Thomes.
He was born in Maynerd and grew up with the fire department in his blood,é&s his
father ran & market next door to the Iire station and wes & call wen in toe
department. Shortly after nis twenty first oirtnday,in ly<5,ne oecau€ & wewper ol
the department and & snort time later,he took on tae obiigaticn to reiieve
the one man who wes on duty,during his meal hours,on tne aays wnen lae olher wan
would be off. The two permenent men were now getting rourteen nours ol every
fifth day off. So this weant that Tom would be tied cown on wany Sundays &nd
holidays and no extra pay ior any of it.

As chiet,Tom hed nis work cut out ior nim. The aepartuent was in saa shape.
It would be pretty safe to say thet Maynarc was tne only town or it's size in
the country witnout pumping equipment ol any xind. bver&tnins in tne aepartment
was run down. lmmediately,Chief Priest startea to buila up toe eyuipuwent. ne
received advice and encouragement irowm former Cniel Gutteriage,whno was pleased
to see the department that ne once was so proud oi,pcegin to snape up again.

The new chief joined and became &ctive in the 1ire chief's organizations,
Men were sent to the btate Department of Eaucation Treining Scnool in ariington.
A treining progrem was started within the departument thet sowe of the olaer
men found difficult to keep up with,so bowed out gracefuliy,sliowing younger,
more active and interested men to take their pliaces.

This seme boarc oi engineers was &apypoilnted eacn year iurough 1756. 1he
department continued to progress. Ui course tnere were snipers wno grumbliea
ebout nepotism,thnere were iour mempers of the Priest lemily in the aepariuent,
ana they were usually the 1irst at any fire. Tnere were moans &4pout wila
spending in the fire departuent,inspired oy tne sumall towa poiiticians who
Knew 1ull well that the only money tnat any town Qepartwent can spend,is wuat
the peoplie vote to spend in town uweeting.

In 1y5Y whnen the new appointuwents were muae,kwalter rriest and uicnael

Louks were repleced by haymond Connors ana Richard hllan. George rfriest was

agein elected chief
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Thursday,February 23,1939.wes Tony Collins' regular day off,and as was his
usual custom,he took the morning train to Boston. He went to & Washington Street
theatre. Nobody saw what happened or at least did not volunteer any information
if they did,but Tony was found at the foot of & flight of stairs,unconcious with
a fractured skull. He died in the hospital the following day. As he had no
established home other than the fire station,and as funeral homes were still
considered by meny of the older people as being cold and impersonal,his pody was
taken for repose,to the home of Chief George Priest,from which it was taken to
Saint Bridget's Church for the funeral service,with burial in the family lot in
Hudson.

Harold Priest was appointed to fill the vacancy left by the death oi Tony
and the pay of the two drivers was equelized at $33.50 per week,Tony had been
getting $35.00 and Bill Wuinn had been getting only $3<.00.

In November of 1939,Chief Priest informed the selectmen that he could no
longer carry on the work that he was doing for anything like the $i50 per year
that he was getting. The family business was heading for the inevitabie fate
that befell most small independent markets. His father could no longer afiford to
pay help to replace the time that Tom was devoting to the fire departument. II
they chose to keep him on the job,he requested a pay of $35.U0 per week whicn
was $1.50 more than the drivers were getting. The selectmen then offerea him
$400 if he would carry on the job as he was doing until town meeting. &t tne
March 1940 town meeting,the fire department budget was increased sufficientiy
to meke the position of chief engineer full time,at $35.00 per wveek.

With the 1940 appointments,Walter Priest was returned to the boara of
engineers,maeking it a four man board. In this same year,the contrioutory
retirement system was adopted by the town.

Late in this same year an underwriters survey of the town's fire protection

vwas made by the rating bureau. In tneir tests of the water system,of which

former chief,William Naylor was the superintendent,many giaring difficiencies
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Thursday,February 23,1939.wes Tony Collins' regular day off,and as was his
usual custom,he took the morning trein to Boston. He went to & Washington Street
theatre. Nobody saw whet happened or at least did not volunteer any information
if they did,but Tony was found at the foot of & flight of stairs,unconcious with
s frectured skull. He died in the hospital the following dey. 4S he head no
established home other than the fire station,and &as funeral homes were still
considered by many of the older people as being cold and impersonal,his pody wes
taken for repose,to the home of Chief George Priest,from which it was taken 1o
Saint Bridget's Church for the funeral service,with burial in the family lot in
Hudson.

Harold Priest wes appointed to fill the vacancy lef't by the death of Tony
and the pay of the two drivers wes equalized at $33.50 per‘weex,Tony haa been
getting $35.00 and Bill uinn had been getting only $3<.0UU.

In November of 1939,Chief Priest informed the selectmen that he coﬁld no
longer carry on the work that he was doing for anything like the $150 per yeer
that he was getting. The family business was heading for the inevitabie fate
that befell most smell independent markets. His father could no longer afford to
pay help to replace the time that Tom w&s devoting to the fire department. Ii
they chose to keep him on the job,he requested a pey of $35.U0 per weex whicn
vwas $1.50 more than the drivers were getting. The selectmen then offerea him
$400 if he would carry on the job as he was doing until town meeting. At tne
March 1940 town meeting,the fire department budget was increased suificientiy
to meke the position of chief engineer full time,at $35.00 per week.

With the 1940 appointments,Walter Priest was returned to the board of
engineers,making it & four man board. In this same year,the contrioutory
retirement system was adopted by the town.

Late in this same year an underwriters survey of the town's fire protection

was made by the rating bureau. In tneir tests of the water system,0f wnich

former chief,William Naylor was the superintendent,many glaring difficiencies
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in hydrant capacities were brought to light. At toat time wmuch ol the distribp-
ution system was of badly tuberculated,unlined,c&st iron pipe. Flow tests on
some hydrants showed &s little as forty gallons per minute aveiltole,wuereas the
minimum requirement was one thousand gallons per minute.

Of course the first recommendation in the underwriters report was the sanme
a8 that of twenty one years before,and was to take almost twice &s long &gein to
accomplish,namelys- That the office of chief of the fire department be estaolished.
This would abolish the politically appointed board of engineers.

In attempting to get the selectmen to make & move towards following out
this recommendation; Chief Priest found himself in the sauwe position @s thet ol
Chief Gutteridge,twenty one years before. In fact the selectmen were using tue
same old excuse,that the people would not vote for it in town meeting. They
could be sure of this because they never intended to &liow the people &n opport-
unity to vote on it anyway.

The same board of engineers were reappointed in 194l. Tne country was
preparing for war,defense industries were booming,wages were rising &nd men were
vere alvays aveilable. It had always been & rule of the departument waat if &
callman tock & Job out of town he would have to resign from the cepartment., Tois
rule had to be relaxed,it was the beglnning of & trend that was to continue. So it
wes proposed that another permanent man be added,ss the two drivers were stilil
working twenty four hours & day with fourteen hours ofi every fifth day,sSo that
if either of these men vwere to leave for a better job,of which there were pientuy,
it would likely heve been impossible to replace him.

At the end of the year Raymond Connors resigned from tne board of engineers
and took the third job,this aliowed the men to work two straight days with the
third fuil day off,leaving two men on duty at all times except auring wmezd hours,

which the chiet covered,
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The resignation of George FPriest ieft & vucency on tne boaru O engin-

eers,the job went begging,iinally the selectmen &ppointea Henry surieni,ea
relativily newcomer to thne department to tne vacancy. iariani wes tne Iirst wen

to be appointed &n engineer who w&s employed out ol town. Luring his entire years
of service,he was employéd in watertown,so was out ol town ail aey iong. lHowever,
he served on the board until his deatn on aApril:.<4,ly63,uwaking nis tenure utue
longest of eny engineer up until that tidé. The board reorganized witn hliang,cniel;
Mariani,clerk -and Naylor as corresponaing secretary,s new titie inventea to avold
having him classified a&s & rirefighter,s position he could not legally noia beczuse
of his age. The position of assistant chiei engineer was never riiled &gsin.

The position of chiei was revertea buck to a part time joo. Ll tals Wesd
supposea to nuve saved money,tne records snow the exact opposite,as the salury
expenditure for 1941,with & full time chief wus $7,50U.8< &na for the roilowing
year with a part time chief,it wus $3,135.68 und there wus no ruise in tne puy rete.

Richard Allan was & nautive of Scotiand but came to Maynard deilore he wus
twenty. He became a mempber of tne depurtuwent in iyiy. de wuas ewpiosea 1n loe
meintainance department of the Americe&n koolen Gompeny.

In August of 194<,Haroid Priest resigned us & permsnent driver «nd was
replaced by Fred Llson,who served only until Uctober wanen he resisned,ae was
replaced by Howard CLark. ki

After tne resignation of George rriest,heywond Connors wus aypointed ivrest
warden,creating the absurd situation wnere in tne event of an ouiside Iire,nis
authority,under state law,superseded that of the neea oi the aéyartment tonat
empioyed him.

Jemes Allan,tne chiet's son,wed appointed & permanent uwan in May oL iyss
und in Decewber of thet seaue year,Raymond Connors eniisteq in toe navy ena

Howard Gredy was &ppointea & military subsiitute.
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In April of 1945,Jemes Allan entered the military service,sna nis I&tnery,
who was the cell chief,took on the duties of & military substitute witn tlue
pay of both jobs bekng set at $45.UU per week.Tuis arrangement was continuea until
Jemes Allen returned from tie service about three months later.

In 1946,villiem Naylor having reached the &ge of seventy could no longer
serve in any capacity,so was replaced on the board of engineers by rhilip kilscn.
Toe board organized with Allan chief,Merisni,clerk anda Wilson,recorcing secretery.
There seemed to be no reason for not electing an assaistent chief,out the
position wes never filled again.klthough at times some of the members oi tue
boerd of engineers celled themselves deputy chief,& position tnat aid not
legelly exist under the iaw that tue departuent wes governea Dy,nor was tne
position ever mentioned in the recoras of the board oi engineers.

The four permenent men; km.wuinn,Reymond vonnors dowara Gler< ena Jemes
sllan were now working elternate shifts of twenty four hours each,maxing &n
eignty four hour week.

The iollowing year 1947,tne same board was reappointea ana reorgenized
with Allen,chief ,Marieni,recorcing secretary &na Wilson with & orand new title,
chairmen of the board of engineers.The same appointments were umuae the 1olrlowing
yeer 1948,but at the organization meeting kilson was elected chierl,lkarisni,
cheirman of the board and Allan,clerk.

Philip A.Wilscn wes a lifelong resiaent of meynard.nis fether wes the
presiding judge of the Concord district court.rhil was & grewuate of the
local schools and Dartmouth College.Hde wes & practicing attorﬁey and foliowing
the death of his father,carried on his extensive law practise,with oirices
located on the second floor cf Ledgera's ouilicing,next acor to the Iire
stetion on Nason Street, Wilson ocecame & memper of thne aepartwent in 1y4o

and rose to the position of chief engineer in & shorter space oi time tuen

any chief in the present century. He seemed to oe satistied with the system
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of & board of engineers,wnich he was always able to completely dowinate. He
dictated the appointments to the poard and any seirectwan tuat ever atlemp-—
ted to give him any opposition to unis way ol tninking cawe out the Loser. Tloe
talil wagged the dog.

Late in the year of lyb?,Wilsoda physical conaition oecame criticai. ne
had been bravely battiing & malignancy Ior several years and had unuergone
mejor surgery which was not successiul. e laced UThe inevitabdle ena witn courage
and fortitude that few men in any walk or life could eyuali,ne passea on
December <<,1967. -

In 194Y,%ilson and Meriani were reappointed DUT Martin uruper was wppointed
in place of Richard Allan. This was shn&oopy treatment of & wan wno naa given nis
best to the department for thirty years ana had carried on the tnankiess ,job oOf
cnief during the difficulties ot the war years. This sawe opoara ol engineers
continued to be reappointed tarough the year ol 1y54.

Two additional permanent wen were added O tihe l1orce 1ln i“darcn ol LybHi.
Alton Whitney and Edward sdurphy were appointea,so wiin six men,it gave taree
men on & snift. The work scneaule still peing twenty lour nours on ana twenty
tour off. The pay was $46.45 per week 1Or eacn Ol Tne new wen,b4.Ud 10T Lue
two drivers ana $b3.UU per week tor tne two senior men,kiiiiam wuinn ana
Raymond Connors. The pay rate for tne two senior mwen was conciaerea &o super-
visory pay. They were not given an olfiicers titie ual Iirst,as Tnere was no
provision in the statutes unaer wnich tne departwent was governeu at tnat
time,for the appointment oi oftficers,the law specilical.y stateu lnatl Tue
officers must be elected by the members of tne various compunies. Eventuaily
these men were called captains,so thal thnere were two CalE&gories Ol Capilains;

the permanent captains who were appointed oy the engineers and tne cail caplelns

who were elected by the men of each company. Laler when & 1OwWD pJersonnet
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board was established,tne job was given thne titlie of capteln.

May L,1952,Captain William Guinn retired,naviug reached tne manaailory
retirement age of sixty 1ive. He naa tanirty seven years ol scrvice. noward uiark
wes promoted to captain and George wWhalen was appointea & peruanent iireiignver.

In 1954,the town adopted & by-iaw that gave tne permenent men a tifty six
hour week. Putting the department on & three shift pasis,creating toree wore
positions,Walter Croft,Richard Biggins and George kawardas were appointea ana
James Allan was promoted to captain. in tnis saue jea;,James Roaway a cail man
who wes in the armed forces,lost his liie in the Aorean coniiict.

When the annual appointments were made Oy tne selectmen in 1y55,tueys aia
not reappoint Martin Gruper,but appointed Walter siiun in nis piace. vaiel
Wilson immwediately gave the selectmen &n uitimatum VO restore uruber 10 lne
board,whicn of course tney aid al'ter & couple Ol days Ol pickering auring
which Wilson tareatened to quit. As uney nad alreaqy given aiian an appointuent
ior a year,they could not remove him without cause,S0 ne neld lhe pOST 1or tne
year doing littie wore thnan carrying the ewply litie. he was not appointed tue
tollowing year. Lt again became a taree wean board,consisting oI wilson,culel;
Gruber . clerk zna Mariani with no designation. Tney continuea 10 be reappointea
annually 1or the next seven years. In iY50,ueorge Eawards resignea as & peruenent
iirefiighter and was replaced by Leonard lMcaenna.

In 1953,41lton wWhitney retired and was repiaced oy knthony Arcieri.

A town personnel poard was establisnea in 195y. Tne auties ol utmls oogru
was to recommend a salary scale lor all town empioyees. LU was a sleal lLuproveuwent
over the ola system oI huving each department oatile in.town mwecilng Lor tue
pay scale of tneir empioyees,resuiting 1n many inequities 1u tue pay oelween
aepartuments. The pay of rirefighters was sel &l ¢4,uu8 10r tae 1irst year oi
service,witn annual step raises up U0 P4,450 alter Lour yeurs. Laplelius were

given & 1our step scale sturting at $4,4Uc and reacning & wWeXimum Ol 4,000
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after four years. Uall men receivea $L5u pef yeur,engineers $<>5u per jear and
the qnief eﬂgineer #5U0 per year.

Captein Reymond Connors resigned in lybu. George Wnaien was promotea to
captain and Theodore Clancy was appointea & permenent iirerignter. Iln 1vy603,
Captein James allan retired,richard diggins was promotea to captain &nd rat
Lalli wes appointed & permunent firefighter. Iln april oi tnis saume yeer,
Engineer Henry.Mariani died foliowing & long illness. nis place was liiled Dy
Robert Wnitehouse. When the board organized,kilson was of course elected cniel,
Gruber clerk,but Whitehouse was given no designation,nor diu ne ever nave one
as long as the boara of engineers continued to exist,the appointwent ol nooert
Whitehouse was the last chenge made in tne boara of engineers wanicn was linaily
abolished in 1y68.

In 1964,8 scube diving team was organized oy soume Ol the wen Ol lne
department,it includea Ceptein Richara Higgins and Theodore Ulancy ol tne
permanent torce and Francis ning ana wiliiam Tobey ol the ceil lorce,ootn alng
and Tobey were iater appointed permanent men. This scube team perrormed veiuabie
service in & nuuber oi cowmunities outside ol Mayneara,in tne recovery ol pbodies
of drowning victims.

Captein Howara Clark resignea in LY65 ana Honaid Udssiay was eppointea
a permanent rirefighter,put the engineers aeiayed tne promotion ol & ;jireiignter
to the vacant post of captain. Howard Clerk naa lei't tne aespartwent on sAprili <5tn
and oy the middle of July his position nad not yet been 1iliea. o0 the sSeiect-—
men decided that they would proa the engineers to taxke action on thnis vacancy.
They-sent the board of engineers & letter orcering them to apréar petore
them at their meeting of July <Uth. The engineers appeared at tne seiecuuens
oirice at tne appointed time. wnaturally wWilson acted &s spokeswsn lor tne
engineers,and he proved nimseli to be quite capabie. hlter sume aealea wWorus

from both sides,wilson statea his position very cieariy. He toia tne selectuen
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in words to the effect tnat he was running the fire departuwent and notv the boara
of selectmen,and tost ne intended to continue to run it in his own way &nd ir
they did not lixe the wey he was running it,tney could try to fire him if they
dered. He then turned sround and walxed out of the room,leaving tne selectlmen

dumbfounded. Of course they dropped tne whole aifair like & hot potatove. The

rollowing year,when Wilson's term expired,they all dutifully signed his new
appointment. About & month af'ter this episcde,Welter Croft was nade captain.

The pay scale of capteins was now from $5,850 to §6,250 and that of fire-
fighters wes from $5,250 to $5,0675. The pey of cellmen &nd the engineers
rereined the ssue,$l50 per year for callmen,$<5u for engineers zna $50U Ior the
chief engineer. The pay of callmen was O remein unchanged until 1969.

In the yecr of 196€ a very progressive step wes taken in tae policy ol
the edministration of ti:e department. The senicr ceptain,George Whalen
completed the besic firefighters course at the Massachusetts Firefighting
Acedemy &nd later went cn to teke more advanced courses. He was ifollowea Dy
otiler men of tie departuwent. It nad always been the policy of tne chief To
minimize toe velue of formel training. This was & way of thinking typical ol
most part time chiefs not having time to participate in such programs TLENSELVES,
so did not want tneir subordinates to acguire more knowledge cf the job than
tney hed themselves.

Following Ceptein Whalens completion of the instructcrs course &t tioe
Messecnusetts Firefighting Academy,ne was designated drillmaster of the
depertment. He tioen inaugrated a reguler program of weekly drills for the
permenent men znd semi-montnly drills for tne cellmen. £t first these drilis were
confined to such fundemental evolutions &s nose leying and ledder work. Later

they were expended to cover 2ll aspects of firefighting end prevention.
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In Merch of 1967, Captain Welter Croft retiresd because of disability.
Anthony Arcieri was promoted to captain and Francis King was appointed a
permanent firefighter.

On December 22,1967, Chief Engineer Wilson passed away following & long
illness. The selectmen did not meke an appointment to fiil out Wilson's term,
which ran until April,but allowed the aepartment to drag zlong with tne two
remaining engineers,Gruber and Whitehouse. hs Gruber wes beyond tne &ge limit
where he could serve as an active firefighter,ne could not nold the position
of chief engineer,and as he would not vote to meke Whitenouse cihief,the
department wes without & chief until May of tne roliowing year.

At the annual town meeting,held on March 4,1963,article L7,0on thne warrant,
provided the voters wita their first opportunity to deciae whetaer or not tney
wished to establish the ofiice of chief of the fire department. The vote was
overwhelmingly in favor of adopting the provisions of Chepter 4o oI the Ueneral
Laws,which established the ofiice of chief of tne fire Gepartment. So arter mors
than half & century aiter it was first proposed by Chief Gutteridie,tae aepart-
ment was placed on & businesslike professional basis. Tnis sawme meeting author-
ized three additional permenent men,which provided for four men on duty &t all
times. The salary of the cnief was set wita a minimum of 313U for tne tfirst
year,with a $9,267 maximuu after four years.

Although the selectmen were authorized to weke the appointment of a chief
on March 4th,they did not do so until May,when they promoted the senior ceptein,
George Whelen to the post. Leonara icfenne was promoted to ceptain &and wWilliam
Floyde vas appointed a permanent firefighter. The following wonta,tne three new
Tirefighter positions euthorized by the town meeting were iillea oy the

appointuent of William Tobey,Georgze Hardy and Charles Morrison.
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During 1969,no changes were meae in the perwsanent iorce ol tue dep-
artment.Saleries were adjusted to cive the chnief & new four step scale,
sterting at $10,000 and advancing to #.1U,75V aufter four years.usptains were
given &n $3,300 to $9<50 scale and tirefignters were given §7,<5u minisua
with an $3,000 meximum. The p&y of cell men was reised irom vl5U to ¢3uU per
year,with additional compensation of ¢2.uUV per hour for actusl fire fip.nting
or other emergency work.

¥With the chief having sole control of tne departmentj;many long overaue
improvements were m&de in the areas of fire prevention sna tune woae of cperation
at fires.Regular inspections were established,covering i1 wercantilie &nd
wenufecturing establishuents,ss well &8s schoolis,courches aud @il OtuLEr places
of assembly. Where bad conditions were Iound,iorwsi notices of violations
were given the owners,and the conditions were promptiy corrected. & regular
schedule of preventative maintainance was estaoiished lor &aii &pperetus ana
equipment.with the knowledge gained through courses taxen &t the tire aceaemy,
maximum utilization was made oI the pumping equipment through the use of
prewconnected initial attack lines &nd the use of three incn hose for fecder
lines,with iﬁline pumping.kfiicient use wus wade of tog nozzies una &ir wasks,
The wearing of proper protective clothing was now & must,so that the men not
only looked like firefighters but acted like them.

Chief George Whaien and Captain Leonard Mcienna attendea classes on
municipel fire administration at Massachusetts Say Comuunity voilege.laptains
Higgins and Arcieri attended ciasses on tfire protection at Guinsigimona
Community College.Captain Mcfenua attendea & toree weck course on Fire
Instructor Training &na Firefighters Clancy and aing,attended & two week

course on advanced firefighting at the Massachusetts Fire Training Acaaeay.
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In March of 1970,William Floyde resigned and was replaced by raul

Cobleigh. The annual town meeting of that year,voted a forty eight hour

work week for the permanent men. They had been working a fifty six hour week
since 1955,with three shifts,each shif't working a twenty four hour tour of
duty with the following forty eight hours off. The new schedule eliminated

the twenty four hour tours,by creating a day shift of ten hours and a night
shift of fourteen hours. The adoption of this forty eight hour week required
two additional permanent menf;o meintain the same coverage. Robert DellaRusso
and Robert Bernard were appointed to these positions. In order to have a
captain on duty at all times ,Edward Murphy, the senior firefighter,was promoted
to captain.

In October of 1969,the call force was reorganized. The company system
was abolished. It had not functioned as such for years anyhow. It was replaced
by a four group system;headed by @ call captain,who has authority over all
call men but has no authority over the permanent men and is subordinate to

the permanent officers. The four groups of call men,which presently consist

of five men each,are each headed by & call lietenant.
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Buildings

Prior to the organization of a fire department,the only firefighting equip-
ment owned by the town were a couple of ladders,stored in & shed owned by the mill,
located on the site of the present Post Oftfice Building. In 1s57>5,tne town spent
$1.65 for a padlock and chain to secure these ladders zgsinst unauthorized use.
When the new hose wagon arrived on May 30,1890,it was pleced in this shed. When
the ledder wagon was delivered on August 30,1890,it was put in tnis shea in place
of the hose wagon,which w&as moved over to & smeller shed in the rear of the
Congregational Church. This was only a temporary &arrangement while the new
stetion on Nason Street was being built.

A town meeting held on January 1,1890 had voted to organize &and equip a
fire department. $6,000 was appropriated for land and & building. The committee
named to carry out the project consisted of:Warren Peters,David Henderson,Julius
Loeve,ibel Haynes and M.Howell Garfield.

The first choice of a site considered By this committee,weas the present
location of & gas steation at the intersection of Main and Sudoury streets. Tais
lend was then owned by Artemus Whitney. It was,and still is,&a better location
for the purpose than eitner of the susequent locaticn of the fire department.
However; the committee could not reach a favorable agreement on price,so they
purchased a small parcel of land on the westerly side of Nason Street from Thomes
Brooks at & totsl cost,including legel fees,of $961.66. This is the present
location of the Town Paint Company.

A contract was given to Barker & Marshall of Hudson for $5,435.19,to erect
a two story frame building,without basement,51' X 35' with a 9"X 9! hose towver
ettached to the center of the rear outside wall. The hose tower was about sixzty
feet high,so that full lengths of hose could be hung without folding. Unlike
most hose towers built before this time,this one was not aesigned to nave & bell,

as it was & metter of & few yeers when fire alerm bells were generally



displaced by steam or air whistles.

The building had & hip roof with & gabled dormer in the front. The first
floor,undivided,had two large doors for the spparatus.These were double doors
with spring loaded hinges that swung inward and could only be opened from the
inside.There was & window between these two doors. The entrance to the building

was an ordinary outside door on the south end of the back wall. This door opened

out onto a partly enclosed porch,which held the coal bin. This first floor had a
large gravity hot air furnace located in the rear southwest corner,with a large

pipe running to each of the six rooms on the second floor and a smoke pipe that

ran into the chimney which w&s loceted on the south wall, The whole affair
resembled a giant octopus lying on it's back.

Along the back wall of the‘apparatus room were two flights of stairs,
running up to & landing in the center and directly over the door to the hose
tower,a short wide flight of steps lead from the landing back to the second floor
central hallway,

The second floor was divided into six rooms. The two rooms in front vere
meeting and recreation rooms,the one on the south side was for the hose company
and the other for the ladder company. The next two rooms which were of equal
size,vere located in the middle of the building on each side of the nallway,the
one on the north side was an office for the engineers and the other was fitted
out for a kitchen,with a coal purning range,& small sink room was partitioned off
from the west end of this room.When the first fire alarm system was installed,
the wet cell batteries were placed on shelves in this little sink room,(Jhe two
rooms at the rear corners were &also of equal size,end like the other rooms wWere
nearly squere,these rooms were at first used for smoking rooms,the one on the
south side for the hose company and the other for the ladder company,smoking

was not allowed in any other part of the building.
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Lighting was provided by Kerosene laups. Tnere was no piumoing excepl tue
kitcnen sink ana snothner sm&il sink on the apparatus ILoor,ootn 0L lnese S1NKs
simply drained down into the crawl space unaer tue ouiiaing,siong witn tue arain-
zge Lrom the nose tower. inis waler COLLECled and DecCame sSlagnanl,creating &
problem tnat naa to oe corrected oy bulluing & wasonary suup &l tue Vabe 0L Lne
hose tower and laying & drain iine across Nason dtreet to tane low lana detween
Nason and idain streets.

In 19UU,a toiiet was instalieu in what nea oeen tue nose cowpany SwWOKing
room. In this same year eliectric lights vere instalied in lne station.

Shortly after tne turn of the century there was consiueraoie interest in
establisning a second nose company;to De Locatea eitner on Maynara's nii. or in
the west end ot town,"hs tne depertment still nea the originel ,ignt nose wagon
in storage,it heving been replaced by tne heavier norse Arawn wagon. Juirius woewe
oftrerea the town & giift oif land for & station on marriwan Lourt. Ll wes &l unls
time tn&t tne original sw&ll wooden schous on Muin oireet,on tue site ol ulne
present municipal puilding,was oeinyg repisced Dy & new Orick ouiiuing. lue lire
engineers were interested in acyuiring tnis buliaing «aa converting 1t inw &«
1ire staution, so &t a town meeting in 1yu,,itl wab Voled TO turn s buiiulng
over to the iire aepartwent ana gl,uuu was appuropriatea 10 rewoaes it 1nw &
tire station. However witu the empioyment ol & luii liwe uriver Lor lae (ose
wegon then in service,response was S0 lmproved,tnat Lae luea Ol & »eCUHU slallon

was aropped,aitnougn it was considerca agtln & lew years isler.

In 1903,the station on wason Sireet wus reawodeled vy Jeies mulien L0 aCcomouate

& man &nd horse. The Kitchen was diswzntiea ana convertea 10 a Sie€pllly IOV
which had & hole cut in tne Iloor ana & sliiuing pole insta.ried. Lne Lho Lilgnls
of steirs on the back wall ol the apparatus room wel'c CLOVEW &NA & SlNgle
fiizht was run up irom the miauie ol the floor 10 tune iunuing anc the wiae
steirs i1rom the landaing to tne upstairs naliway were nNarrowea 10 nall Uielr

originel widta. The soutawest corner of the apparatus 11loor was partitioned
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off to allow the installation of two horse stalls. These stalls were equipped with
doors in front,with spring loaded hinges,so that tuhey could be tripped open by &
rope,that ran over pullies,to the foot of the sliding pole,alliowing the ariver to
release the horses as soon as he landed on the floor. 4t first only one horse w&s
used. A fslse ceiling wes built over the horse stails to make & nay lof't,whicn was
lozded with baled hey,through a small door cut in tne south wall oi the puilding.
This loft had only about three feet of headroom,so that the man wno hed to feed
the horses,three times a dey,had to crawl on his hands and knees to open the
bales of hay,shake it out,and poke it down the feeding chutes. The men may have
had to assume a position of prayer,while performing this chore,but it is doubtiul
if his utterances were very pious when he bumped his nead on the low ceiiing,
4 new entrance door was cut near the front of the building,on tae soutn wall.
The old hot air furnsce was replaced by a steam boiier,witn radiators placed
throughout the building including the hose tower.
In 1905,the town sold & strip of land along the south side of the station
despite the fact that thnere was insufficient room around the puilding as it was.
When the hose wagon wes converted to & aouble nitch,in 1906,it cecawe

quite obvious;that the small low apparetus doors,which were designed to accomoaute

hand drewn ap.aratus,presented & serious nezard, 4s the driver nad tc slmost

lay down across the nigh seat,in order to get under the door neader. Tnis was bad
enough with a single horse,but to control a pair of spirited norses,required tne
driver to have both his feet braced solidiy on the tootboard and nave his whole
weight on the reins. To relieve tnis dangerous situation,tne origdnal door openings
were enlarged,both in heighth and width and the smell entrance door on the siae

of the building,was moved out to the front,in place of the window between the

apparatus doors.
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A couple of years later,the men using company funds,purchnased a shower
bath outifit from & local barber wno had decided to get out of tne shower bati
business. The town peid a plumber to lnste.l tuis outfit,whicn consistea of two
wooden shower stalls and a forty gellon not water tank with a gas stack neater,in
the former swmoking room where the rlusn toilet haa oeen previousiy installed.

When the hose company was motorized in 1914,the horses were shif'ted over to
+he ledder side of tne house. Becazuse of the length of the ladder w&gon,tTnere was
not room enough on the apparatus floor for the horse stalis,so & twenty one foot
eddition was built on the rear of the building by John Noraberg &t & cost of $360.
The horse stells were moved over into this addition.

With tce adoption of motor apparatus,the added weight,and tne vipbretion,
pérticularly when heavy tire chains were used,weakened the apparatus floor,which
vas of wood plenking laid on wooden iloor joists. Dampness &and rotting were taking
their toll of &ll of the wooden underpinning,so that constant jacking up and
blocking of the uwein floor was necessary. By 1926,tae north wall of thne builaing
was pulging out at tne bottom,as the sill was completely rottea away in some
places. This side of the building wes jacked up,tune pad ends of tne studding cut
back end a part of tne sill was replaced &t & nigher levei,supported by & concrete
footing. This work was only & siop g&p,us the sSame condition was rast develcping
&1l sround the building,so in 1930 a contract wes given to Ernest sarilone,to
install a complete new concrete foundation end floor, With tnis work & swmall
cellar wes put under the southwest rear corner ol tae buiilding and & new stezm
boiler wes instelled in it. This allowed the neating coils to De lowered irom the
ceiling down to floor level,meking it possib;e 10 neat tae aypafatus iloor prop-
erly. This cellar was below ground water level,end &lthough the cement was water-
proofed,&a crack soon developed tnat seeped water in the cellar constantly,meking
it necessary to bail water out by peilfuls dzily. The only entrance to this
cellar wes through & smzll trap door in the floor and down & vertical stecl

ladder,so the water and ashes had to be hoisted by hend up through this door.
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It was the intent of the board of engineers to instaii an oil burner at tae
time that the new boiler was put in,but s so often nappens,tihe appropriation
was insufficient to complete the job.

Anotner improvement tnat was made,when ine new fioor was put in,was Ulhe
elimination of some of the supporting columns irom the miudle of the apparatus
floor. When the building was built,a row ol wooden posts ran down the center oi
the apparatus room. Most of these posts were removed &nd repléced by & norizontes
steel beam that had been salvaged tfrom the old Walnut Street oridge;this wmade
room for & third piece of apparatus. A short time oefore this work was done, the
men of the department removed the partition petween tne two upstairs iront rooms,
meking one large room across the front of the building. The oniy other cnanges
made to the building werejin 1Y35 when & new pair of overnead doors were put in
place of the old swinging doors. In 194U a slignt change w&s mede in tne stairs,
providing a little more room on the &pparatus floor. After the war,wnen restric-
tions were removed on the use of oil,the boiler was converted from coal to oil.

At a special town meeting,held November 15,1954, 9Ll66,00u was appropriated
to build & new puilding to house both tne police ana fire aepartwents. lne
committee named to carry out this project,consisted of; Leo Mullen,irnest
Marieno,William Naylor,David Pellian,Frank Punch and Haroid Wiicox.

The appropriation was not sufificient to purchase & suit&pie site lor tue
building,so it was squeezed into the sm&ll triangular lot at oumwer and acton
streets,which was already owned by the town. To nave obtainea & more aesiraoie
location would probably required tne taking ot land with obuildings on it,wnicn
would have greatly increased the cost. This Location was not wuch betier than

the old one on Nason Street. The total cost of the building when cowpieted,

was $1l44,115.44,nearly $2<4,000 less than the appropriation.
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Tne builaing itself,lcit mucn to be desireg,uuch valuable SpucCe &nd
money was wastea by tne inclusion of & noSe lLOwer,a Ieature as ouwuoueu &o
norse stells.kucn wooden construction was usea in tne interior.lne iire
slarm equipment was placea in an upstelrs OO, n&ving nu winaows,it nwa &
wooden floor &and wood joists and studuing.khil of tne interior of the buitaing
wes of inferior meterial for & building of it's type,nollow panel adors,
wood floors and lowest grade of fibre board for ceilings.tven tne lisnting
fixtures hed to be replaced in a very short time.nowever,the prick exterior

does at least,present a respectable sppearance 10 peopie entering tone town.
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kpparatus and Equipment
The original appropriation to equip a ifire department provided for tie

purchase of two peices of hand drawn apueratus,fully equipped. A nose wagon

and & ladder wagon. This equipment was furnished by the F.H.Leyes hWagon company
of Clinton Mass. The hose wagon,delivered ready for service on May -0,18%0 at a
cost of $360,was & very light wagon cerrying 60U feet of single jacket two &nd

one half inch hose,two ten quart soda and acid hend extinguishers,en axe,gates,
spanners and nozzles but no hydrant wrench,the originel hydrents were instalied
with spanner lugs on the caps,so that the fire department could remove tihe caps
and sttach their hose,but only the superintendent of the water department could
open tre hydrant,needless io say,this arrangement did not last iong,as tne town
was paying the water department $2,000 per year for hydrant rentel.

In purchesing this type of hose wagon rether then two wheeled reels,which
would have been cheaper,lighter and easier to handle,the committee must neve haa
in mind the eventual use of & horse,as toey ned a peir of detachable sheits,
which could be quickly substituted for the guiding tongue,includea witn the wagon.

The ledder wagon was delivered hugust 20,1890,at a cost of $555,1it too
was fitted out to be drawn either by haend or with & peir of norses,as it was
puch heavier than the hose wegon. The laaders were of solid besi construction,
arrenged in double bank. A basket mounted over tne lecder bed held minor tools.
Two ten quart soce and acic extinguisoers and hall & dozen leatner buckets
completed the equipment.

It should be noted thet the hose company carried no ladder ﬁor aid the
lzdder company carry eny equipment capable of delivering water éxcept the
leather buckets,cso that each company operated pretty much independent of the

other. If there happened to be wmore hosemen early at the scene of & fire
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then were needed,the hosemen might stand and watch a couple of laaaerwen
struggling to raise a heavy ladder that required tne use of four or five men to
reise properly and safely. In fact tney would probably jeer and taunt tnem.
Although we have no records of such neppenings in our fair town,taere were many
instances,in other places,where rival companies engaged in fisticulis in tne
middle of the street wnile a building burnea. An entry in the records oI Maynard
Hose 1,made in 1900,reads:-"Every mun snould stand by tne loreman and get 1o toe
scene of the fire before the hook and Ladder,as we are tne most important factor.
The hook and ladder imagine that they are the people,but what a mistake. It is «
waste of energy ror them to tire tnemselves out running to & fire tor tne suke
of getting there first. What would tne result pe? For a moment,imsgine twenty
men strung out six hundred feet,passing tnose little tomato cans nali 1ull oL
water,and finaliy emptying nothing on the Ilemes,only tO be repeatea untii tne
building is a snapeless mass of ruins. We are the people. We carry tne apparatus,
which with water,destroys tire. Let us be tirst in fire,first in water,iirst in
everytning."-

During tne first few years of tne department,tne apparatus was puilea Oy
nand,with ropes. But gradually,nirea livery stable norses and sometimes norses
being used by some tradesman wno happened to be handy,took over tuis ourden.

In 1396,the first addition to tne equipment was made,witn tne purchase ol
a fifty five foot solid beam extension ladder,referred to &s & boston Laquer.
Built by the Moulton Ladder Company of Somervilile. Tnis laaaer requirea ten men
to handle it properly,it was a monstrous atfair. The ily laader was extenaed
by means of a rope running over & pulley and back 10 & winaiLass &t tne oase Ol
the main ladder,sn arrangement similar to that used on some Of tne earliy aeriai
ladders. There was & removapie crank on eacn end ol tue cross spait wnicn
meant that it required two men just to raise tne Ily. Aitnougn olten raisea in
practice sessions,there is no record ol it ever naving been used al a lire.

When tne old ladders were sold at auction in lvlix,nobody woulq nake & oia on
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it,so it laid on the ground,up &t tné old town iarm,untii soweone suaweu il up
for firewood.

In 1897,to comply with the tenement house law,the departuwent purcnased
a life net for the ladder company at & cost of §3u.uu.

By 190u,the apperatus was no longer drawn Dy aend,nhorses being nired ifrom
the livery stables,& singie horse for the hose wegon &na & puir for the iaader.
Drop harnesses were installed in the station &t this time. The term arop narness
was & misnomer. No part of the harness &ctually dropped on the horse,it nad to be
pulled down. Most writers have been inclined to glibly descrive the anitcaing
operation &s & marvel of simplicity,usuelly saying sowetning ilike this: Al tne
sound of the gong the stall doors flew open and the horses run out uader tue
harness,vwhich droppea down on thelr backs &and they dushea out tne woor. inis was
oversimplification. The hsarness,to start with,difterea greuily in Gesign irom &
regular work harness. First the bridle,which wuas actusily & haiter witn & oit
attached,was worn at all times by the animul. This precliuded tne use ol wny type
of harsh bit. The usual type of bit used was the simple jointed oit. Tnis (ype
of bridle also lacked plinaers,which gave the aniwal unrestrictea vision in all
directions,which meant that the animai had to be well trainea. Thne usual
collar and hames were not used,but inste&d,a combination coiler «na nawes,waicn
hinged at the top and fastened at the bottom was used. This type of compbination
coller was not heavily pedded lixe the usugl wWOrk coliar,out was usually
made entirely of metal with no padding &t all. No neck yoge or bucking straps,
just a short length of chain of about three links connected the ena ol tne pole
to the side of the éollar of each horse. A very inefficient nitcn ror bucking
or holding back the wagon going downnill. However,the w&gons werc always
equipped with braxes so thnat the ariver haa control ol tag wagon on aown

grede and as all wagons were ol the cut unaer type,tne; could oe turned
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around in their tracks without backing. When it was necessary to back up,such
as backing into the station,there were &lways men enough around to put a
shoulder to the wheel.

The harness was suspended from the ceiling by ropes running over pulliies,to
counterweights along the wall of the building. In later years,tnese pullies and
weights were displeced by spring loaded drums which rolled up the supporting
ropes when they were released from the harness.

Although there were some almost unbelievable time records for nitching a
team and getting out on the street,these fast hitches were usuelly mede by
compenies in large cities,vhere they averaged some half dozen runs & day,end with
& full crew of permanent men,wno worked together like an etheletic team,ezch
men performing a predetermined specific operation,allowing the driver to only nave
to climb up on the seat. However in & department like Maynard's,the driver
was fortunate to have anyone to help him hitch. When the horses were releesed
from their stells,they seldom stopped in exactly the right spot under the nerness,
so would have to be backed up end nudged over under the harness,the open
collar pulled down and snapped shut,the reins had to be snepped into the bit
rings,the breechings had to be pulled down and the horse's teil pulled out over
it. Then the most dangerous move of &ll had to be mede,by reaching under toe
obelly of the keyed up animal,to reach and fasten the girth.

Although meny stylish cerraige horses had cropped teils,this was never
done with fire horses,even though it would have eliminated one move in hitch-
ing. In fact,few departments clipped the menes of their horses,one notable
exception being the city of New York. kith the team in Maynurd it was a
necessity to clip their manes,ss the horse,Tony,generally referred to &s"The crab",
beceuse of his ornery disposition,had to be constentiy restrained irom biting

his mate,by keeping the outside reins shorter than the middle splice reins,
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this pulled the horses heads around in opposite directions,if it were not for
the chains between the collars and the pole,one norse would heve gone up Nason
Street and tne other down the street,when toey cane out the door. When they were
running, their heads were pulled around to the outside until they touched tneir
collars,so if they had long flowing manes,tney would have peen constantly
snarled up with the reins and the guide rings.

In 1902, 1000 feet of new nose was purchased,tals was tne first repiacement
of hose. The original supply of hose was now twelve years old and was no longer
dependable. In those times hose was not treated 10 resist rot and milaew.

The light hose wagon,which was never meant to be pulled witn & DOTSE,
or carry tne weight of tne men,was of constant concern to thne engineers. The
springs were sagging and the axels had to be removed ana straightened out
after any run over & rough road,so $350 was appropriated for & new hose wWagon.
The new wagon was built by the Keyes Wagon Company oI Ciinton,builders of tne
original hose wagon. Although the price was ten dollars less,this new wagon
was much heavier tnen the old one and carried 150 feet more hose,making tae
hose load 750 feet. It was convertable to either single or double nitch. Shortly
pbefore the new wagon was gelivered in July of 1l90<,a rear wheel coliapsed on
the old one,vwhile responding to a grass fire in the New Village. The wheel haa
to be replaced. When the new wagon was placed in service,tne old one was given
a fresh coat of paint and varnish and placed in STOTage. In one year aione,
forty dollars was paid for storage of this wagon which was never used again.

By 1903 it was getting difficuit to obtain & suitable norse irom tne
livery stables to pull the hose wagon. As the new wagon was much neavier than
the old one,a light driving horse could not puil it up Nason Street,around
the cormer and over the railroad crossing. People on tne street wouid push it.

Another problem that was concerning tne selectmen,was tnat of sprink-

ling the streets. In dry weatner it was just about impossible to hire &
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team &s they were &ll busy haying at tnat time of year. So it was progosed that
the town buy & horse and hire & full time driver for the hose wagon. The cost
would be partly offset by doing the street prinkling. The men could also do the
jenitor work in the stetion and take care of the fire alerm batteries,meking &
smell savings on these items,slthough the people wno were doing tuis wWOrk,
received only & token payment for their time &nd efrort. The station wes remodeled
to provide living quarters for the man and horse. Thomas: F.(Tony,Collins was
sppointed the permenent driver of the hose wagon &nd custodizn of the station.

A dark,dappled grey horse,weighing 1420 pounds,was bought for $<50,irom
the seles stable of Webb Robbins,in East Acton. £ new one horse watering cart
was bought for $289 and & shed wes built for it,in back of thne station,zt & cost
of $129.8€.

The winter of 1904 saw & lot of snow,and with no snow removal in those days,
it became necessary to lay up the hose wegon and purchase & one horse delivery
pung,from the W.A.Heynes Company,znd pack the hose load in it.

By 1905,the engineers had become disenchented with their horse. Truly ne
was & fine looking enimel,sound of wind and limb,znd well mannered,but ne was in
the wrong job. He should heve been pulling & plough,he h&d one speed,slow. He
was sold for $130. A new horse was bought for $300,irom the Charles lianson
Sales Stable in Lowell. After about & year with this horse,the engineers decidea
that possibly,the slow performance,particulerly on the hills,wes not entirely
the fault of the horse,they were just expecting too much from cne norse,so tue
wagon was converted to & double nitch and another norse was purchased. hgain
from the Charles Hanson Sales Stable for $300. After a couple of years of satis-
factory service with this team,one of the horses developed a condition that was
generally referred to as,"Monday morning leg",s condition wnere aifter &

couple of days of idleness,z leg would swell up and stiifen. after a litile
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exercise the swelling would qguickly go down and the horse's gait would return to
normel with no epparent ill effects. However in the fire service there was no time
for this limbering up process,so he was sold for $111.35 (Horse traders drove a
hard bargain). 4 new horse was bought from the Hanson Stable for $300,the third
horse from the same stable for the same price.

In July of 1908,while hitching,the horse"Tony"sterted up before his mate was
hitched,pulling the wagon ahead enough to catch & hind ieg of the free norse under
a front wheel of the wagon,disabling the animasl. The hose wagon was then convertea
back to & single hitch and for the next three months,all kinds of patent remedies
were tried,to reduce the swelling and lameness of the injured horse;all to no
avail. Finally Dr.Henry Aldermen of East Lexington was called in,and he disgnosed
the injury as & split pastern bone,which is the short bone between the fetlock
and the hoof,and he was of the opinion that there was no hope of cure,so the
animel was humanely put out of the way.

As it was necessary to obtein another horse,Chief Engineer Uoughlen ana
Tony Collins took an early morning train to Boston,end after looking over &
number of horses in the various sales stables that then lined Canal Street,were
not satisfied with any that they saw,so took & trein to Lowell,back to The
Henson Stable again. As tney walked into the staople yard,they spotted a beautiful
dappled gray gelding,tied to the tailboard of an express weagon. Inquiry revesaled
that he was one of a select pair that had been bought for & very particuier
customer end thet his mate had died of shipping fever,a motion sickness that
effected most young horses thet were shipped long distances in freight cars.

As this horse had not fully recoversd from the shipping fever himself,Cnief
Coughlen and Tony Collins left the sules stable without & definite commitment
to purchese him,but returned in a couple of deys to find the animal fully
recovered. They bought nim for $335,tne highest price the department ever

paid for & horse. Their secret ambition was to eventually get rid of tne
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older horse"Tony"and get & better match for the new horse called"Prince",tor

the only similarity between tne two horses was tneir color,tne new horse being

. nearly two hands taller and & couple of hundred pounds heavier than"Tony". he was

intelligent,obedient and gentle mannered yet spirited,while"lony"was mean and
tricky,he could not be trusted for & minute. But they were destined to work
together for the next fifteen years.

By 1909 it hed become impossible to obtain dependable service with hired
horses for the ladder wagon. The horses used were hack horses,so during & funeral
they were unavailable. Often when there was & large funeral out of town,there
would be no horses available ifor hours,so an article was placed on the warrant
for the annual town meeting,to purchse snother pair of horses for tne ladder
vagon., The article was badly beaten. The Meynard News,in it's account of thne

meeting,steted that the voters appeared to care less,now,if ever tue iaader

vagon got to a fire,

The engineers then enterea into an agreement with W.0.Strout,who operated
& furniture moving and teaming business,to furnish a pair of horses ror the ladcer
wagon for a flat price of $5.U0 per week,whether they were used or not.

In 1910,four salvage covers were bought for the laader compeny. st tais
time only a rew of the large cities were using this equipment. £S5 neariy aul
roof's were covercd with wooaen shingles,many of the Iires viere roor fires,wnicn
meant that water would run down througn the whole house. It would be nard to
estimate how many times these covers paid for themselves in saving furnishings
and other goods from damage by water.

By this time the condition of the ladder wegon had gone from bad to worse,
exels were sprung,wheels were loose and wobbly,and the men of the ladaer company
nad mede & formal compaint in writing,to the boara of engineers concerning
the hazardous condition of the wagon. 4t the annual town meeting held in Merch

it was voted to have & special comnittee investigate the need of & new ladder
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wegon. Named to tais comwittee were; Chief Uougnian,Jaies ULeary,Julius LO€we,hDel
Haynes and Joseph Gately. This committee reportiea 10 & special Town weeting on
April 4,1910,that the old wagon was§ unsale 10T Use &nd 5Suould O replaCed. WO &Cllow
wes teken at this time,out thne foillowing year at tane «nnual 1Own meeting neld on
hpril 3,1911; ¢1,38U0u was votea to purchase & New wagon.

A contract was given to a Walthem wagon builider,Jamnes wuiien,to turnisn tae
department with a fully equipped two horse ladaer wagon. wnen tnis wapon was
delivered on November 7, i9ll. It was & bDeautiiul looking piece o1 equipment. 1t
had a steel trame,hrchibald wheels witn Dall Dearings ana rubber tires;it nad aulo-
mobile type brukes and was equipped wita hmericun wualkrance trussea ladcers,a 1iity
foot extension witn guy poles,a thirty iive icot extension,two Unenty 1ive 100t
straight wall and roof ladders,along with & nuwper of snorter ladders,all wiln
folding roof hooks,mexing & total ol one hundrea ana ninety nine leet Ol LaQders.
Along with & full complement of plasSter HOOKS,8Xes,Crowdars,ropes,t 1alg€ pulidown
hook &nd other minor tools. nowever,as line a looking rig &s 1l wab,it was already
on it's way towards oDsolescence. w0tor appéaraius ned oeen in use 1n weny aepart-—
mWents IOT severel years and was constantiy proving it's ouperiority over norse
drawn spparatus. Uespite lne sentiment atiacned 0 lne glawOrous 1ire norse,uls
days were already nuabered.

The old laader wagon and equipwent were sola pleceweal &l auction,tue ilas
sun realized oy the town being §«~<.uu,aller vniel Loughian tue auctivneer,uwd
aeaucted his commission.

In 191<,W.0.Strout informea the oo&ra of engineers tnal ne wanled T
terminete nis agreement to iurnish the norses 1or tane Lauuer wagon. liae
engineers then oilerea him $5.UU per week 1l ne woulda continue lne arratgeiient,
tnis ne agreed toj;butl not ior any aelinite tiwe, &1a nNe suggeStled lual loc
engineers give their best eftorts towaras linaing sowe alteranstive. many
people tnougnt tnet Strout nad tne town OVEr Ulune proverovisal Darreljas L€ L&G

tue only available team neavy enoughn to nanaie tne new wagon whicn was iar
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too heavy for the light hack horses tnat had peen used with tne old wegon, This
was an unfair assumptioﬁ,as Strout was & practical and successiul business uen
vhose word was & bond,and when ne said that he would nave & suitable team &t the
department's immediste disposal at all times,that is exactly what he meent and
did. He had one team that delivered freight to the downtown district irom the
freight house on Main Street,so with the commitment to the fire department,this
teem could not be utilized for much of anything else. 4 less scrupulous person
vould no doubt have taken chences and sent this team out on other jobs that would
heve taken them a considerable distance from the Iire siation. It &lso meant
having someone aveileble twenty four nours & day,every day of the year,to get the
team out in case of an alarm,there was also the high risk of &accident,running
with the horses at night,from the barn on Concord Street,down over Brooks Street,
to the fire station,was & peril to life and limb,especially during the winter,with
hard packed snow and ice on the streets.

Milton"Jack"Vinitney,who worked for Strout many years,recalls &an incident,
vhen Willism"Husky"Hegerty wes delivering the freight in the business district,
He hed loaded the load in the ususl manner,with the first delivery on the beck
of the wagon and the last up front,this last aelivery was a snipment of penny
candy,packed in wooden cuckets,consigned to Lord!'s store at the corner of Welnut
end Parker streets. Hagerty had got rid of most 6r his load and was neading up
Perker Street with only the shipment of candy buckets stacked up in toe front
end of the wagon,which had the tailboard dowm,when suadenly the tire wnistle biast-
ed out. The horses leaped forward,tipping over the stack of candy buckets,
rolling them out in the street and smashing most of them open. The resulis were a
field day for the small fry and & pbiil for the truckmen Strout.

At the first of the year of 1913,Strout gave the englneers & deedline of
April to meke some other arrangement for tae ladder wagon,tne job was costing him

money. The engineers were traveling around to demwonstrations of new wtor
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apparatus. Late in the year of 1912,tne engineers had made a trip to Lawrence
and inspected a motor ladder truck that had been converted from a late model
horse drawn rig similar to Maynard's. The equipment had been transferred from
the horse drawn running gear to.a White fire apparatus chassis,a twenty ilive
gallon chemical tank was mounted in place of the driver's seat and & narrow
hose bed had been mounted along each side of the truck,each bed having &
capacity of 500 feet of two and one half inch hose. The White Motor Company was
one of the earliest successful producers of motor fire apparatus and commercial
trucks. Although taey no longer specialize in fire apparatus,tney are today
one of the leading producers of high grade heavy duty commercial vehicles. aAnd
their early model fire trucks gave years of excellent service. The engineers
were in unanimous agreement that this was the truck that tney wanted.

On December 26,1912,a special town meeting was held Ior tne express
purpose of resolving the ladder wagon problem. Arthur Coughlan,the assistant
chief engineer was also the moderator of tnis meeting. The board of engineers
at this time,consisted of,George Gutteridge,chief ,Coughlan,assistant cniel
and Jemes Cleary,clerk, After lengthy discussion and debate,tnere were sStill
many people who were not convinced that the motor truck was superior to
horses,tae meeting was adjourned To January 9,1913. At which time it was SO
voted:—-—" To instruct the engineers to purchase a chassis at a price not
exceeding $4,500,according to the plan of tne engineers,namely,to place &
motor propelled chassis under the present hook and ladder truck,so that it
can carry,in addition to it's present equipment,l,000 feet of two and one
half inch hose and a twenty five gallon chemicel tank.'This was tne wording
of the article which was moved by Chief Engineer Gutteridge and voted Dy
the meeting. There seems to be no room for doubt as to what the intent of

either the engineers or the voters was. The engineers stated tnatl they
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intended to accept the proposal of O.F.Aress & Son of Lawrence,who had agreed

" to furnish the chassis and perform all of the necessary work,for the sum of

$4,000. The $500 balance of the appropriation,would allow the purcnase of 1,00V
feet of additional hose. This plan seemed to have had considerable merit,as it
would have more than doubled the effectiveness of the department,as -the -horse -
drawn hose wagon carried only 750 feet of hose and did not have a chemical
tank. The Maynard department,unlike most small town departments,did not even
have a single hand drawn hose reel kept in reserve. All of their readily
available hose was carried on the one wagon.

With $4,500 at their disposal,the engineers were besieged by salesmen,
some of whom represented companies that had not yet built their first machine.
In April,a representative of the Underhill Motor Company of Boston was given

permission to demonstrate a Knox - Martin tractor on the ladder wagon. They

sent a man out with the machine for a two week trial,with no opbiigation to the
town and the company agreeing to compensate the town for any damage that they
might cause. The king pin was released from the front wheels of tne ladder
wagon which was then jacked up and the front wheels and axle,witn tne rirtn
wheel were removed,the tractor,which was fitted with a rif'th wheel,vwas backed
under it and hooked up in the seme manner as & modern tractor trailer rig.

The most unusual feature of tnis tractor,was tnat it had only a single
wheel in front,like a tricycle. It also had but a single headlight,mounted on
a swivel in the middle of the dashpoard,witn a kerosene lamp on each side.

The headlight burned gas and had to be lit wita a match. The motor had to De
hand cranked,with the crank on the side of the machine,like a hurdy gurdy.

The advantage claimed for the three wheel arrangement was that it was supposed
to be able to negotiate sharp corners better than the conventional lour

wheeled machine,but this was debatable at tne time,and soon proved to pe

€rroneous,
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During the two weeks that this machine was on trieal,it answered twWo alarms,
one for a small fire at 19 Raiiroad Street and the otner for & orush fire on
Great Road near the cemetary. It wes driven around the streets oif the town
deily,hoping to impress the taxpayers. It failed to arouse much enthusiasm and

the town wes fortunate that they dia not buy one,despite the attractive price or

$2,700,8s they proved to be unmanageable in snow or frozen ruts,of which tnere
were plenty in those days. In a couple of years the company w&s out Ol business
and repair parts were unaveilable.

Chief Gutteridge continued to look around at new apparatus;in wWaitneaw ne
witnessed the demonstration of & new American LaFrance nose truck,ne was Very
much impressed with it's performance. He came up with tne idea oi purchasing &
new motor hose wagon and shifting the norses over to the ladder wagon. He was aole
to sell his idea to Engineer Coughlen but the tnird member oI the board,James
Cleary,would have none of it. Cleary maintained that it wes not what tne town
meeting had voted. (See page b 1I)

Coughlan and Gutteridge entered into & contract with Americen LalFrance to
furnish & hose truck with a chemical tank,tnen called & combination,&s it Was &
combination of what were usualiy two seperate pieces ol norse drawn &apparaius;

a hose wagon and a chemical wagon. Cleary reiused to sign tne contract so it wus
executed with only two signatures,which w&s & majority of the poard. The price

of this truck was $5.58.50,wnich wes over $600 more than the approprietion. Tnere
was evidently enough fat in their reguiar budget to make up the aiilerence.

Later there was another added item oI expense entailed in altering tne station

to accomodate the horse stalls on the other side oi the building.

However one thing must be saia for the dealj;taey could nol u&ave acguirea
a better truck. American LaFrance is one of the iew wmanuiacturers ol iire

apparatus at tnat time that is stiil in ousiness and one of the leaders in
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the field. Some of the mtKkes consiaered are now alwost Iurgoiten,sucn ab Weuy,
Thouas Flyer,Stoddard Dayton,fope Hertfora,usriord Lﬁa bOJjG.

The new truck was delivered rebruary 4, iyl4. 11 was Known s & Lj7p€ len;
builders number 365. Tne body was of &n unusual design,it hed llarea sides,witu
seats running along each side,the ilengta of the vody,w.dch geld I,uuu lcetl OI TwO
and one half incn hose. A forty gallon chemical tank was under uthe drivers seat,
with <50 feet of one inch chemical nose in & metal basket wountea over uine iront
end of tne hose bed.- Taere were two ten quart haund extinguisners on tue right
running board and & twenty eight foot extension &ana & fourteen lcot rool iaaaer
slong with & piaster hook mountea on tnis side,wnich was tne drivers sice.

The motor was & four cylinder Continental oi' 77 horsepower;uore luen twice
the norsepower of a commercial truck of it's size. It haa & Gray « Lavis ,Two
wire,electrical system with & starter,vwhich was &n optional item,&nd was to.oe lor
a number of years afterj;as many fire officials were of the opinion tnet an
electric starter wuas not dependeble on & heavy truck motor. 1ihis one never gave
any trouble. Another optional item wes a Jones speedoumeter, tne invention ot &
West Concord man. This speedometer,which w&s driven by & caoie Irow & gesl On
the right front wheel,ned & telitaie nand wnich stopped &t the maximum speed
attained and required a key to be set oack. Tne motor was equipped with waut
was fnown &s the Pederson lubricating system.'an oil tank under tne nocoa wuich
neld aoout a gallon,feeding tne oil by gravity directly to the wain bearings,
tarougn sight feed arip glasses on tne dashnooara. Thne disaavantage ol tuis
system was that the driver was inclined to be too generous witn the oil Ieeu
rate. c&using excessive smoking &t tne exnaust. Tne later woaels were equipped
witn the present day type of crankcase witn & pump &nd wost departwents nad
their trucks chenged over;but this one never was. linal drive wes oy chains
from & jacksheft to the rear wheels. Tne differential ana the transwission

were in a single unit. The transmission had three forward speeds,with the
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shitting lever &nd hand orakes on the outsiue sLut over the right hana running
board, the shifting pattern was wnat was generaily cewiedjolfl hand,tuel 1o tue
first gear was in the lower right nend position on tne guadrant. Tae tires

were 38 X 45 Dayton Alrless,with dual tires on tne rear. Tne Dayton kirless

tire was & _compromise between & solid &and & pneumatic. It was wude &nd wounted
like a pneumatic tire but instead of heving an inflated inner tube,it hed DLOCKS
of solid rubber in the casing,they were more expensive then either tne so.la or
pneumatic tire and hed & very snort life. This truek wuas &n excelient perioruer,
it could climb up Dartmouth Street &s well &8s any pasSsenger cuar.

When the new truck wes pliaced in service,tne Lwo norse nose wagdll wasd
placed in storage in the sned at tne rear of the station,uispiuacing the oid
one horse hose wagon which h&a been stored there. Tue one horse wegon was Soid
to Harry Fishman the junk collector for $<7.uu. Shorn oi it's steps,nunarails
and other zppurt€nances and given & co&t of green peint,it wes reaucea w tne
ignomineous role of hauling old rags &na bottles and being arawn by & poor ola
neg who wes only & short trip from the glue ractory.

The first slarm that tne new truck responded to,wus Lor a lire on February
24,1914 when box torty two,at the corner of voncoru &na Irement streets came in
at 4850 P.M. 4 milk shed in tne rear of the burn oi Dsnial Parmenter was Lully
involved causing & totel loss. Tais sned was located at aovut wnat is now the
corner of Walcott and Lewis streets,then an open field. Tony voliins urove the
truck through deep snow,as close to the puilaing &s possible,tne torty galion
cnemiéal tenk wes discharged but proved o ve entirely ilnadeyuate to control
the fire. In attempting to turn around &nd cowe Dack out, the rear waeels ol tue
truck slid over &n incline,with cnains only on the outside reur dusl waeels
Collins was unablie to move,tne more ne spun the whneeis, e worse oLl ne

seemea to be getting,the crowd of spectators continued o grow. lne cries of
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uGet a horse"grew louder,and soon even Chief Gutteridge realized tnat it wes
going to take more then one horse to get the truck besck up on lLevel ground.

Dan parmenter had & fine pair of heavy dreft horses in his barn. Chiei
Gutteridge asked Dan if he would hook his team onto the truck. The chiel must
not have chosen the right tone of voice,as Dan,who required considerable tact
end diplomecy to deal with,geve nim a curt "No sir’ and went into his house.
After a few minutes of thought,Dan probably realized what & precarious position
the town was in. All of the aveailable fire hose in town was useless,stuck out
in his barnyard. There was no hose on the ladder wagon.Sc he came out and told
Chief Gutteridge,that if he would shut off the truck motor,turn off the lignts
and quiet the crowd of hecklers,that he would puli tne truck out onic Concora
Street. This he did,out it left Chief Gutteridge in &n emparrasing position,
with the worse to come;the annual town meeting was oniy a few days away.

Sure enough,on the night of town meeting,when the appropriation for the
fire department came up,the verbali brickbats flew thick and fast. Une local
charecter,Jim Hapgood,who believed that nis bicycie was the ultimate in trans-
portation,ridiculed the department and called the motor truck their playtning,
their teddy bear.

The hostility of the voters towards fire department expenditures in the
town meetings of 1914 and 19i5,wes probebly one of the reasons for tne depart-
ment being so slow to motorize tne ladder truck. The annual report ot 1yl7 mentions
the ever increasing cost of keeping the horses,but no action was taken towards
a change. Ln the 191Y town report,the engineers state tnat the apparatus was in
first class condition except for one horse that should have been at Hed hcre
Farm(a retirement farm for old horses)taree years ago. By 1Y<>,tne norse Fony™
wes in bad snape. Bill wuinn,the driver,nad to Keep the whip on nim constaatiy,
while at tane same time keeping a tight rein on him to keep nim from biting
his mate.

William Naylor became Chief Enginecr at this time and ne was very anxious
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not only to eliminate the expense oi keeping the horses but also to eliminate tne
pay of the driver as well. He proposed motorizing the ladder company and reverting
back to one permanent man, depending on call men to run to the station &nd drive
the ladder truck. He was overuled by the rest of the board on the latter proposal.
So at a special town meeting held July 30,19<3,$6,500 was appropriated to purchase
a new motor ladder truck.

At this time there was a radical difference between & commercial truck ana
fire apparatus. Fire apparatus was of a highiy speciaiized design. any attempt to
adapt a commercial truck to the fire service was at best a poor makesniit,partic-
ularly in & ladder truck,which required a longer wheelbase than tne commercial
vehicles built at that time,it was still ten years away irom tlne successiul use
of a commercial chassis for first line fire apparatus.

Any of the standard makes of ladder trucks,at this time,would have cost
around $7,000 completely equipped with new ladders and a booster tank. Sut tae
engineers were going to save money at any cosSt,sO & contract was awarded TO Tae
Combination Ladder Co. of Providence R.I. to transier tne equipment irom the old
horse drawn ladder wagon to a Federal commerciai truck chassis whica haa peen
extended about five feet.The total cost of tne chassis and work oeing $5559.

Evidently these people did not trust measurements,as they nad the horse
drawn wagon stripped of all of it's ladders and other equipment,wnich was loaded
in a freight car and shipped To Providence so the truck could be oullt to Iit
the equipment. AS one wag remarked,"lt was like bringing & oung to & cooper
to have a barrel puilt around it Meanwhile tne aepartment nad only the one
twenty eight foot extension ladder and the fourteen foot rooi laaaer that was on
the hose truck to use in case of fire. Aiter some prodaing by some of tne mill
officials,the engineers went out and borrowed some olda ladaers from tne Local
painters and tied them onto tne skeleton of the lsader wagon witn pieces ol

ciothes line. Driver Bill wuinn always said that ne was thankful tnat ne dia

not have to go out on the street with tnis rig. Ladders spattered witn paint
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of &ll the colors of the reinbow &na tnen some; &ana with the waite ciotaes line
it Lookea like something that you would see in & nhorribles parsae.

The truck errived January <,lY<4. Tne wan who aeliverea it,packea it invo
the station and as quick as ne could get one of tne engineers to sign tae
receipt of delivery disappeard. Tnis truck aia not have & reueewing feature.
The ladders were carried in & single bank,sn outmoaed aesign wnich made tne
vwhole rig a couple oif feet higner th&n was necessary. 1t had no pooster tank,
running boards were of wood,whereas the ten year old American LalFrance tnat
stood beside it had no wood in it's body construction &t ail. Lt naa no warning
lights of any kind,and no siren,the only warning device it nud was & swail
bress bell tnat nea & tone ilke a placksmitn striking his anvii. Actuaily
warning devices were not too important,as swall boys on bicycles would easiliy
pass this truck on tne way to a iire,even thougn tne accelerator was cown 1o
the 1io0r.

The Federal truck haa & iour cylinaer motor oI 10Tty UWO OUTSEROWET,

a lour Iorwerd speed trensmission was mountea &about hall wey vack oetween e
ciutcn and the worm gear rear end. The welght oI the trenswission in the
midale of the stretcned out irame,causea the wnoiLe Truck TO spring up &nd
down in the miadle. This stretched out arrangement made il necessary 10 use
five universal joints in the drive line. Tires were pneumatic, 4U X & clngles
on the rear and 36 X 6 on the iront. AS the iongest laaders naa TO DE TILN Uy
under the drivers seat,the gas tank w&s moved Out on thne lel't nand running
boaraja fire hazard in itself. Brakes were two wheel mecnsnical ana aic not
hold too weil.

Wnile tne department stiil had the norses and tne WO NOrSE LOSE Wagull,
they laid up the LaFrance hose truck 1or some repairs and uinen sent it over
to West Acton to Costellio's paint shop 1or a coat ol varnisn. Yiacing tne

horse drawn nose wagon in service in it's place.
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On J&nusly <c,i¥<4, 00X <4,iL0Cetec T tne coruer vl furaer vtrcetl &anu
Rooseveit Street,cewe in at 1Vl f.i. Josepn Ferreil,e wewoer ol tue Duera ol
engineers,wno slept &t the stution,tovk tne iedder truck,Tony voliine <na sils
wuinn hitched tae horses to the hose wagon.lne, aud toe LOTSES pitcunea «o soon
&s Ferreli could get the motor started on tne truck,tie, Sterted out tne ducre
et about the seme time.The old norses must nave sensed tnet it was 1O e tuelr
last hour of glory,for they run oetter thun ihey hed Tun 10T jeals,ul Course
the hose wegon wes much iignter tnan tne iucder wegon tnet tuey vere useu to
puiling.~s they stertea aown vuiuer otreel, L v Iluw tue IiTe L1l lie wa),
it wes tue grocery store ol Jonn Salss,ioceled on Lue ecol sile Ul selach L LLEET,
between surns vourt and Fowler vireet,fuliy involved.lie Uetw Oelli/ sluned
down on tne long up grade,irow faper ii.il worner to Fowler otrest,wuere tuey
ned to turn eround &U Tie nyArent &ad lay nose ovaca 1o tue Iire.lucy Lica lue
line ieid end water on tie iire oelore tue LaGUer TIUCKL sul there.

Toe LOTSE Arewl LeUUET WegOl habd S0LG O & gTudp Ul Vuluuleels il herwick
R.I. who ifittec it witi & oliristie trector &nQ used it iur quile & ich joelb.
The horses were Kept until tue marcn TWOwWn weelllg wield it wes vVuTeuw O
retire them to Hed acre Furm on april 1,19%«4.Tae norse "iongMwes o0 wean Towl
ae coula not be turned out to pusture with tue other wOrses,so wes pul out Ul
toe wey."Princeludepted quickly to nis new cuvirenment auad et Tiwes wewo w1uidied
to local fermers wno used nia ior iight Ierm work.Tae Tip Cartl and uvie wegdn
were sold to Mertin feterson [Or ¢7u.uu.lue DOSE hwapll has 1udl scen OL Lue
Frecmen ferm &t Fletcner vorner witu it's gold siriping &nd setlering stidis
intect.

Not lung eiter tue Peueral lecder TIUCA WS piaCU Ll SeTVLICE,&i: olil
cume in irca toe street 0OX &T Uie Corler ul melld CITEcU aliv Uleel ld.
fortunetel; it wes ONLy & gTeéss 1ire,&s tue Lo@Qer LUUCK LeVel ul vl Tie

aour,tue eutire transmisecivn 04G f&ilien &p&erl &Nl wWas Ljlig vi Tue LiuuT.

An exswination of tue pieces ol tihe transwlisciun Case revesaled sl it ned
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been demaged in an accident and painted over. The Federal Company aeniea any
responsibility,claiming that they had never sold the town of Maynerd & truck,
end whet the town had,as far as tuey were concerned,was & used truck tunat the
town had bought from the Combination Ladder Company. The Combination Ladder
Company in turn,denied any responsibility,claiming that they were body builders
and were never in the motor vehicle business,so the town paid the bill.

As the ladder truck had no more equipment on it taan toe old norse darawn
wagon,tue wire basket on top was extended about six feet and packed with rive
hundred feet of two and one half inch nose,meking it a iittle more useiul if
and wnen it ever did get to & fire.

To conform with & state law which became effective in 19<6,&il nyarants;

hose couplings,nozzles and other fittings,nad to be changed over to standerd

thread. For when the town installed their water system,tne mill naa four ayarants

in their yard which had & tine pipe threaa,so instead of tihe mill chenging
their threads to standard,the whole town was put in with mongrel thread,viicn
wae to be & source of expense and trouble for yeers.

In this seme year of 1926,we hed & very neavy snowiall,ana only the wain
roads through town were plowed,so the two horse pung was taken out of storage
and loaded with nose ad & pair of horses were nired from BSarilone prothers, tue
contractors. This team wes kept in the station until tne first of May,when
finally all of the streets in town were passeble.

A new life net was purcnesed in 1946 &t & cost of $175. This net wes
known &s a Greenfiela net,named for tne Unio city where it was maue. This Type
of net,which had & circular metal freme,that folded in two,wes carried on tue
side of the ladder truck. Tais type of net never gained much popularity as it
wes heavy end cumbersome.

soth trucks were fitted with canvas zna isinglass windsnields in iycYy

&t & coct of fifty collars each.



By 1934 the whole depeartument was in sad shape,they naa bought nothing
but single jeacket hose for the past ten years.iost of it being ci & type known
as loose lined,that is,the ruboer lining weas not attached tc the outsice cotton
jacket,an experiment tnat did not work.The Loose lining stretchea &na buached
up &nd would sometimes get pushed up the line until it pluggea the nozzle.nt
some fires there would be more water coming out of the ie&ks tnan There
would be at the nozzle.

It would probebly pe safe to say,at this time,without 1e&r ol contraaict-
ion that the Maynerd department wes the only depertment in tne country toat
hea two permenent men put no pumping equipment ci any description,not even
a hand tub.

George Priest became cnief engineer at this time,he had taken the jobo
with the understending that he would have to have some equipment.ihe 1irst
thing thet he did was to obtain a tnous&énd feet o1 gooa yueality aouobie jacket
hose.

The LaFrance hose wagon wes now twenty yetrs old,tne wooaen spOKgg wneels
were badly rotted and warped,particularly the front wheels,tne outsiae rear
Dayton airless tires were ragged.So, with & transier of ¢l50 from tne finance
committee reserve fund,& new set of steel wheels were put on tne front ena
vith a pair of 34 X 7 pneumatic tires.The old iront tires were shif'tea to
replace the two poorest tires on Tne dual rear wuneeis.

At the annuel town meeting,in rarcn, ¢ UUU was appropriated to purcnase
& new truck to replace the old humerican nalfrance hose wagon.lhe auount oi
this appropriation was zoout nalt of whet it wouid have cost tor a guou 11irst
line 75U gallon per minute pumper,wnicn was tue miniwum size recomwendea oy
the undervwriters.But this was &t the depths of the great aepression ana tne
town of Maynard was nard nit.

4 new Bjwodel one and one n&liil ton International truck chassis was
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purchased from the J.A.Coughlin garage on Summer Street,for $1,900. The
International truck was one of the better commercial trucks that couid oe adapt-
ed to the fire service. The motor in this truck wes of ninety norsepower,six
cylinders with overhead velves. The transmission nad four forward Speeds, Tires
were 6.00 X 20,with dual rear wheels. Brekes were four waeel mechanical. The
electrical system was six volt. Gross venicle weignt was 10,050 lbs. nowever
this little truck was badly overloaded for good road periormance.

A contract was given to Clarence Farrar of Woodville,to mount & pump and
build & body ror $1,100,the balance of the appropriation. When tne truck was
delivered in July of 1934,it was equipued with & Barton smerican Marsn iront end
Type U 40 single stage pump,waich was supposed to have a capacity oif 4UU UPM at
120 PSI. However it was not given an underwritérs test until 194U,at wnich time
it dsliversd only 336 GPM,of course some of this aeficiency coutd be contributed
to it's six years of service. The body which was of ample size,ned & booster tank

of 150 gallon capacity. With a space zhead of the booster tank that neld six two

end one half gallon sodea and acid hend extinguishers. A twenty eignt ioot
extension and a fourteen foot roof ladder were carried on the Left nznu side
of the truck,running forward of the driver's seat,so tnat the driver hza to
get in on tne right hand side und slide across tue seat. Two ten foot Leagtins
of rour inch nard suction hose was carried on the right hand side of the truck.
One nundred and fifty feet of one inch booster hose was carried in & wire
besket mounted over the booster tank,which wes in tne iront end of tne bcay. in
later years & reel was mounted to carry the booster nose and «Aditicnal nose
ves added. The hose bed wes large enough to carry about 1,40U feet of

two ana one nelf inch nose but the men of the departuwent pzrtitioned off

about ten inches of the width,to weke & compartment for two nunared reet of

one &na one half inch hose,still leaving room for a thousand feet of two



and one haltl inch hose.

This was the tirst use of inch &nd one huall nose by tne Maynard aepartuent,
although it had been the universally accepted metnod of hanaring insiae dwelling
house fires for more than a decade. In fact when Wiliiam Nayior was chiei,ten
years earlier,he had bought five hundred teet of inch ana one hall hose and lue
men flatly refused to let him put it on the truck. Unfortunately tney were mist-
aken as to his motive,true it was cheaper and used less waler,put it was also
more maneuverable and eitfective on inside tires tnan tne larger size nose. 1t
laid out in the back room of tne station,where it was disgaraéiﬁg¢j referrea 10
as;'"Naylor's garden hose",until 19Y<Y when it was loanea to tne contractor whHO was
installing the town sewer system ana wasS never returned. 1laois was & case wuere
Nayior was aeemea wrong,wnen ne coula not have been more rignt.

When the new truck was placed in service,tne ola LaFrance was wovea Over to
tne middlie of the floor and kept in service as a reserve piece. Prior to tais
time,the station would sometimes be empty for nours during & iire.

In 1935,a Clark inhalator was bougat to replace tae old pulmotor waicn
ned never been very successiul,prob&bly doing more narm thun good in wany cases.

By 1937,something had to be done apout tne ladaer truck. 1The wooaen izawers
were now twenty five years old and were splintering oaaly. The truck itseil naa
been notning but trouble from the day it was put in service. Even wnile setuiing in
the station,water had to be added to thne raaiator daiiy &and water naa to oe
drained out of the crankcase &t the same rate. Kepair costs nad now adaea up to
$1.65 per mile ot travel.

The annual town meeting in March 1lYso,appropriatea wv,ouulror 4 new iLaauer
truck,talis was sufiicient to buy a rirst iine tuliy eguigpeu’straisnt city service
type ladder {mcg, But Cnief George Priest was loresigated enougn 10 reaiize
thatl the powered aerial laader truck was soon to make tae strailgnt LaGaer irucs

obsolete in even tne smaiiest oI towns, S0 L& Arove & nard ocargain wita tae

Peter Pirscn Company of Aenosha wisconsin. Tae Pirsch company is toaay one oi the



few bullders of fire apparatus tnat were in the business berore tne turn oi the
century. The Pirsch femily were of Germen extraction,skliied wecnanics &nd TooK
grest pride in fine workmanship. However their pusiness nea oeen wostiy in tie
western part of the countryjand &s they were anxious tu get intc tue eastern
market,they agreed to furnish a fully equipged aerisl truck witnin the gv,dUu
appropriation. Wnen this truck wes delivered in Octoober of lysd,it was tune tirst
fully powered,one man operated,aerial truck east of the Missisippl tiver. It wes
in a class of it's own,it was & showpiece. Ofiicials came 1rom &il uVel NEW
Zngland to see itjresulting in the company m&Ling many more saies in tae arca.
The truck hed & sixty foot,two section,siuminum ailcy i&ader,ralsed oy
hydraulic pressure. The turntable and Ily ladaer movemenis wele powered wechnanic-
al.y from tne power takeoff iurough gears and spelildngs controi-ed oy wuitipse
disc clutches. Two hundred and torty feet of trussed ground l&aaders were cerried
in double bank.A fitty gellon booster ténk on each side ol the lruck,shesd O lue
hose beds,wlth cross connections;gave & total ol one hundred gaiions ol water., &
positive displacement booster puwp was driven by a transmission puwel Takeollt.
One hundred and fiity ieet oi one inch bocster hose was carriea un & rees in tue
rcar. A hose ped along each side carried & total of nine aundred Leet of twO anu
cne half inch hose. The main ladder carried &n rastuen ladder gun,to be led oy &
firty foot length of three inch nose which wus carried in & running buard rack,
along with a leader line of one and one naif inca hose wade Uy Wilu gale ana
nozzle. Open compartments along each side of lne waln ladder carried winor Wols,
coets and salvage covers. The lif'e net was in a comparuuent uncer tue turntabic,
The truck was powered Oy & one hunared and sixty Iive norsepower six
cylinder wWaukesha motor witu a complete dual ignition systeajiue regular
battery systewm and & nigh tension wagneto system,eacn witi it's own sel o1

s.erg pluge 86 that the woter would run witaout any cattery in 1t at &sil.
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Brekes were vecuun booster.The trancmission was Iour Spocus LUTWald.relIulwilicCe
&nd nendling were better then enytoing puiit up to that tiue.

Tne o01d IFederal truc£ wes 501 tu & glOup vl Valunlecsrs in odicCaslune
Mass. for yeuu. Thney ned been opereting with neua arawn epparatus, tiue; put
enother motor in tne old reaeral &na Zot 4 couple 0f jeurs wure Ul service out
of it.This volunteer coupany wes paid forty acilars by tne town 10T €&CL eLliliu
that they responded to,tnis is what the town ned ocen paying the wounsucket
R.1.fire department for sending & ledder truck tou taeir iires.

In 1y338 the town moth depurtwent procured & new spriying wechine oo
discarded the old horse drawn rig that was oougnt in iyi_.Tae wen oI tue
department removed tie puup and wotor lrom this rig &nd wita tue nelp vl néy
Carrutn, the town mechanic,mounted it on & howeuw&de I10Ur wnecl trailer,wilcn
hed & reel on it hoiding fifteen hundared feet of one &éna une eignin incun lurest
fire hose.lt wus & crude loouxking siteir wvut periorwed very well.lie triplex
plunger pump was capeble of prescures Iar in excess of wiat tie Lurest Lire
nose coula stand su it hea & salety valve un tue dlccnal'g€ siQe Ul lie puwp.

AS ne&avy &nd ewkwerd &8 tois rig was,it ald nave the aQvinlege Ul veillg &

self containea unit tunat could ve unhvoxed frow toe truck enu icll &t @ ilre

ol long wuretion,Ireeing tne truck 1or ovtuer auty. 1n iy4< tu€ originel puilesc
engine on tunis ri. gave out &nd &s parts were no iunger availeoie,ll hweo
replacea with & 17«8 four cylinder uvnevroiet engine.

in 1y41 & wetal rescue odoat was bought and mounted on & Twu wiceleu
nomemade traiiler.in tnis szme yeer & portudle lighting uutlithgnu en eiriine
m&sK were &added to the ieacer truck equipwent.

In 194« & second hena 1935 wodge truck with & 1ivVe LwldreG geaivn gel
minute,single stege dale widsulp pumy Wes purcnescd ITow tie Mexim MOTOT uU.
of 111ddleDoro MasSS.10r wkHULTHAE WasS & Tegulur ohe will uviic (eal toul Clwawelrciel
chéssis with & fur. ceb,the boay hid & twenty iLour rvot extension wuq & twelve

fout roof lzdder un tue leit side &nd two ten luot Lenugtns of lour cha une
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half inch hard suction hose on the opgosite side. There was a one hundred gallon
booster tank in the front end of the body,with one hundred and firty feet of

one inch booster hose on a reel over the booster tank. The hose bed carried
1,200 feet of two and one half inch hose. There were no compartments for minor
tools,in the body. It was placed in service in place of the old LaFrance

hose truck. The 1934 International continued to be used as the first line piece.
The old LaFrance,which was now nearly thirty years old,was put in storage and
was never used again. After the war,it was given to the American Legion,wno ran
it in a couple of parades. It was last seen in a North Acton junk yard.

The Bodge truck saw very little service in the seven years that it was in
Maynard. It was never given an underwriters test,so it's actual pumping
capacity was never known. It was an awkward machine to operate,as some of the
pump controls were in the cab and some were outside.

In 1944,the Civil Defense Agency loaned the town two five hundred gallon
per minute trailer pumps. These pumps were built under wartime restrictions
and contained no critical materials,they were built for temporary use. These
pumps were never used at a fire while they were in Maynard. After tne war,they
were turned back to the government.

In August of 1949 the Dodge pumper was replaced by a new piece built oy
Farrar of Woodville at a cost of $10,070,this was the first piece of apparatus
to cost the town more than $10,000.This truck was considerably heavier than
either the 1934 International or the 1935 Dodge. It was built on an International
KB 12 chassis,tne six cylinder motor was rated at 143 HP. The transmission
was syncromesh,with five forward speeds. For some unexplained reason, this truck
was egipped with two pumps. The larger one being a type U60 Barton American
600 GPM,single stage,front end mounted. The second pump was a 20U GPM midship,
driven by a power takeoff from the transmission. This pump did not give

satisfactory service,so was removed and the booster tank piping was connected

to the front end pump in the conventional manner.
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The body/ wis ul Open consiruction witn & wide iivnl sSeul loel resecuveled

the rront seat of an oid time open street cer.lne Losc Deu hed & CapuCllyy O
thirteen nundred feet of two ana one ueii incn hose &na Iive gunarea ieet oI

one &nd one nelf.The booster tenk wis Ilety, running tue Lual lenNgtu ul Tie ouly
witn & cepacity of three hunarea &nd 1ifty gedions. 1wo ten ivotl iengtus Ol
four end one heif inch nerd suction hose were carried in cowp&rusents inside tue
body,an awkward errangement theat reguifed the suction hose te neve tu e _urled
out of the buck of the truck snd cerried around to tie 1ront end pulip. & LAiIrly
five 1oot tanree section eluminum Léauer was carried un tie leit side &nd Two

ten foot eiuminum streignt Ladaers thet cowd ve juined to clucl TU weke il el u-
teen toot rouf Leader were cerried on tue rigat side. .Tires va tuis itrucs
vere 9.0U X <U.

Before the old Uodge was disposed ol,the Lyo4 lnternztionsl wis sent over
to Ferrars snop for repair. & new silgntly larger DUUSTEr Teld Wad lhsTasicd,
using the speace that used to cerry tne six sode &Cid 0&nt eXTINLUlSLETS.h I'col
was mounted ecross the body to carry iurest 1ire nuse.lnis lncleased Tus Llusd
on this litule truck whnicn ned &lwWeyS Deen UVerivaded,eventualiy Utic splil s
nad to be reinicorced. Tne pualp wes vverhauled &nd o uevw iwpgl'OVed griaing usVice
installed.The headiignhts were cuengea over to se&iea De&cws.lais work cost
¢1llz0,more tnan one third tne cost ol tne whoule truck wioen neh.

4 portuole pump wus oougnt in 1y55 1O replace tne old howewwde traller
wita the spraying mecuine pump,tuis portuple pump could De Ca&rrieq &uywuere Of
two men.

& third pumper was placed in service in veceuder 01 Ly57.oulil vy ferrur
of hoodville &t & cost oI ¢i4,475,0n &n Lnternationel vuadols. U Wes & waodel
V-196 vitn an eignt cylinder wotor ol twu nunared anc 1ifty siX uursepUweT, Ltue
trensmission was syncrouwesn witu iive LUTWETA SPe€as, Dreses helt Vel ouuster
snd tires were v.wU X «<U. The oody was eyuigped wiln & sewl cap,tue vuubTeEr

tenk hua & cepacity of five nundred gatlions,two electric rewina reels eacn
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carried two hundred and fifty feet of one inch booster hose. The pump was an
American Marsh,midship mounted,Duplex model,of seven hundred and fifty galions per
minute capacity. A two way portable deluge gun was included with the eguipment.

By 1958,the wooden ladders on the ladder truck were twenty years old,wnicn
the engineers considered to be about the maximum age that tney could oe depended
upon. These ladders were replaced by similar Pirsch wooden ladaers at a cost of
$1,449.64.

In 1963,the 1938 Pirsch ladder truck was replaced by a new one of the same
meke,at a cost of $42,000 without the ground ladders,tne ground ladaers were
transferred over from the old truck. This new truck cost more than four tiwes
that of the 19338 model which came %ully equipped with the full complement of
ground ladders. Of course we had steady monetary inflation dufing most of these
twenty five years and there were many improvements made in fire apparatus.

The new truck was heavier than the old one. It had & three hundred and
twenty five horsepower Waukesha six cylinder motor. A five speed transmission,
air brakes and 9.00 X 20 tires. The aluminum alloy aerial ladder had a reachn
of eighty five feet and was made up in four sections,so that tne overall lengti
of the retracted ladder was much less than that of the old two section sixty
foot ladder. All movements of the ladder were by nydrauiic power. The booster
tank had a capacity of two hundred gailons,a positive aisplacement booster
pump was driven by a power takeoff on the transmission. &£ hose bed ran aiong
each side of the body,each one holding five hundred feet of two and one nalf
inch hose. There were large enclosed compartments,for minor tools,wnich the
old truck lacked. A demountable ladder gun,capable of being mounted on the tip
of the top fly ladder geve a much better stream elevation than the oid rig
where the ladder gun was mounted permanently on the bed ladder. The gun was

fed by & length of three inch hose.

The old 1938 Pirscn ladder truck was sold to the town of iyndonvilile

Vermont
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Decenber 4;1966;a new one thousand gellon per minute pumper was placea in
service. Built by Farrar of Woodvilile,at & cost of $<U,0UU. The apparatus was
built on a Ford F-850 cnassis with & full cab. The motor was eight cylinaer,
which was rated at two hundred and eighty 1ive horsepover,transmission had Iive
forward speeds. Brakes were &ir &nd tne steering had power assist. Tires were
9.00 X 20.

4 twenty eight foot extension and & twelve foot roof ledder wers mountea
on the right side. With two ten foot lengtns of iive inch nara suction on the
left side. Booster tank wes of Iive hundred gallons capacity. The diviaed nose beC
carried six hundred ieet of three inch hose and six hundred feet of two &nd
one hzlf incn,elong wita two preconnected lines of one &and one nail incu hose,
each of two nundred &nd fifty feet. The Eastman aeiuge gun that nad been carried
on the seven fifty Internationel wes shifted over to the new truck ana Iitted
with two short lengths of two and one half inch nose for & quick hookup 1or
initial attack with & master streain. The three inch hose load on tinis plece
vwes the first use of three inch hose in the departument except Ior the single
length used to feed the ladder gun. The taoree inca nose ned two &nd one half
inch couplings,so it could oe used wita any layout.

The 1934 Internstional was traded in this transaction. In tois same
yeer & new Dodge Coronet station wagon was purcnesed for & chief's car. The
first car supplied tne chief by the town.

At the annusl town meeting held karcn 2,1970. 44,000 was appropriatea ior
toe purcnase of & new twelve nundred &and fiity gellon per winute pumper to

replace the 1949 six hundred gallon per minute International.
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c l.
Fire Alarm

With the organization of the fire department in 1890,it could be called a
well equipped department. But the town still lacked the prime requisite of a
complete system of fire protectionjan alarm system. The best fire department in
the world is useless,unless they know there is a fire and where it is.

At this time there were a number of bells that were being used for a fire
alarm,there were a couple of bells on mill buildings,two of the churches nad bells
and there was a bell on the schoolhouse on Nason Street. There was however,tae
problem of gaining access to ring these bells,particularly at night. There was
also confusion as to whether the ringing of the bell was actualiy for a fire.
An entry in the records of the hose company ,made February 2,1891,reads as
follows:- "The question:- Do we know just what the alarm is? Is it the school
bell? The mill bell? The church bell? Or the one attached to the Fitchburg
Railroad locomotive? Any information on the subject will be thankfully received".

In 1892,$487 was appropriated for a fire alarm system. A Gamewell Dell
striking machine was installed in the tower of the schoolhouse on Nason Street,
at a cost of $220.50. A single circuit of galvanized iron wire was strung aiong
buildings and trees,there being no utility poles at that time,to the mill gate.
A street box was placed at this location,numbered seventy five. The reason tor
having such high numbers’was to get a greater number of strokes from the bell.
Four rounds of box seventy five would give forty eight strokes of tne bell. As
there was insufficient money left in the appropriation to purchase this bDox,the
company loaned it to the town until the following year,in anticipation that tae

town would appropriate enough money the following year to pay for it and
possibly purchase additional ones.

This box was as simple a device as it was possible to make,it had no
succession or non-interference mechanism. However,it's simplicity must have

been it's salvation,for despite years of neglect,during some of the times that
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the department was in the doldrums. It is still in service atl tne sawe iocation,
renumbered as box fifty two. The box was Kept Locked &t ail tiuwes. neys were Kept
in the mill ofiice and in Parkers Hardware,across tne street,there were &lLso
Keys in several nearby homes and police &na liremen carriea Keys.

Power for the system was provided by & battery oi iorty eight gravity ceils,
each glass jar holding about six quarts of' blue vitriol solution,these jars were
arranged on shelves in a small room ofi the Kitchen. As this was & closea circuit
system,drain on the batteries was constant,so required aaiiy attention to progr-
essively replace the crow foot elewents,wash out tne jars and repiace thne exnaustea
bilue vitriol solution,a tew were aone each day. D.W.nasms took care ol tnis chore
ior the first tnree years,at a salary ol iif'teen adoiiars per year. in loy)H,

Henry Ledgard carriea on tne job for & short time ana taen from nNovewber oI loyb
until the permanent man was engaged in May ot Lyd},Josnua kdwards waintained tne
batteries. His concientious service being rewarded by & raise to twenty aoliars
per year in 1900.

The outside lines that ran between the school bell and the street pox &i1s0
ran into the Odd Fellows puilding,into the jewelry shop ol wiliiaw Uiiver,wnere a
key similar to a telegraph key,provided & meuns of testing tne system. uliver
was paid twelve dollars per year for striking tne test at il<ilu foM. walliy. At
first only a single stroke of the bell was struck,but wnen it was learned tnat
a single stroke proved almost nothing. He was instructea tO sStrike TwWO SULrokes.

Tne striking oi tnis daily test also providea & tiwme signal 10r Lne towns—
people to set their clocks ana watches Dy,tlere were no radio or teievision tiwe
signals,nor vere tnere electric ciocks to maintain &ccurate time in tnose aays.
There was one accurate daily time signal sent out irowm tne opservatory in
Washington over all telegrapn lines &t twelve noon. rroviding a stanaara 1or ardl
railroad clocks and the watches of employees. This ten wminute past tweive

test time gave Uliver an opportunity to go up to tne railroaa station at



noon,synchronize his watch with the time signel and get back to uis store,edjust
nis master clock and strike the test. In later years,wnen horses were xept in
the stetion,these test blows kept them in the hebit of running out under tue
herness when it was struck,after which toey were fed their midday meal of oats.

There was another key in the station that wes used 1o strike an"tll out"
signal of two strokes,after a fire was completely extinguished. This"ill out"
signal gradually fell into aisuse along in tpe forties.

The Gamewell Company was paid taeir $50.UU for tae box at the milli gete
the year after it was installea. To make sure that it wes in working order,tne
engineers established & practice of ringing in this box on the Iirst Friday of
ecch month at 12:1U P.M. instead of the regular two stroke test.

By 1896 there were three boxes in service,eizuty six at the corner of
Main Street and Harriman Court,seventy five at the mill gate &nd ninty four &t
the fire stetion. Keys to all of the boxes were Kept in nearby howes &nd places
of businessj;police and firemen also carried keys. In 18388 & new box was placed
at the corner of Mein end Summer streets ana numbered ninety seven. The foliow-
ing yeer,a tapper was instalied in the houme of Chief Canill.

Lt the snnuel town meeting of 1900,a committee comprised of: Chiel Canill,
Jonn Flood &nd Julius Loewe,were appointed to investigate the need of adaition-
al fire alarm boxes.

The firemen were constantly complaining tnat tney coula not ne&ar the tire
bell at night,at one &larm in tne night,during cold weather wucn windows.were
closed,cnly nine out of tnirty iive men neerd tue bell. It was a comparatively
small bell for a fire elarm.

In 19Ul,a tapper was instaliea in the home of Arthur Coughlan,& meuber
of the board of engineers,who lived on Nason Street almost unaer the scnool-

house pell. In this same year the fire alarn boxes were peinted with aluminum
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paint for better visipility at night,thié paint did not stand the weather,so tne
following year they returned to the traditional red.

Following the recommendations of the special committee on fire aiarm boxes,
tﬁree additional boxes were added to the system in 1902,box sixty eight,at Parker
and Roosevelt streets,eighty eight,at Great Road and Main Street and fiity nine at
the corner of Park and Sudbury streets. A tapper was installed in the Coughlin
Stable on Summer Street,who furnished the horses for the department.

By 1903, there were eight fire alarm boxes in service. The men were continuing
to complain that they could not hear the schoolhouse bell at night. The Uoncord
Maynard and Hudson Street Railway had offered to allow the department to install
a steam whistle on their power station on Great Road at no cost to the town.
However, the engineers felt that this location was too far iIrom the center oi town,
end at the same time they were negotiating with the American Woolen Company To
allow them the use of the whistle that had formerly been used to cell the help to
work,end had been displaced by the variable pitch whistle on the new number five
mill. The old whistle was on the boiler house.

A small building was built on the boiler house roof,directiy under the
whistle to house the operating machine,wnich witn the building,cost & total of
$589.26. The whistle itself was the second largest in the state;tne one on tne
General Electric Company in Lynn being larger. The whistle was actually taree
whistles combined.The two main bells were mounted with the longest,whicn was
about four feet long,in an inverted position,the other main bell,which was about
a foot shorter,was mounted above it in the conventional manner,so that they poth
were fed by & common outlet. These bells had a very deep tone Lixe a steamboat
whistle. Another smaller three chime whistle was mounted on top oI these two
bells and received it's steam through & pipe tThal ran up through the top main
bell. Steam was supplied tnrough a tour inch pipe from the auxiii&ary neader

which always had a head of about one hundred and sixty pounds,&s it supplied



steam to power tue stokers and the boiler feed pumps. 4 three incn pilot valve
controlled the steem to the wnistle. The machine that activated the vwihistie
valve was powered by weights,thet had to be wouna up with & crank iike & large
tower clock. Tnis weight mecnanism was controlied oy & solenoia in tae alerm
circuit,tarough an ascepement similar to that on & lerge clock striking control.

With.the whistle in the same circuit as the bell on tane schoolnouse,taey
both sounded simultaneously,if they were both working properiy,the bell actually
being the more dependeable of the two.

4 short time before the whistle was put in service,an incident occurred
where there wes considerable delay in sounding &an &larm,because tnere was no one
at home in any of the houses that had & box key. S50 & samell DOX Wita a glacs
front was mounted on the pole alongside of each alarm box. Tois suwail box held
& xey on & chein., Instructions were printea on tae pbox,to:-Break tne glass
remove the Key,open tne box,pull thne hook down once and iet 0. Tnis systeum TOO
nad it's drawbacks;as & solid object was required to break tne glass with;it was
not alweys easy to find & stone in the dar< or woen the ground wasS coversd witn
snow. So in 19<4,these smcll Key boxes were removed &nd tne <£eys were replaced
by & tee handle mounted permanently in the box door.

When the steam whistle was cut into the system,ail of Utne streetl boxes
hed to heve their timing slowed down,as tne whistle operatea at & wucn slower
speed than the bell striker. The code vwheels wers &lso cnanged U0 Smaller NULDETS,
so that no box would heve more than & total of forty blows on tae whistie.

A tepper and an indicator were instelled in the station at this time. The
indicator was & device tnat registered tae box number tnat was oeing SiIruck,
in somewhat the seme manner &s the odometer on an wutomoblle,except tnat tae
numpers were large enough to be read from tae middle of the floor. Tais device

was fine wnen it worked right,but it couid piay tricks,as it aepenaea on springs

and escapements for timing,it really needed periodic inspection and agjustuents
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by an expert,which it did not get. Une slip of a cog and the department wouid
head out in the wrong direction,whiie at other times,a box number that did not
exist would show up on the indicator.

Shortly after the first permanent man occupied the station,a switcn was
installed that would turn on the lights in the station when an alarm came in. This
was a simple device,consisting of & single pole switch in the lighting circuit,
which had a soft iron armature boited to the handle. This armature heid the switch
in an open position by a solenoid in series with tne alarm circuit. The first
break in the flow of current in the alarm circuit would alliow this knife switcn
to drop into the closed position. The armature would tnen be rar out of the
magnetic field of the solenoid and would remain there until reset manually.

At about this szme time,a telepnone was instalied in the station vwitn &
direct line to the exchange,which was then located in the Naylor ouilaing in the
square at the corner of Main Street and Nason Street. Tne fire department was
given number one,which it had until the dial system was put in town.

When the telephone exchange was operated manually by local operators,ﬁigf
the two Peterson sisters or Grace Sweeney,who knew most of the subscrioers
personally;valuable time was saved in meny instances, Dy tnese operatlors tracing
the origin of a call,when the person making the calli would drop the puaone &na
run out of the building before complieting the callj;which may have oeen the wise
thing to do. As one of the serious drawbacks of using thne private pnone for
reporting a fire,is that the callier is usually in the building involived,which
in some cases has proven fatal. The report of the fire departmeht in the 1947
Maynard town report reads in part:ﬁlt is unbelievable what excited people do in
meking tnese phone calls. People rarely tell you wno They &are,wnere taey &are,
what kind of a fire they have or what their address 5"

A controversy arose in 1905,between the scnool commitiee and the fire
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engineers over the use of the fire alarm for & "no scnool"signal. At first the
engineers flatly refused to consider the thougnht. but artef a tnreat by the
gchool committee to have the fire slarm equipment removea trom the Nason Street
School,the engineers relented. So the fire alarm nas been used for & "no scnool"
signal ever since. In this same year,pbox forty two was instaried &t (oncora ana
Tremont streets.

In 1908,box twenty three wes instalied on Glendale Street. In 190y, box
fifty one was placed on Dartmoutn Street,and the roliowing year,DOx Twenity one
wes installed on Heyes Street,making a total of thirteen boxes in service.

By 1913,the practice of sounding street boxes for small grass and ruobisn
fires was being discoureged and people were being asked To use the telLephone
to report this type ot fire. The audible signal ifor & brush iire was & single
round of the box on the station,numbered forty one, The oniy wey that & single
round of a box could be struck,was by punching out tne number munualiy with the
key in the station,or it could be done with & key tnat wes in eacia street DOX,
which required a key to an inside door to get at. It was difticult to time the
first four blows accurately,so the whistle machine of'ten stuck,wnich meant tnat
a man would nave to climb up to the roof of the miil boiler nouse to correct it.
So the signal was modified to: two,two,one,which was easier to time by nand.

In this szme year of 1lYl3,two more poxes were aadea to tne sysilew,00X
twenty two at the powder millsj;no doubt prompted by tne delay in sounding the
alarm for tne disasterous oarn fire of the previous year, ana pox tnirteen in
the yard of the American Wooiren Company. Altnougn this box was on private
property and was listed as a pfiv&te box,it was paia for by tne town.

The following year,nearly &li ol the outside iron wire was repiacea Oy
copper wire,where some of the old wire was stiil strung &iong buiiaings ana on
trees,all of the new wire was strung on two pin crossarms,mounted a4t tne top Ol

the utility poles. Une snort section of iron wire tnat was not replaceu wes

tne pair of wires that ran from thne pole on the westerly siae or Nason Street
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to the belfry of the school. The year of 1916 was to be tne last year that tnis
building was to be used as a high school, So some of the boys of tne graduating
class made a large banner,wnich they sSomehow managed to string out over the
middle of Nason Street on one of the bare iron fire alarm wires. During tne
night,a brisk breeze sprung up,swinging the banner so that at times tne two bare
wires would cross,shunting out the current to the bell striking machine,wnich
caused the bell to sound a single stroke every time the wires touched. This
continued until the next morning,by which time the weigats that powered tne
striker were completely run down. About three montas later,September <U,1916,
the schoolhouse burned flat to the ground and with it weni the fire be.l.

During the first World War,zinc and copper for the wet ceil batteries
became very expensive,so they were replaced by a storage battery system which
consisted of two sets of batteries having sixteen cells each,mounted on metal
racks in the engineers room. By means oI a single throw switch,one set ol
batteries would &always be on the line whiie the other set could pe charged up.
Charging was done witn a tnirty two volt direect current generator,driven by &
nalf horsepower electric motor. A couple of years after this system wasS put
in service,a second motor and generator were installed tor a reserve as tne
town was then supplied with electricity oy thne American Woolen Company wnich
was forty cycle alternating current,sSo that all motors nad to be special
puilt,it was impossible to ﬁuy a stock forty cycie motor as there was only
one otner small town in the country that had tais current.

In 1919,the area suffered the most disasterous ice and sleet storm in
it's history,bringing down all overhead wires. Most of the town was without
electricity or telephones for weexs. but the firemen man&ged 1O patch up toe
fire alarm wires within a day,so that this most important means oI communication
was maintained with little interruption. Af'ter tais storm,all of tne outsiae
wires were again replaced. There had been legisiation passed by the state,

requiring all tire alarm wires to be carried on the bottom crossarms oi tne
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utility poles rather then the top. This was orought about by a numper of accidents
to municipsl employees who nad come in contect witn aign tension power iines,
vwhile climbing up torough them to work on fire alarm lines. Tnere were also
incidents,one naving nappened in Maynard,wnere & brogen fire alaruw wire naa
dropyed down on & .igh tension power line and carriea tne ietasl nign voltage into
the fire slarm switchboard. So all of the new wire was strung on taoe Lower
CrosSsarms.

When the outside lines were replaced tney were rearrangea ia & diilerent
street pettern,so that four pairs of wires enterea tae station. The town report
&t thet time erroneously described tnis as dividing tune system into Iour circuitus,
which is what should have been done. But waal was actually done was to siumply
meke four loops wnich were tied into & single circuit in tne staticn. Tais aia
at least provide a means of cutting out parts of tne circuit wanually,in case of
a break. If toe break was in the loop wita tue wnistle,tane oniy thing taat could
get the whistle back in operation,was o locate and repair the Dreak. wnet snould
nave been done at this time was to nave installed an up to date switcuboara with
repeaters,so that each of these loops would function as &n indegendent circuit;
with tne wnistle,tapper,indicetor and lignt switch on & local circuit.

In 1920, taree new boxes were zdded to tne systea,Twenty six &t raper Mill
Corner,fifty four &t walnut and Hillside streets zna forty six &t Tie corner ol
scton and Welcott streets. These boxes were made Dy Geamewell and were Lnown &s
tae Peerless model. But like the olaer boxes;taey lacked succession ana non-
interference mechanism. '

In September of 1lY<5,& transwitter was installea in tae st.lion at & cost
of $317.50. A modern transmitter would a&ve COSt aoout 4UU. Toe transmitter
thet was instullea,was built oy an independent operator,wno nea no patents or
his own,so had to oe sure tuat none of the features or nis machine,iarringea

on tne patent rignhts of any of the larger amenuracturers. Tois aevice was .ong
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outmoded when it was installed. It too;lacxed succession or non-interfering
features. It was simply a street box movement with interchangeable code wheels,
one for each street box number,so that any street box could be struck from
the station. There were also eight additional wheels for locations Known as
phantom boxes,there being no street box at the particular location. The numbers
given to these locations were made up by adding a single blow ahead of the
nearest street box number. This was the reverse of the usual practise of
adding the extra digit after the street box number.

In 1934,a doorbell was finally installed at the front door of the station.
Up to this time,anyone wanting to rouse the men at night,without pulling the
box on the front of the station,had to pound on the door and yell at the top of
their lungs. It was a long way from the front door to the sleeping rooms. In
this same year,copper oxide rectifiers were installed,which eliminated one set
of batteries and the motor generators. The batteries were now kept fully
charged at all times.

In 1936,the first additional street box in sixteen years was installed,
box thirty one was placed in the square. This was also the first box with
succession and non-interfering mechanism,however with the rest of the system
obsolete,this desirable feature did not function. In 1937,b0x twenty seven was
jnstalled at the corner of Butler Avenue and Gerfielid Avenue,tne following
year,box fifty five was placed at Great Road and Espie Avenue. In 1939, this
box was moved to Thompson and Fairfield streets and a new Dox,numbered thirty
four was put in it's place.

The hurricane of 1938,wreaked the same havoc on the outside lines as
the ice storm of 1919,and again by working throughout the night,the men of
the department were able to patch up wires,so Thatl by morning,tae only bDOX
out of the twenty two,tnat was not working,was box forty taree,at the corner

of Summer Street and Bent Avenue. There was not a pole left standing from
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the hign school to Summer Hill Rowa,s0 tacre wus notning w eiring wire on.

A W.P.h. project wes zcquirec i Tepifice &L. Of Une viu Wire &nu crossarus,
al. of tne new crossarms were four prin. 4 total of seventecen miies of wire wes
slrung,but none of the oia boxes or obsciele insice equipment wus regiucea.

By 1937,the wanistie contro. mecuine on tue wiii boiier nouse wes giving
constant troubie., This machnine huad bDe-n built by &n indepenuent operator,k.k.
DeCrow of Lynn. he lackea faciiities for Producing & first ciess job. The entire
fremework wus of woud,so after tnirty five yesrs of exposure to the gasses,stean,,
and heat of the boiler bouse,tuc wood nad warped &na rotted, tarowing gears ana
shaftings out of elignment, is steaw wnisties were now Pretly muca & tning of
the past,tner: being very few plents thet weinteined & constent nesa of sleau,
loe dopertaent was &ble w cbtein a léte woael Gameweri wichine Lol hed been
used out & snort time by the city of Woburn. This wechine wes iurnisnec ena
installed by L.W. 5iils of Lexington ior waJUU, tue wachine &ione Lwa Cost over
$700 just & tew yeers before.

The olc inaicator,wnich bud never been very aepenasbie anywey,;wes giving
constent trouble in 134U,80 it wes repleceu oy & tape Tregister,puilt by h. k.
Biiis. Tne following yeur,pox twenty eight wus insteiiea on ﬁ&ig otreet near
River Street. » new type of lightning &rresters were instailed in ine sietion oy
Gapewell to minimize sowe of the problems crested by electricel storas.

By tne end of 1v4l,the country wes on the brink of Wur,and luelc wab grave
concern about enemy &ir atteck,us tnis &rea was close to prime militury targets
and the locel miil wes engeged in huge militery contracts. 4 civil aeiense
program was sel up. Some systew of public eir reid warning hed to be proviaea.
Officials &t the nationsl level cid not &pprove of tne use ol the iire &iarw
&8s en &ir raid werning,particuleriy woere it was ioceéteu on tne wWOSt likeury
target; tne mill. They wented & sepercte and distinct systew.,

& compressea air horn wes instelled &t the fire stetion &t & cost oi

$1,440,tnis instullation was muade by the Gemewell Compeny oi hewton. Due to



€ 12
government restrictions on criticel materials,all Kinds of problems were
encountered with this installetion. The only type of norn tnat could be obtainea
was & diapnone horn,tnis type of norn usea very little non-ferrous metal in it's
construction. It used & comperatively smali volume of air for tne sound proaucea,
S0 it operated with smeller tanks and cOmpressor lnan the conventional diaparaw
norns. The diapnone norn was designed primerily for fog norn use. It had & very
low pitch that was anything but musical. It's volume of souna did not compare
anywhere near to tnat of eitner of the mill steam whistles.

During the war years not much could have been aone to ilmprove the System,
even if there had been any inclination to do so. 1T was not untili 1948 tnal any
further changes were made,in that year,box forty one was movea irom the iront ol
the station to the corner of Summer Street and Florida Roaa &na pox lorty taree
was moved up Summer Street,from Sent Avenue to Pompiciticut Avenue. The 10L1i0Wing
year,box one twenty one wus placed at Waltnam and Tnird Street,one twenty four
et Great Road and Parker Street and one thirty taree at tne cormer of Great
Road and Fletcher Street. In 19Y50,three more new boxes were aaded,lourteen &t
the corner of Summer and Wason Street,fifteen at the Coclidge School &nd one
forty five on Brown Street near Wilder Street.

By 1950,the American Woolen Company had ceased operations. At times tae
steam pressure at the mill was allowed to drop to & point where it would not
blow the fire wnistle. The engineers had to provide sometning different for
an audible alarm. They decidea to revamp the &ir reid signel waoich was no
longer used. A pair of diapnram norns replaced ihe diaphone horn,new l&arger
storage tenks and & larger compressor were instalied. So tnat except for &a
little piping and the control valve,the wnole whisile system nad been repliaced.
Something like the old joke about raising the hood and putting & new car unaer
it. The air horns were cut into the system and like the old school bell,blew

simulteneously with the steam whistle,tnis arrangement lasted only & short time.
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wnen tne Maynurd Indusiries acquirec tne will PTOPErty,tney repl&aced thoe
Steam driven fire pumps with & diesel unit. allowing utnem 1o reduce tneir poiler
pressure below filteen pounds,elimineting the requirement 1o have .licensea wen
to operate them. Tnis was tone end of tne Steam whnistie;one of the i&st.

In 1954, two wey radios were insteiled in the taree trucks. Tnae loii0wing
yeer & pase station was instelled. Frequencies were reassignea so loal Loncora,
Maynard and Acton were on the Szme frequency. Later Stow &ana BoxDoro were adaea
TO tne net.

The 1954 town report was the 1irst in years without &« list of 1ire alerm
pbox locetions. Tnis was done in the nope of cutting down tne number of irrespon-
sible motorists who create trefiic congestions that greatlly namper tne movement
of fire apparatus,perticulerly in laying additional nose lines from aistant
hydrants when necessary.

When the new puilding was occupied in Uctober of 1955, two seperale pnones
were instelled,one peing numbered 7-<l<i to be usea exciusively tor 1ire calils
&na tne otner 7-<345 lor business cealis,leaving the iire ponone iree.

In the designing of the new buiiding,wnicn left wuch to pe aesirea in
meny ways, &n upstairs room,whicn had no winaows,wes set ty for toe 1iire alern
roow. In & puilding with wooden interior construction,this was tne most vulner-
&ble spot tnat tne alerm system could be housed in. 'ne whistie eguipwent wes
transierred irom tne old stetion, &and an entiquated switcnboara,no better
than the one in the ola stztion wes installied. This still ieft the outside
lines &ll on & single circuit. A new transmitter was instelled &nd again it was
one puilt oy &n independent operator,so in order to avoia petent iniringements,
it wes of obsolete design. This new transmitter &t least dia not have to nave
& seperate wheel for each opox. So the system of phantom DOXes wWas expeandea,

but lacking & definite gria pattern,it was a hoage podge oi nuwbers tnat
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woula confuse even the originator ol it.

In 1958,ell utility wires on main and wason streeils,in tne principadl
mercantile districut,wers placed unaer ground. A.inougn the utillyy companies
provided two ducts,&s required Dy l&w,ior lire alarm wires. uilile use was waae
of them. Hetner than puli wires tarough ine aucts O the 0OX in lne square,wanicn
covered the most criticel aresa in town,tue DOX was Simply removed. n&le€r 1T wabd
usea on Greet Road near tne entrance TO Tne ureen Meauow oChOOL. 1lae DOX on
Main Street,near River Street,was movea 10 Toe iirst pole on kiver oireet witn
overheud wiring strung tne wnole lengun of River Streetu to connect wila ine
overneaa line on wW&alnut Street.

During the resiaential builaing boOm,&ilNg &DOUT TAlS time,no atiempl was
made 1O enacl & town Dy-law wnicn wouira require ine QevelOpers 1o insta.i Idire
slari DOXES in new aevelopmentis &5 was aone in ine surrounding lowns. in 1770,
&l the request of Cuiel Wnelien,tne pianning boara had Toelr reguilatlions amenaea
1o require the installation of fire &larm 0OXeS in aili iuture deveiopments.

An underwriters survey mede in 1467,showea lne lire aléaru Sysiew 1O De
the weakest 1ink in the town's overail Iire protection.

klerm systems in the newer school buiidings were connected witn tpe lire
station by means oi leasea tlelephone lines;s constant source oi trouble. S0 &l
tne snnual town meeting of 1y7u,an appropriation ol §7,8UJ Wes reyuesied 10r laoe
moaernization of tne inside system,in order to obtain all OI ilhe aavanizges Ol
the modern street boxes. Unfortunately tne llnance couuittee faiilea wo reaiize
tne importance oif this reyuest ana teiilea To &pprove 11,50 1T was volea daown

in the town meeting.
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£ Chronology of Important Fires

Some of the fires noted here may seem insignificent,but they &ll have
sowe unususl interest;some were tregic. This account does not incluae all
fatilities caused by fires,as some of these aid iilttie or no Gamege to PToperty,
S0 were not even reported to the fire department.

The town of Maynard is fortunstie in not neving as part of it's history:
"The blg fire",es so many cities and towns do. No fire in Meynsrd ever attained
confizgration proporticns,in fact,few fires ever caused muchn ceameage beyond the
building of origin.

Before the organization of tne fire aepartment,fires were fougnt oy
hastily formed bucket brigades,consisting meinly of employees of the mill,
eéssisted Dy any men,women,or child &ble to cerry & bucket of weter. Rarliy town
reports show items of one or two doLlars,psaid to watch,aiter & Iire,wo geura
egeinst & rekindle. 4ong tne names of those paid for this service,were those
of C.Fred Cahill «nd John Vollerscnied. Both of these wen became mempers ol tae
fire depertment when it wes orgenized. Cehill later serving as coiel and Jonn
Wollerschied as & member of the poerd of engineers,

The town report of 1878,shows items of payment to the Assebet Manutact-
uring Company znd the Riverside Cocperative,for pzils lost or dzusged fighting
& fire in the originezl schoolhouse on Nason Street,the building which now
stends at 26-28 Acton Street. Loss was given &s $400,s0 it must heve been
quite an extensive fire,as $400 would have built & smell house in those days.

& very serious fire occurred on thne evening of Juiy 7,1836. When shortly
ef'ter nine o'clock,sparks from the iocomotive of & Ireight trein,ignited the
wooden shingles on the roof of Flood's Steble,locetea &t ine end of

Herrimen Court. 4 bucket brigade found thnemselves hel.less azgainst such
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overvhelming odds. The eleven horses tanat were in the stabie,nea bsen led TO
safety,but any thought of saving anytning else in the building weas oul ol question.
£11 efforts were directed towaras saving the adjacent property,by the use 0l Wel
blengets,kept souked by the bucket origuaae. The telegraph operator &t tne rail-
rozd station sent out &ppeals for nelp to Concora Junction(Now kest Concora)zna
Hudson. The message to Hudson did not reach anyone witn authority to act,untii
the next dey. The messuge to West Concord iarea much better,as tane following entry
appeers in the records of the Concord Fire Department:——
"Westvele,July 7,1836.
The department were called to maynard at 9:50 P.4. for & fire that
&t one time tnreatened tne greater part of the town. The boys responaea
promptly,and done great work. Traveled tnree miles. Leid 500 feet of
hose. Paid Weldo Cnaplin four dollers for horse hire."
in outward appesarance,on the nortan side of Main Street between Damon Street ana
Conent street in West Concord.
ks this fire wzs beiore the installation of the water worss,the water nad
to be pumped from the canal in the rear of the houses on High Street. Neeaiess to
suysthe building was & total ioss,along witnh sixteen sleighs,iourtesn sets ol
single harness,two sets of double harness,seven ton of hay,taree nundred ousnel
of oats and three live nogs that were in the cellar. Two nearby bullaings owned
by James Sweeney were damaged. LOss on tne building and contents wes estimatled &t
$3,000. With insurance coverage of $1,350.
The town paid & bill of $6.99 for refreshments for tne Concord iiremen
and paid the Assebet Manufacturing Company ¢ll.d3 for peils iost or broken.
In 1889,while the town water works were peing instulled,a Iire pro<e out
in the Stuart Building,located on Main Street &t tne corner of Nayior Lourt,

now an entrance to the municipel perking lot. This building is at present
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occupied by the New Idea Store and Western Auto Supply. Thomas Neylor,superin-
tendent of the water department happened to be working nearby with & crew of men.
Using & couple of lengths of hose that tney cerried on the wegon,for pudaling
ditches,they hooked them up to the hyarent that was aimost in front of the opuilding
end hed the fire out in & couple of minutes. This was tne iirst use of.nne new
vater system in extinguisning & fire.

The first entry made in the officieal records of the fire aepartment is ifor
e fire in & nouse on Front Street owned by the mill. Damage was estimatea &t
$56.00 and the cause wes given &s children playing with m&tcnes. The aate oI tnis
fire was February 15,1890. As the fire aepertment was not authorized until the
annusl town meeting held neerly & month later,March 10,i8%0,it mey be assumed that
this fire was handled by the bucket brigade from the milil.

The first fire that the newly orgenized nhose company responded to,was on
July Zth,e month after receiving their apparatus. The fire,causea Dy fireworks,
was in & fruit stend on Mein Street. The stend was valued at $35.0U and deamege
was estimeted at $20.00.

The second fire that the hose company responded to was on August 1,18%0,
just twenty deys before the ladder comp&ny received their apparatus. This was &
more serious fire,ss it completely destroyed the cider mill of Luke Brooks,
located just off Summer Street near where the oil tanks of the Unitea Cooperative
now stand.

The first fire that both companies responded to,was &t 7:00 A.M. January
19,1891,in the barber snop of Michnuael Crowley,in Dar;ihg's Biock,later calilied
the EBagies Building,ioceted at the corner oif Summer and Neson Streets. Loss was
estimated at $25.00. Cause wes given &asj;careless use of matches.

The first fire that the depertment responded to from the new sietion on
Nason Street,was agein in Darling's Block,et 6:30 a4.M. March 5,18%1 in tne meet

merket of Alex Mclntyre,& member of the hose company. LOoss was set &t Two
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dollsrs.Cause was given &as incendiery.

December 11,1891,an alarm on the Nason Street Schocl bell,et 7:40 P.M.,

called the department to the farm of Celvin Whitney,site of the present
Maynard Country Club,where & large bern filled with hay wes completely destroyed,

elong with fifty heed of cettle.This wes the second bern to be destroyed by

fire on this ferm.The department could do notning,as the nearest pyarant was
far peyond the reach of the siy hundred feet of hose that they cerried.

May 5,1892,an &alarm was given on the schoolhouse pell,for & fire in the
Riverside Cooperative Building,now known &s the Knights of Columbus Building.
Demage to the building was set 2t $3700 and to stock at $800. Without &n
orgenized fire department end a good water supply,this fire no doubt,could nave
developed into & generel conflegraetion that could have wiped out the center of
the town,which was &ll of wooden frame comstruction.

Mey 15,1892,Box 75.The bern of Daniel Parmenter,off Concord Street,on
whet is now Lewis Street,completely destroyed,along with three horses. This
wes the first elarm given on the nevw fire elarm system.

May 14,1894,Box 942t 9:30 P.M. The old paper mill,located on tne site of
the present Murphy end Snyder printing shop,a total loss. 4 fire in tne builaing
two nights previous had been extinguished,but this one had too good & start.
This property had been vecent for eighteen years.lt consisted of & number of
attached,rambiing one to three story buildings,in bad repair,doors and windows
open,making it a convenient hangout for tramps,who &are believed to have ceused
the fire.Loss was estimated at $1000.

July 4,1894.The hose company responded to an appeal for help from Hudson,
where & generel conflagration wiped out tne whole center of the town. The run
was mede with a mare named Nancy Hanks,owned by Warren Haynes the grain deal-
er.The trip wes made in tnirtdy nine and one helf minutes,with such & load, this
nearly killed the horse;the animel was never of much use afterwerds.The town

report of that year shows an item of $20.00 peid to Haynes for horse hire.
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As this was fer in excess of the usual rate,wnich was sometimes &as iittle &as
tifty cents,it may De assumed Lnat tnis amount was to partly compensate
Heynes for the damage done 1o tne enimael. The whole trip was in vain &S toe
Maynaerd hose taread woula not fit the standard tnreads on the Hudson nyarants.

September 6,1903,tne nose company went to West Concord to assist at a
pbad fire in the business district on Commonvwealtn iAvenue. The Maynard depari-
ment could do nothing as tney nad no pumping equipment oi &ny kind. Tne people
of Maynard,along what is now Route 62,were treatea o & spectacular sight woen
the Hudson department came through town witn four norses on their steamer,with
it's shrill whistle and trail of smoke,Sparks and Stesl.

February 2,1905-Box 41,-5:15 A.M. The toird serious fire on tne farm of
Celvin Wnitney totally destroyed & large building used &s a cider mill,tool
storage and workshop;it also noused & gasoline engine which pumped watler ior
& large herd of cattle. The fire is believed to have been started from thawing
a frozen water pipe with & blowtorch the night before,the pipes were insulated
with wool waste and it was thought thatl some of this meterial pecame ignitea
end smouldered througn the night; breaking out early in the morning. & hired
hand discovered the fire and nad to run all the way down to the fire station to
pull the box,wnich was then the closest one to the scene. Both the wnistle end
the schoolhouse bell failed to operate. Tony Coilins responded 1o ilne fire
elone with the one horse pung which carried 6U0 feet of hose,wnich was about
200 feet short of reaching the fire from the nearest nyarant;which was on
Tremont Street. So Tony drove back to tne station and loaded on more nose.
Needless to say,thet by the time ne got back to the fire,unrolled and laid
this additional hose,the building was flat to the ground.

March 31,1906-Box 52,-10:30 A.M. & small fire in Block 3,Fiorida Court,

took the life of Mrs. Annie Laakonen,vwhen She poured kerosene on & coal



fire in the Kkitchen stove.

July 6,1906, Box 41,-3:15 A.M.- Bootns powling Ailey,iocated airectiy
across tne street from tne fire station,a total loss. The fire is peiieved 1o
nave been startea by & pet monkey,tnat esczped Irom nis cage and overturned &
kerosene lamp.

November £6,1912. Box <5,- 3:30 A.M.- Music Hali,usually celled"the rinkt
located on Mein Street,on the site of the parking lot of Kelly's Lanes,a total
loss estimated at $12,000. Eli Gruber was the owner.

This huge freme building wes the largest place ol assembly in the town,
It wes used for roller skating,dences,sporting events,banquets and theatrical
performances. It hed & fully equipped stage &nd & lerge balcony &long the siaes
end rear of the nsll. It was the center of the socieir and sporting lile of
Maynard. There were four stores facing Main Street,& meal market,& shoe Trepelr
shop,& berber shop &nd & pool perior.

Tne fire was believea to have startea irom & cigarette butli,in the Dpaelcony.
There had been & basketpsll geme in tne hall tne nignht previous. The steam fire
whistle failed to operate,put the box registered in the station &na tne Scnool
bell sounded but many of the men feilea 1o hear it.

There wes only one man in the stetion in tnose times and he had o hiten
ug & pair of horses alone. The department encountered further delay,wnen they
vere unable to open the hydrant that toney first hooked up to. pecause oi the
size &nd the &li wood construction of this building,nend lines,with only
direct hydrent pressure,had litile effect on the fire. Mosi of the eifort
was directed towards protecting the adjacent buildings. The heat of tne fire
wes SO intense thet it broke tne large plete glass windows oi the Dibtasio
Merket across the street. This fire caused nearly <,0U0 damage to exposurcs,
probebly more damege to exposures then any fire up to the present time.

This agein wes & tire that had terrific potential,in such & ciosely

built up erea of wooa construction,with wooden shingle roofs &ll over town.
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December Y,191%,00X 43,-8:uy P.M. Tue nouse &nd burn of vimon Harttord on
Summer Street,later Known &s the Mascon feru,a totel loss. 1ue parn conteéinea
twenty ton of nay. This lara was tuen far from &ny nyarasut.

December lc,19i<, s:3u P.bi. The tnird wejor fire in siXtecn Gays,couplel-
€ly destroyed tne barn ol tune american Powaer Lompény,iocated on tne gite ol ilae
present H.H, Scott oplant.

This was tne leargest barn in tne arsa. 1t was of Irawe coustruction,with &
gambrel roof huving & central cupordé. There were sixtesn norses in the barn when
tne fire was discoverea,fourteen of them were rescued by the men oi iue viliuge;
eil of the houses in this part of town were ownea by tne powder cCowpaDy &nd were
occupied by employees. The nearest fire elarm box w&s the one on tne lire
stetion,a mile away. The alerm wus given by blowing the steaw wnistie on e
power house of the powder mills,locuted just across tne oriuge on High Street
in Acton, The sounding of this whistie and the g40W 1n lhe o4&y adertea ue
Meynurd Fire Depertaent. As wany of tne calimen were in the statioun &1 tais
tizme of the evening,no elerm was sounded on toe Maynerd iire &laru systenm,

The powder cowpuny had treir own volunteer fire brigaue wnich nud a
coupie of two wheeled hand drawn hose reele,lortunatiely they nusa susplers wnat
tllowved tne use of tneir standard taread nose on the Meynard nyarants.

The Concord Fire Departaent was cailea 0y officials of tue powaer willis.
The Concord department responded with & anox motor hose wagon, tne Lirst wotor
epperstus to see service in the town. By using tune powder cowgpany's Ldeplers,
Concord stretched in two lines of hose iroi@ & Meynara nydarent,whicn with tlne
three lines thet were alreedy operating off of tue singie ueed ena,six iunch
wein, reduced the pressure to almost notning,even witi: tne iiny toree quirter
inen nozzle tips,no stream would carry more than & dogen ieeil,s0 uney were
uneble 1w s&ve &ny of tne ettacned sneds. The wina was DLOWing directly LOwards

the mill yerd,cerrying brands &nd embers into tue miil y&rd. &8 lnere was no
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Snow on the grouna,tnese branas starteq grass &nd drusn lires in tue will yara
tnet ignited ana explodea unree Ol The wneel wiils.

ln sadition to tne TWO norses 14T COWLG NOL De Savel,& LULiru HOTSE was S0
bacly purnea tnat it naa 1o pe Kilieajseveral Olner norses naa tnelr nalr singod.
Seven pige in tne bern celiar vere lostjalong wila & iarge qusntity o1 hejy,grain,
narness &nd &ii otner stuble equipwment. Tnis fire was ol suspicious origin.

JUuly «<,1913,- 11:30 A.M. 4 celi lor assistence was receiveu lrom west
Acton,where & generai conflagration was raging out of controi,eventual.y
aestroying fourteen puildings and dameging wany more.

Ls Cniel Gutieridge dia not want To sound tne wnisSllé,ne Culied loe miidl
10 have tne lignts biinked tarougnout the wili,tnis was UsSed as & Sighal lnal ai.
callinen were wanted;iuney wourd get airections 1rom Tne gale lenacrs «s 1O lae
locatlion of the alara. Tnis was aone,pecause &5 1oud 45 LNE WOLETIE WaS,and it
could De neard in keltnam Wity & lavorable breeze,il COULQ NOL De meard in SOoie
perts of tne willi above tue souna ol lne macninery. He &isSO calieq Lue sireet
reilway,requesting the use oI tae car on tne wWest ACton brancn,wulcn was Que
back in Meaynerd spmortiy. This car was 10 be run &5 & speclal car 10 Carry ulne
men to West acton. He sent lony Coliins out &lone witn tne TwO norse nose
wagon,calculating that the men woulG gel 10 West AClon Delore TNE HOSE wWagln.

It dia not work cut Thatl way;nobody was leaving west scion in tne wiast oL ine
greatest catastrophe to beiall tne village,so Thne crew Ol lne troiley car
were in no nurry to leave eitner.

Tony trotted tne norées along &av & felr clip until ne was pastl souln
Action without meeting tne car. &S it was & single traci,Tony Knew tnal toey
could notl send snother car out of Maynara until Tnis one nea returned,so ne
slowea tne norses down to & walk. Just perore nicnarason's urossing,ne ieara
tae car coming aown the privete rignt of way. ne then Knew ioat 1t woula De
more than hali &n hour pelore the car coula possibly gel Dack Lrom Maynara

with the men. It was an extiremely not day,sSo whnen lony reacneu & point
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opposite tne cemetary,ne Stoppea &na puiled lne leaw Oover O ine siue ol lae
road,into tne snede of & Dig tree,zna let Thne norses rest untii ne€ neara ine
wnistle o1 the sireet car coming bsck irom Maynard. He tnen tOok oIfj;witn tne
norses well restea,tney gealioped into tne center Ol 1o0wn,straignl oul,u=king &
grandstend Iinish. In the account of tne fire in thne weekly hcton Enteryrise,
it statea: "Hose one of Maynara meae & iiying trip over tne roed &na Ceawe Aasning
into town witn foam fleckea norses."

Again it was & case of ilne Meynard aepariwent being siyymiea witn tneir
mongrel nose threesa. Tney coula not use laeir nose on lne acton nyarants. 1ne
men dia give the local voliunteers & nanc witn tneir uoseiines. Tne oniy eyuip-
ment that tae Maynara aepartment utiiizea were two ten yuart nend extinguisners
wnicn tney used on lae rool ol tne ireigal nouse wnen il pecame ignited oy &
riery orena. Ai'ter tnis experience,tlae Maynara aepariuent aCLuireu SOME aQ&uleTrs
S0 lnal lneir equipment couia De conneclea wila 51&NAara iareaa nyarants.

FEeDruary <byisli,— DOX 4e — 435U P.M. Milk snea Ol baniel rermenter
on wh&el is now lewis Street a total i0sS. This was the Lirsl &i&lil &nsSwersc
by tne new ifmerican LaFrance hose pruck.

Mey <,1916, - box 5« — 9:l5 k.M. Siignt property damége in DLOCK 5
Floriae Ct. Mrs. Jonn Stephanowicz 105t ner lile when sne pourea Kerosene on
& cozl 1ire in the kitcnen range. s repetition of & similar trageay,in tae
same building,ten years oelore &l &imost tne same nour of lue aay.

September l<,l9ylo- box 4i,il:<5 P.tl. Tne Nason Sireel SCnooL daleged
to tne extent of $«<5U py & tire of suspicious origin.

Septemoer <U,.l9.16,- box —4L - 1u:b5 P.ri. The Nason otreet ocnool a
total loss.

Tnis building ol iramme construction,was located Oon the samue iounaation

as tne present Roosevelt Scnool on Nason Streetl,oul was wucn niguer,ads it
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ned & pitchea rooif with aormers,tne wnole Deing surmounted by & Dellry,with &
.bell thatl wes connected to the fire alerw system. This toira iloor heia an
essembly hall &nd several olner sSm&lier roows. lhe ouilaing was still peing used
es & nign scnool. The puilding commitiee wes not seatistied witn some OI the work
cf the contr&actor on the new nigh schocl building on Summer Street. So nud refused
to accept this builaing. There was strong suspicion thet this aisagreement witn
the contractor &nd the two fires were something other than coinciaental. However
& formel inquest by the state fire marshell's office faiied to produce supbstant—
ial evidence oi arson. The school building committee hed no aiternative but to
eccept the new pullding on Summer Street.

4t tne vime of this fire,tnere were many more exposures around the site
than &1 the present time. There was & lumber ysra ana & iarge grain eievaior
directly in the rear of the houses on the opposite siae of Nason Street. There
Were houses along ulendale Streetl,in whél 1s now sScnoolLysard &nd an old Di&CK-
smith shop stood near the southeast corner of tne building. Any tnougnt ol
controliing the tire in tne scnool building wes hopeiess. hll efforts were airectea
towards proteciing the surrounding buildings. Une line of nose was Kept on
Glendale Street,wetting down tne roofs of nouses,all of whicn were coverea with
wooden shingles,which were very ary &and being snowerea witn burning embers.

Februsry 4,l9l§£—box 41 - 4:40 A.M. The Naylor Biock,located on the nortn
side of the square,& total loss. This builaing of two stories was o1 frame con-
struction,having stores on the ground fiocor. One being the jewelry shop of Chiet
George Gutteridge &nd another was the clotning store of Sam Lerer,wnose sons
ere still in the business on keain Street. The second floor heid oiiices and the

telepnone exchaenge. Columbus hainvilie,tne nignt operator on duty,was awaraed

the Alexander Granaw bell gold medal for devotion beyona the call of auty.
This whole area was then & much greater conflegretion threat than &t the

present time. Whet is now remorial Park and tne perking area was tnen very

closely packed with frawe buiidings,including & notel,nouses,sStores,stables,

& blecksmith shop and & peint shop. This fire wes fought in sub zero weather
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and & strong wind. put tane department was &ole 1O conrine tne iire tTo tne one
puilding,wnicn was & total 1loss.

Jenuary £5,i918,00x 33 - 9:<5 P.M. Tne Concord Meypnara « dudson Sireet
Reilway car barns,located on Great Roaa &l tne ena ci Main Street,a Total LlOsS.
This wae & brick building witn planked Tar and gravel rooi,two hundrea ana lour
feet long &nd eignty six feet wiae. Twelve wooden pPeSSenger cars,& WOTK Car,

& line car and & Snow plow were Gestroyea along witn all office and mailnteinance
equipment.

This was & fast burning fire,starting in one of tne wooden cars,it founa
plenty of fuel in tnese wooden cars wita taneir many coats of peint &nd varnish.
The building was completely involved when tne deparunent arrivea,aespite tae
efforts of the night watcnman to nold tne fire in cneck witn tne small fire nhose
that was Kept connected &nd packea in & rack just inside tne aoors. Tne only
two cars tnat were saved were the TWO Ca&rs Tnal were out running on toe liine,
and one of the two Snowplows happened 1O be out in the y&ard,so it was not
burnea.

October 17,1918,~box 41 - 1U:10 P.M. 4 bad fire in tne Meynard Hotel
Steolie. Captain Albert Smitn of tne laader comp&ny Droke & leg,when ne was
forced to jump from tne second iloor,wnen tne weigni of lhe water,tnal nad
peen abscrbed by the hey,caused tne floor To collzpse.

Februery i,1919,pbox 33 - 5:15 P.M. The ice nouses of Jemes Bent,on tae
river,near the pumping station,completely aestroyed.

August 1<,1919,pox 41 -1:40 P.M. Fire in the celiar oI tne Riversiae
Coopereative on Nason Street ceusea & loss of $3,600.

Jenuery <0,1920,0b0x 41,1:40 P.M. The Maynard Hotel completely gutited,
with & loss of $13,000. The fire sterted by fet ignivting on the kitcnen range.

This was & three story frame building,witn mansard roof,located on 1the

site of the War Memorial on Summer Street.
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March <5,1920,box 41,-<:20 A.M. The remains oi tne Maynara notel compietely
destroyed. The ruins of the old hotel naa been sola Dy Mertin reterson 1o J ames
Hepgood,wno had planned to salvage some of the lumber,but at'ter tnis secona fire
there was nothing left but ashes and tne cellar nole.

hugust 17,1920,box 41 - Ll:45 A.M. Tne nuge parn of tne American woolen
Company located between Hillside Street and tne river,with adjacent sneds ana
ell contents,including four neavy darait norses,& total loss. Tnis opuilding
was squere,with & high loft and & mansard roof surmounted by & central cupolé.

The fire was spotted by the engineer of tne mill power nouse,on Walnut
Street. There was no fire alerm box in the vicinity,one was instaliea rignt
efter the fire,at the corner of Walnut and Tonompson streets. Tne engineer &t
the power house startea to blow the variable pitch wnistie &t tne same time Toat
someone downtown ned pulleda tne box on tae front of the iire station. The opealem
created by the blowing of botn of tne wnisties ana tne glow tnet Lit Tne wnole
sky,attracted & huge crowa irom miles around,aespite the earliy morning nour.

Eight lines of hose were used on the fire witn no eifect. Five ol tunese
lines were laid by mill empioyees from hydranis near the parn that were on tae
mill system,wnich was supplied with river water delivered by tne two steam iire
pumps in the mill boiler house. These mill fire pumps had & rated capacity of
2500 gallons per minute,but like all steam driven pumps were capable of aeliver-
ing far in excess of their rated capacity. A total of <350 feet oif nose wes
leid,the largest amount of two and one nelf inch hose ever laid in Meynara and
was to be so for a good many years aiter. Nine nunared feet of hose was laid
by the town department,which was about &ll that they carried,tae remaining
1450 feet being laid by the milil brigadae irom tnelir two wneeled n&nd drawn

hose reels. The total loss was set at $15,700.
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MEY 4ylJcl,— OUlLL &U&TUMy— 330U Fole £ Piebbanl oilreetl. &£ iire causeu oy
lae expiosion o1 & Kerosene lamp, TOUK tne iile 01 wmrs. nicusra cwanson ana Ouusy
durnea ner two yesr oia son Leorge. Damicge W0 e N0USE was negiiganLe.,

Jenuery <ec,lyc4,~ BOX <4,- Lutuu P.4. The grocery store ol Jonn vaise,
ioceatlec on tne lot now occupiea Dy tne dwelliin, LoOuse &t bc rarker otreet. Que
ouiiaing and contents were & 10teél L0sS. Tnis was tue iLast run of iae norses,
lney were oelng used on ine oid hose wagon wnile tne Lubrance Lose Trucs wWes in
the paint snop. This was tne first run of tne Feaeral lacder truck.

April cylY9c4,= BOX 45,- 33115 P.Ml. Tne Joel rarmenter house on Acton Olreet,
& total loss. Tnpe location is now Lnown && HOCKLI&anQ Avenue,wnicn &l lual Uiwe
was the drivewsy 10 tue larmyara. 1ais was one ol the OLUEr nouses et preaaiea
tne incorporetion of the town. It was & large rauoiing structure ol Two siories
with & wensaru rool. 1t naa always oeen & two lawiiy nhouse. in iater JEaTrs tne
Properily nea oeen aivicea 50 lnal lne property Line ran LOArcugh the Louse, uniy
one halil oi tne nouse reweinea in the rerwenter lawiiy;tue OLner neil was
Ownea Oy martin Felerson,wi0 nad OwWNed the IOTWer nefNara aolel whicn nau
ourned iour jyears previous. 1l was in tue siue owneu by felerscn utial tae lire
starteqa. ine entire house was taen vacant.

Tnis puiiding weas tnen lar peyona tne reach ol & nyarant. sut Iiremen
WNO were eariy on thne scene,sala Unel lne lire was swall woen lney &rrivea ana
vhatl lney ned 1v &imoSt out,using &ll &vailiabie nend extinguishers aua taoe
foriy gelion chemical ank on tne nose truck. Tnese wen were oi a very sirong
opinion tnet il ihe newly acyuired iucaer LrucK haa oeen eyuigpea wiln & pooster
lank they coula nave easiiy nave saveu the nouse.

Mey cbylycd,-Still alarm,- S:0v Pf.M. lue Crickel uiub,iocatleu near ine
site ol the present ureen Meaaow School. 4 tOTal L05S. NO &tlewpl was wuGe 10
extinguisn tnis Iire &s thne rool was dOwL DEiOre anyone noulcea 1tl,ab 1T was

auring & neavy rain storu. 1ais was toe second cLubnouse 10 De Qestroyea oy

fire at this location.
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October 24,1927,- Box 24,- 1:30 A.M.- The Washington rarmenter house,located

off Parker Street,on whet is now "B" Street,occupied by tne family oi Kari
Shalston. The house &nd entire contents were & total loss.

This was one of the oldest homes in town,occupied for meny yeers Dy tue
Permenter family,who were early settlers oi Sudbury,tnis part of Maynard was
originaily & part of Sudbury. This fire was sm&ll wnen the department arrived.
They lsid out all of the hose that they carried on the two itrucks,i,VUu feet on
the hose end 500 feet on the ladder. This came four lengths snort of reaching
the fire. So the hose truck was driven bsck to the station and loaded with
rolls of extre hose. By the time that they got back and unrolled and hand leid
this additional hose,the fire was completely out of control of this one feeble
stream. They were using 1,700 feet of two and one half inch hose,connected
without & pump,tc & hydrant on & dead end,four inch,unlined cast iron mein,witn
& static head of less than seventy pounds.

December 19,1927,- Box 41,- 3:10 A.M. The Silverstien Block,z total loss.
This one story block of stores,located on the west side of the square,had been
built only two yeers previous,on the site of the Meynard estete. Tne block nad
six stores on the street level and & bowling alley in the basement. The fire
glarm feiled after the first blow,so thnere was & critical shortage of man-
pover from the very start,tc cope with a fire in & building of this type.

Marcn 16,1932,- 3:30 P.M. The department was callied to West Concord,where
& general conflegretion that involved half & dozen buildings,including the fire
station,where the fire sterted,was raging out of control. The Maynard department
might just &s well have stayed at home;&s they were no better equipped than
they were when they went there nearly thirty yeers before. They were helpless
without pumping equipment.

April 30,1932,- Box 26,- 1<2:3uU A.M. The Walthem Street Heil & totel loss.
This huge freme structure of two and one half stories,with & pitched roof,

covered the entire lot between thirty nine and thirty three Waltham Street

and backed up to the rear of the houses on Grant Street. It housed a large
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hell witn & fully eguipped stage,&long with xitchen iacilitles &na olher specled

function roome,also iiving quarters 1or & custoaisn,wnicn were unoccupled.

It would be hera to celi this fire enytning but & Iiasco. 1lhe nesd ned
just been closed,{oliowing & a&nce,vwnen someone noticec & if.icker of 1ignt in &an
ettic window. The box &t Peper Miil LOTNEr wab pullea iumeaisatery snc the fire
depuriment respondec prompily. They Leid & single iine Ol 1WO &na one neal incn
pose from tne hydrent on haltham Street,just beiow Gariieia dtrect. They arwgged
this heavy line up neerly three teli flights of winaing steire 1o tne ettic. It
appeered tngt tney ned ine {ire under control. Most ol ine crowe ol specletors
ned leift. une oi the Live wnite helmeted engineers nad his head outl of &n &tvtic
window;peliovwing &t tne top of uis lungs:-"ke got 'er iic<eal he got ter iickeal
over &nd Over ugein. wihen suadeniy the wnoie S&y 1it up &8s liwmes roerea up tue
dry wooden clappoards on iue beck of the buiiding. witoln winutes lue WaOlé Upper
part o1 une buliding was invoived. The men scrambiec out of the building &na
1eid two more iines,out these were frum hydranis on o.G tour incn meins,;so toe
feeble stresus &t tlie nozzles naa &bout as muca reuch &nd peneiration ws
weter torown Irow & bucket.

¥ith {lemes iesping nigh in the &ir and ourning orends snowering &li
eround;Frank Binis,who wus tnen chilrman of the bouru oi selecuuen,anu livea
in the second nouse on Garrield Street,ilitiie woOre Lnen @ NUNATEd yurds awdy,
becane very apprehensive &na nad calls for heip sent w ¢oncora &nd acivn.

Vhen these out of town cowpenies urriveu On lhe SCENE, liey Were greel-
ed by the engineers of the daynard depurtment,like tne proverbiil sS£unke &t a
lewn periy. wecking eny sign of cooperation,the LONCOTU Qeptruient i&lu & iine
from the fire buck w the nydrunt on welitnaw Street,ncar uariieilqa wireei,wnicn
ine Maynara aepertaent nad & singie line Lookeu W,and novkea up tuelr seven
$ifty puwper w the cther outiev of luis hydrent. This ol course aeveiopea toe
only decent streaw on tune Iire,but cretied tae riaiculous situation of the

Meynerc line getting oniy the resiausas pressure of the suction side of tue
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Goncora pumper,wnich had TwO wOre outlels taoat Were not Deing usea,but gaynard
woulda not snift tneir lines onto tnem. Tne Acton aepartment,wno nad responaea
witn every piece ot &apparatus in iheir town,idia TwO Llines oi nouse lrom Tae
Midalesex w&undry ana drailtlea water 1rom tne river,using little taree quarter
inch tips on their nozzles,as tneir pump n&a & capacity Ol only taree gunarea
end fifty galions per minute.

Februery 1U,1955,-5tili alarm &l 1JUiUU s.0.,l0L10wed Dy LOX i<l 1ilteen
minutes later. The nome oif Louls Does£e &l tne corner oi Tnira ana Fourtn
streets & total ioss.

Tnis was & classic examplie ol the faliacy ol not striking & bDox 10T &
iire known to involve & ouiliaing. Tne owner was altempting TO taew & irozen
watler pipe witn & opiowtorcnj;wnicn ignitea wooawork penind & partition. lae
owner cualled the rire department &and in & clear caiw voice,gave ine ariver
wWno &answered the phone,& clear picture ol exactly where tne iire was and wnat
was invoivea. The driver of tne nose truck went out &lone,which was tne policy
of tne engineers at tnat time. They probabiy aia not went to be disturbea Too
often by box alarms. Wnen the ariver tried to nandle toe Iire eione with nana
extinguisners ne soon realizea thal the tire was gaining on him ana thatl ne
wes fighting & Losing battle, SO ne pnonea bacKk TO tue sStation 10 strike tuae
box. As tnere was no box closer than nayes Street al tnatl liwe,tne bOxX Lo&l
wWas STruck was & pnantom boX.The closest nhyarant To tane scene was on waltaal
Street near Wooa Lane. This nydrant was fed by & lour inch wain. A;L Ol tutnese

adverse conditions snoula nave peen taken into consideration immeaiately upon

receiving tne cail. It took nearly &ll Ol The hLoSe tual was carried in potn
trucks 1o reacn from the nyarant to the fire. wWitnout & pump the pressure was
SO poor ilnatl the water bareiy ran oul ol tne nozzie. Tnis weager water supgly

merely prolonged ine agony,&s it Took nali of & bitter cola aay to completely

consume the builaing
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February 1,1934,00X <4,— l:iul AL.M. The balcolm house,one of tune town's
lendmerks,located on rarker Streel near the site oI tue present ALKins &« merriil
plant,s total i0SS. Tnis was just anotner case Ol lae ineilectiveness ol & LlOng
stretcn of hose,directly ofi & nydrent,witoout lué use ol puwping equipwent.

July 14,1934,80% 41,- 4342 L.M. The uruber puiicing on Main Olreet was
severely dem&ged. The lower part of tnis puiiding still stenas aua is stilt
owned Dy the Gruber femily &nd p&rt of it is occupiea by the uruper rurniture
Company.

At tne time of this fire,the puiiding naa &n eaditicnal story,wnicn nela
e movie theatre that wes not operating at tne time. Above the ioDDy Ol tne
tneatre was an apertwent which was &lso vecant at tne time. Tne tront of ine
second story,vwhich was not purnea,held several town of1ices. The Iirst 1i00r
was occupied oy the Grubper surniture store,diggins end ning iiguor store,tue
police stetion &and & bekery shop. The buxker discovered tne fire in tne rear ol
the buiiding and ran up to Tthe iire stetion to give ine alerm.

This was the first fire tnet the Meynerd aepartment naa toree peices oi
apperatus aveilable ior use. Damege was estimeted &T $<<,U0U.

January 30,1936,B0ox 41, - 6:20 P.i. Taoe Cooperative osuiliaing severeiy
demeged. The lower part of this buiiaing,locatlea &l tne corner of Summer ana
Neson streets,is now known &s the anignts of Coluuwbus puilaing. 1t naa anouner
story and & half spove tne roof of tne present builaing. Iv was seventy ilour
ieet irom tne ground,on the south siae of tnis builalng, 0 lhe peax Ol tue
root. This third ilcor,irom the wason Street siae,neld & lerge hali,with &
stage &nd & balcony. lown meetings were nela in tais nail. sabove lals nedll wWas
another smelier hall,puilt witnin the lour gabies of tne roof,vwuicn was coverea
with slete.

The fire staertea in a barrel of rubbisn that naq pbeen itelt in tue

stairway 1o tne small banquet nall,which nad not been usea tor years. Thnere



d 19
hed been & wedding party in the hell & couplie of days before,so this rubpish,
consisting mostly of paper cups and pletes,must have conteined some scraps of
food. £ ret nibbling at this food,must have nipbpled a match,as the body oi the
deed ret wes found in the berrel,aiter ilne fire was extinguisned.

Ls this building had long been considered doomed,in case of & fire involv-
ing the upper floors; Chief Priest celled aid from Stow,hcton and Concord. The
concept of mutual &ic was now preity much established,it was no longer considerea
& disgrace,pbut rether & sign of good judgement,ior & cnief to request outside
help on & serious fire. The Stow end Acton companies worked with Maynard &t the
fire,wnile Concord filled in &t the Meynard station.

Despite the height of this building end the lack of eseriel equipment,
the fire was confined to the third and fourth floors. Damage to tne building
- was set at $13,000 end to contents &t $3.000,mostly caused by weter and subsequent
freezing, in the Morse Grocery store end the Murphy & Snyder printing shnop,
both of which were located on the Neson Street fioor level.

Februaery 3,1936,- Box 42,- 1:30 P.M. Fire started by sparks from the
chimney,igniting the wooden shingled roof,of tne home of Harry Frye &t i< Vernon
Street,damaged the house beyond repeir. The only aveilable hydrant wes ted by &
four inch deed end mein and & test meade later,by the rating pureazu,snowed &
flow of only forty gelions per minute &t twenty pounds pressure.Most ol thne
firefighting hed to be done with the one inch hose from the booster tank cf
the only peice of &appearztus that was so equipped.

December 8,1939,- Box 52,3:35 A.M. The Minto House,a frame thirty two
room lodging house,located at i75-177 Mein Street. This builaing was three
end one helf stories on the sides and rear,as Main Street is on & deep filil,
with & high retsining wall,at this point. mMuch of the building was vacent at
this time. 4 very strong wind w&s Dlowing from the south,the south side of
the building was fully involved when the fire was discovered. The fire spread

to the next building,wnich was of the same size and construction. Deamage to
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tnis second building was neid to §65.UU. The aerial Luaaer was usea 10 gooa
advantage in the rear of the puilaing,witn two iines feeding the ladaer gun, .Gnis
was the first use of & major stream &ppliance in Maynerd.

During the course of this fire,tne Stow departuwent coverea tne Maynera
stetion and answereda two calls,one for & cnimney lire on Mapie Stireet ana the
otner for & cnimney fire on Railroaa Street.

L total of 3,400 feet of two ana one nalf incn nose was usea,lne mwost nose
ever used &t a fire in Maynard up until Tnatl Time. MOST Ol lhe Ssouln siae oi tne
puilding wes aestroyed,this part of ine puilding was repliaced Dy tTne puiiaing
now occupied by pucemi's Market. Tne nortin side was repairea and remocelea into
aparuments. LOoss was setl at $7,Uud

Marcen Y,1941, Dox <5,- 7:<5 k.M. a Dearoom fire in tne roowing nouse on uiae
second floor of tine puilding at 34 Mein Street,took ine iile of Micnael LSmMeNOWlCZ.
He was alive and concious whnen firemen carried nim irom the puiiaing out aiea in
the nospital the foliowing aay. Damage 10 1ae room wWas siignt.

December <6,1943,b0x <8 — 5:50 A.i. A two fawily frame awelling &l &
River Stireet wes tne scene of & fire that took the lile of knna reliln,tne year
old dsughter of Charles &nd Eva delin. LOSS 10 tne puilding was $5,5UU.

Jenuary 2U,1948,box 46, - 8:50 P.M. Joseph Tucker rost nis lile in & tire
in nis nome in the two tamily frawe aweliing &tu ¢5-¢7 wason Street. Damage 10
the building was $5,000.

November 13,.1950,b0x 34, - Ll<:iU5 a.M. Ice nouses ol ilne mMaynard Ice &« UiL
Compeny ofi Winter Street,near tne pumping station & total 10SS. The builidings
had been unusea lor several years. Tney were pbuilt on tne Iounaations oi ice
houses that burned in 19l9Y.

July <U,lv5<,00x 43,- 3:<7 &.d. The nome ol Chiel Engineer Wiison atv
L1l4 Summer Street was aamageda to tne extent of $l<,UuU Dy & lire peiieved 1o
neve peen of incendiary origia. The lamily was away on vacallon &t tne time.

October 31,195<,00X 3<,— Y:UU A.M. A large unree S1Ory lTame lenewent

house &t 171-173 Main Street a totalL 1OSS.
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iaing was ol fraume consiruction &na was 10C&LEG &l La€ CUTNEr Ol Uulu€r &l

pui
Nason streets,uand covered tne same area as tne present Bagles opuiialng,out

wes 0l three stories,the tanira story being inciudea wilndn tne wenssarda rooi.
The upper 1i00ors neid & nall &na ciubroous. Ine Iirsti 1.i00r nad lour stores;

mMessier rnoto Studio,Beacon rubiLisners,LEUrson cnoe nepslr ana wooaricu

Cleuners,wnere tne rire started. Interior walis &na ceiiings ol tuis ouliding
were & cowbination ol wuoQ Snestning &na sneet welalj; DOla NOLOrious iire

breeaers. The tire traveled yuickly up Detween tne walls &nd pariitions 1o tae

Mo,
mansard rool,
kic was callied irom Acton,loncord and OTOW,lne L&ller COVerilg 1n &t
the Meynard station. LConcora responaec witn & toousana galiOn puLper, nose

wagon &nd &n aerial laaaer;tne 1irst tiwe tnal WO &erials were ever



utilized et & fire in Maynard.The Maynard ladder truck was set on the Nason
Street side but proved ineffective,as tney were ettempting to operate tne ladaer
pipe with two direct hydrent lines,witnout & pump,althougn they haa pumpers
standing idle in the street.The Goncord ladder was set on the Summer Street siae,
e highly effective stream was developed Dy their ladder pipe which was fed with
two lines from their thousand gellon pumper,whicn was hooked up to the first
hydrant on Meple Street. 5,400 feet of two and one helf inch hose was used.

Loss was estimated at $50,000.

October 19,1960, - Box 45, - 5:45 k.M. A single femily frame dwelling,
located at 88 Acton Street,a totel loss,teking the life of the lone occupant,
Thomes Wright,82 years old.

gt

June 31,1964, - Box 22, - 1z:31 A.M. Twin Tree Inn,3/ Powder Mill Roed,
e totel loss. This building wes & large two story frame structure thaet had
been remodeled end added tos & number of times over the yeers. The fire broke
out right after closing time but employees were still in the building,cleaning
up,vhen & passing motorist saw the flames in en upstairs window &nd gave the
alerm.The Concord and Acton departments worked with Maynard at this fire while

Sudbury coeered the Maynerd station.¥Water wes pumped from the river,which wes

unnecessary &as there was an emple supply in nearby hydrants that were not

utilized. 1,300 feet of two and one half inch hose was leid.Loss was set &t
$150,000.

June 7,1964,-Still alarm at 8:35 A.M. & two femily dwelling located at
26 — 28 Mill Street wes demaged to the extent of 5,500 end took the life of
Karl Benz,the cwner of the property,wno occupied one half of the house. MaE%
of the damage to the building was caused by the initial explosion of volafile
vepors from an adhesive that the owner was using to lay a tile flocr in thne

basement.These vapors were ignited by the pilot light of & gas burning hot

water heater in the &res,
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June 31,1965,-Box 51,-4:00 &.M. The olG Meynerd mension,loceted &t the
corner of Dartmouth and Elmwood streets;& totali loss. This freme ouilding,of
three stories,including the mensard rooi,was built by the Maynara leaally,lounaers
of the woolen industry that once dominated the economy oif the town. when tne
Lmericen Woolen Company ecquired tne property of the assebet Menutecturing Compeauy,
this mension &and & similer one,located &t the lower end of Dartmoutn Street,were
inciuded in the transection. They were both converted to multiple fewmily dweliings.
Around 1940,the one that burned haa been converted to & Polisn Church,which was
used but & short time. At the time of the fire it was agein being converted back
to e&n apertment house. The plester had been torn out of the entire puilding,so
thet when the fire was discovered,flemes were roering from the cellar to tne roof.
The . Stow and Acton departments workea with Meynard et tne fire waile Concora

covered the Meynerd stetion. because of tne high elevation ana the six inch aead

end main,weter supply wes poor,making lines that were connectea airectly teo nycrants,

without & pump,slmost useless. 4 total of 3600 feet of two &nd one helf inch hose
wes used. The fire wes of suspicious origin.

September 9,1965,-Box 14,-8:35 P.M. Builaings of Seder & Ricnmond,usea for
storage and seles of hey,grain &nd builcding materiels;s totel loss. This buiiaing
wes &ctuelly two buildings thet nad been connected togetner,being tne l&st of &
number of buildings thet were originally built by warren 4. Haynes,over & period
of years when he conducted &n extensive business,desling in hay,grein,lumber
end ferm implements. During later years,most of the buildings had been torn down,
these remeining buildings were between Nason Street &nd the railroaq tracks,north
of Summer Street. The part of the building directly in tne reer of the present

freme business end epartment block,&t the corner of Summer &nd Nason streets



w&s Ol Irame qonstruction,two stories nigh,witn & pitconea siatle rooi. laois
building was in & pud state ol repeir,witn weny wiNnaows OrUKen Oul,glving luid
vent 10 the fliesmes irom tne very stert. Tnis buiiaing was cniy a lew leel 1TOwL
the two connected buildings &t the corner of oumier &nd N&sSOn SUreetls,posing &
serious threat to tnese ouildings wnich were weatnerpeatlen lrauw€e construction.
The one story grein storege section wes also of freme construction witn & pitchea
slate roof,but the side walls were coverea with sneet wetel,masing 1t very diri-
icult to gain enirance to or to ventilete. The interior of tois pulluing wes coverea
with years of accunuletion of grain dust,creating &n &iwost explosive situation.

scton end Concord assisted tne Meynerd departwent &t tne lire,wnile a
Sudbury engine compeny covered tne Meynera station. A& wotal Ol 5,40v leetl o1
two end cone nali inch nose wes leia. LOSS Was €sTiumualea &l g<o,Uuu.

November <5,1960,- DOX 3<c,— LisU A.M. Tnoe Two Iamlliy lreme nouse iocatea
at 38-4U Mcdinley Street demaged To tne extent ol §l5,0uu ana TOOK The Lile ol
Mrs. parbara Cookson,in wnose aparument tne iire startea.

Feobruery <b,1967,-pox 3< — li:3U A.M. Tne oid fastime nall,iocated &l Loe
end of Herrimen Court,& totel ioss. Tnis puilaing was originaiiy & iarge iivery
stable,puilt in 1d86,to0 repiace & similer structure tnat nua peen aestroyed Oy
fire.

The builaing weas of typicel frame oern construction,witn & nign gablec
roof covered with slate and surmounted Dy & central cupol&. wnen tnis puilding
wes converted to use &s & hail,meny ol tne neavy supporiing timbers were
removed,So with the neavy slete rcoi,it was in every sense & liretrap.

When stete reguletions restricted the &llowable cepacity ol tnis puilding
to such &n extent that it was no longer profitaple 1o rent it as & nail,it was

utilized as & warenouse &nd Snop by the prackett neating « Ventiisting Lompany



~a

d <4

When tne department arrived on the scene ol Tnis tire,tue interior oi tne
building was completely involvea,any tnought of operating lines inside ol tunis
puilding would have oeen foolnaray. The only hyarant on narriman Court was
directly in front of tune buiiding,tnis nyarant was on & dead end unlined cast
iron main nearly eighty years old and badly tuperculated. Recent flow tests
showed that this hydrant had a capacity of only 115 galions per minute &t &
residual pressure of twenty pounds;less tnan helf thne water requirea 1or one
fire stream. The fire department was aware of the meager water Supply to tnis
hydrant and exercised good judgment in not even hooking up to it,as it wouid
have been & waste of valusble time. Instead,lines were stretcaed irom nydrants
on Main Street,which are fed from the twelve inch main on the line from the
center of town to the Summer Hill reservoir. Pumpers were nhooked up,mexing
meximun eifectiveness of these lines. i Concord pumper was nooked up on Spring
Lane and was able to get @ fair stream on tneir laader pipe using a small
nozzle tip. -

Concord and Acton worked with the Maynard department &t tne fire,winile
a Sudbury engine company stood by on High Street to protect exposures &and toe
Stow department covered tne Maynerd station.

A total of 7,00uU feet of two and one nelf incn nose was used,tne mMOST
nose ever used at a tire in Maynara up to tnat time. Loss was set &t $31,00U,
$3,000 on the building and $<8,U00 on tne contents. Very little insurance was

carried because of the high rate on & risk of this kina.
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Sociel and Freternai activities

£t the time that the Meaynera depeértment wes Organizeq,iire degaruwents, except
in the larger cities,were consiaered to De primerily & sociel orgenizetion. 1o
gain membership in the wepartment reyuirea sponsorshipy Dy & wewoer ana & vote
of tne company wemoersnip lor usduwittance, so tue candia&te nea 10 aeciae
oelorenand wnicn company ne nad tne Dest cnence ol Delng eirecleu 10, Kiveaury
petween the couwpanies wus Iierce.

Eecn company naa it's own treasury aund iunds. vuring ine I1irst yeuar ol
ine depurwwent's exisiance,ine town peic no salaries &T &ll. 1Le wen were
&E5E55€0 & twenty ifive cent iine for ewcn i1ire or weellny wlsseu. Lais woney
Went intlo ine company treasury ior use {or enterteinment &ng Trelrésnwents.
rairs,ruilies ana dences Were neia reguisriy Dy ewcn Ol Lhe Ccullpanies 10 raise
iunas lor thelr respective treasuries. une o0i itne 1irst ey Or EXpenciiures LI ou
tnese funas wes 1or uniforms. The lzader compeany being the 1irst to be COLpyiet-
ely outiitted &ana ine nose comptny 10iiowed snort.y alter. ine uniiorms were
meae by P.J.Surlivan the Local tailor.

Although the station ned an imeginary partition uarousn tne miuule, volu
companies were ailowed equal use oi tne £itlchen;comul Ltees woula De &ppointea
1¢ conier on &n sgreement &s to the time ailottea 1o eacu Cowpany. une o0i lac
ifew joint ventures of the two cowpanies,was Lue purcnase ol lolaing casirs ana
lables along wita aisnes ana kitcnen utinsadis. UbUkily On€ Or iue olaer o0l tlue
compenies would nave & deLUrd&y nignt Supger &l tue sStation. Lne &pparalus
would De puliea out on tne apron in iront of taoe siation ana tne tadies ovet
up on lhe &pparatus 1loor,

onority arter acyuiring uueir Gpperalus, UOLL COowptNles nuu & gl'uuy
PO0l0grapn laken Dy HOLWES Un€ pAOLOgT&pner &na €acn CoupaNy il TUrll Laue a
loruel presentation oi their lrasuwea picture 10 tne other company. Tnese

photos are now in the possesion of the Maynard Historical Society.



The seriousness and formeiity witn wnich the mewmpersnip dealt with wanet we
now would consider triviel affeirs,is snown in the recoras of the laaaer company,
where &t a meeting held February <,18%9<;efter lengtny aiscussion,it was votea to
discherge & two men committee thal had been nemed Dy @ previous mecting 1o invest—
igate the purchese of & mirror for their meeting room. 4s tnis commitiee nud not
mace a setisfactory report of progress;tihey were replaced oy & committee of one:
namely:- John Wollerschied;wno reportea back st tne next meeting tnat & very Iine
mirror could be purchased at the daynes Furniture Company ior eight aollars.

Following tne dedicetion of the new station on Februery is,loyl,wnich was
celebrated with & catered banquet hela on the apperatus fioor,une engineers
edopted a set ol rules of conduct ror une wembers use oi Tae building. Forewost
emong taese rules was one 1orbilaaing tne possession or use of liguor in the
building or on the grounds;taere was very Litile of tne grounds tonwt were not
covered Dy the building. The boys quickliy founa & way arouna tnis one. Tney

obtained & piano box,fitted the cover witn ninges,a hasp and a peaiock. Tney set

. the box out in beck of tne station,wnere on special occasions,it couid ve moved

& couple of feet over the property line onto wnat was actually railroad property.
The pieno box beceame an institution tun&t survived for years.

The old timers used to tell & story about tne Saturasy nignt tnat tne hose
company was going to have & clam chowder supper. The committee haa worked hara
peeling &nd slicing the potatoes &na onions,but the stoker was heving & hard
time getting & good fire going in the kitchen range. This acliay did not seem to
bother most of the boys too much,zs the pieno bDox was pretiy well stocked. It
was pretty late in the evening,when the kitchen comwittee,who had wmade quite
& few trips to the piano box tneuwselves,served tne clzm chowaer. when the mwe&l
was Iinished,tne committee wes given the usual rising vote oI thanks ior
preparing whet was praisea as the best clam chowaer that tuhey ever naa. when

tne committee returned to clean up tne kitcnen tne next morning, taey founa



tne gasion of clums,that were supposea LU nave pdeen pul in ine chnowuer,silis
unaer utne £itlcnen sink.

£S &an examplie 0l Lne exient Ol sowe Ol Tne &acllviiles Ol e Qepalluent,
Compeny recoras Snow tnal in one suort period in loyv;siartlng hugust i, taey
took part in & parace and lield aey in Concora Junciicn{ikow west Loncora).un
hugust <Utn,a clam Dake,Jrepared Dy AQelbert Martin,was neia witn guesis Lrow
ine Hudson department. September Htn,marchea in uniiori in & parade in Mariooro.
Septemper ibtn,participatea in & muster &l nudson &na Seplember oula,cowpetea in
& hose race at kyer. 1t must De remeuberea taal loe only weans Ol lransportation

in those days wes Dy eitiner norse and wagon Or trains.

During tne July 4ta celebration in iyu,,tue nose comp&any waae an exnioitlion
Tun lrom tue station on Neson oireel,wiln Lhe ONE LOTSE NOSE wagll,alld neu &
stream of water on tne sieepie 0i lne Laimolic Cnurchn in turee winutes ana twenty
1ive seconas afler the horse was releasea iromw nis stali. in vctuber ol taat
year,the entire aepariment appearea in uniiorm «t tne annual concert &na baii OL
the Soutn acton Voiunteer rire Uepertuent.

In 1yU<,tne hose racing team consistea oif': km. runcn, Lawrence rielcner,
kloert Coughlen, Geo. uynch, Jonn Lawton, Jooaue Bawaras, Jonn bacey, Frea axiora
end Wm. Lewler. Their recora of victories wuas not spectacuiar. Tuere are
however,a tew trophies still in thne siution today. Une is & peautilully engravea
Speaking trumpet won in 190U &t tne Huason Firemens Fair. & cup won in & tug of
war &t tne July 4tn celebration hela at Lrowe Park in 19Y<U. Tnere is anotner cup
that was won by & nastily assemblea water polo team &l tne 1955 Acton Fair,
aespite the fact that none of the men haa ever hanaled incn &na one nall nose
before the contest. Tne Meynard aeparunent aia not acyuire tois type ol nose
untili the foilowing year. ln lact il Was tne priwary opjective ol tnis team,

ol which the &suthor was & wember,to dewonstrate 10 SOuWe mEWwDers ol Tne ilinance
comnitliee wno witnessea tne contest,lhe maneuveranviiity ol lne 1nch ana one

nali nose. We never expectea 1o win tne Iirst pricze.
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From 1890 until 1905, tne gela event of the year was tne annusl Thensgiving
Eve Ball,at first held in Cooperative Hell &nd leter in Music dell. Tnese afi'eirs
were & huge success socially,but did not dao so well financielily,tce one neld in
1902 mede & profit of fifty five cents and tne .Last one neld in 1905,1081 iifteen
dollars,and as vas the general ruie,an assessment was wade agelnst every wember
of tne aepartment to cover tne deficit.

After 1903,wnen ine permenent man and the norse occupiea taoe station, tne
Saturdey nignt suppers became impracticar zs the Kitcnen nuda been ailswanuiea,so
in 1907 at & joint meeting of the two companies it was vVotea o s=il tue cheirs,
tebles &nd xitchen equipment to the Cricket Cluo and diviae the woney eyuelly,
but before the Cricket Club pazid for this equipment,their clubnouse burnea ilat to
the ground,so it wes & long time before the firemen iinei.iy ot tneir money.

The first active member of tne depertment to die,wes Captein Michael Sneehan,
who died May <1,1901,so starting that year,on tne second Sunday of June,whicn is
Firemens Memorial Sunday,the department ineugratea the practice of ducorating the
greves of deceased members. For & numper of years the firemen marched to the
cemeﬁaries with tne Fraternel Urder of hagles,who observeda thne same dey. 4 taree
man drum corps; was.hirea to provide the cadence l'or tue werchers. hiong &bout tae
twenties,tne spirit to merch to the cemetaries aaa waneda and toe men Startea to
ride up in cars.

By 1937,wnhet were left oI tae old uniforms were so out of styie taatl &
complete new set of uniiorms were bought and & ceaer closet was built in the
Station to stors tnem in. The folliowing yeer une firemen marchea in tne ey >0tn
Memoriel Dzy perade. In this same year,new bronze grave uwerkers were bougat to
replace the old cast iron ones. &4 few years iater the men returnea to tae practice
oi decorating the graves on the reguléar Firemens Memorial Sunday,which was
continued until 1953 Whnen this practice was discontinued,the men startea o

attend & church service,in uniform,in & boay,&t diiierent churches each yeer.

In 1970,the graves were agein decorated,but by this time ail of ine bronze



markers nad disappeared;the work of cemetary vandals.

Througnout the years from tne peginning oif the deparument,iliture taought
nad ever peen given to tne possipility ol men being kiliea or injured at a iire,
but on October 17,1918,at a bad fire invoiving tne Maynard Hotel otabple,oft
Summer Street,Albert Smith,captain of the ladder compzny,was forced to Jump from
& high loft window,suffering a broken leg,wnich aiong witn the pain &na suiiering,
cost nim a sizable medical bill along witn tne loss of more tnan taree monins pay
due to0 absence Irom his regular job. At that tiwe tnere was no legal way for &
town to compensate firemen for expenses caused oy injury in tne line of duty.

Of course the men of tne department promoted a number of beneiit afiazirs to
raise money to assist tne unifortunate brother witn his iinancial purden. Tnis
incident sharply pointed out tne need for some predeterminea plian of assistance
to any member of the department wno might oecome injured in tne iine of duty or
suffer some other very serious misfortune. Considerable tnougnt was given towards
the organization of a firemens relief association.

The Meynard Firemens Relief Association was formed in 19<U. The constitut-
ion and by-laws were adopted by a vote of tne combined membership of tne two
companies &t a joint meeting held August 3,1v<u. The tirst oifficers elected were:

Chief George H.Gutteriage,president; William H.rriest,vice presiaent; John Crof't,

secretary; Jonn Maley,treasurer ana a boara of airectors consisting oi; Joseph Farreil,

Fred Kelly and Alvert Smith. It became & trzaition to eiect the cnief engineer
as president each year. Tnis tradition was broken in 1946 wunen Warren n.Semis,

captein of' the ladder company was electea presiasnt.

The funds of tne two compenies were transierred over to tne reliel &ssociation

shortly after it was organized and ail outside fund raising activities oi eitner

of thne individusl companies were then discontinued. Monies receivea irom 1ines
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vwere periodicelly doneted to the relief &association. Tne first fund raising
ectivity of the association was held the yeer following thelr organization,
when they entered into sn &grsement with the Peoples Tneetre,to get uthe proceeas,
over znd cbove expenses,of & movie show,to which tne firemen were To Liéke &n
advence sale of tickets. This annuel movie show was & fair source of revenue for
several years,in 19<6,$311.90 was reslizea,but tnat was tne peag year,irom that
time on the return to the associztion diminished steaaily.

By 1Y<3 the belence in the treasury was $397.50 anda continuing to sarink
steadily. Times were hard and during the next few years,money wes volea 10
assist tne fawilies of some of the wempers. This was done with considerabie
reluctance on the part of some of Tne members wno ielt tnatl tals was nol tae
original intent of tne association. By lY,4,there was &almost notoing ieitv in tne
relief fund and notning wes being done to replemisn it,tnis perioa of Tiwe wes
probably tne lowest point in tae moraie of the aepartment. sapril oI this year
saw a change in tne boerd of engineers ana & rejuvination of tne aspartment.

The men were now deeply concerned about the condition of toe reiiei
association. The risk of injury was incresasing,new hazards were Iacing tne Iire
service everywhere. The widespread increase in tne use of oil insteaa of coal,
us o domestic fuel creeted greater risks,with the usual leg in iegisiation to
control it's use,storage end transportation. Anotner area ol dcanger was tne
increase of traffic which created & greater risk to the callmen when responding
to &larms in their own private cars.

The thought of building up the reserve fund in tae relief assocliation
to & point where it would provide adequete protection Seewed nOpeless,so
considerstion wes given towards obteining & blanket insurance coverage. This
proved to be & comperatively costly item because oif the hign premium rate
on tne two permenent men. dowever it was tue unaniwous aecision of tne

callmen,who were certeinly in the majority,that the two permenent men
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should be given tne saime protection && tue cellheu.

To finence tne insurance cost,the reiileil &ssocialion ran & wilsti pariyy
in tne Perker Stireet Hell. The men conaucted & GOOTr 10 GUOT Ccanvas,sesling
tickets &t tnirty five cents each. This &lfeir yielaea & proiit ol <57.05
which was &bout sixty doliars more inan was needea for the insurance, tne
belence being placed in tne reserve ifund. Tnese parties were neld yeariy until
194<,wnen wertime restrictions-on travel cut tne interest. 5S¢ tne loliowing
year & turkey raffie was held,which was continued eacn yeur untili LY5U,when
the belence in the reserve fund stood at §1569.75,but tne roliowing yeer the
turkey raffle wes resumed.

By 1958,legislation had been passed which &liowed the town to pay tue
premiums on &ccident insurance for tne men,so the town n&e peid tne prewiums
from that time on.

In Mey of 1967,& water poic team was orgenized 10 teke part in tue
dnnual Mey Festival at Stow. This was the first participation of tae depart-
ment in this type of activity in more than thirty yeers. They heve since tuken
pert in this affeir each yeer,winning {irst prisge for three consecutive yeers
between 1965 and 1970,giving tnem permenent possession ol the trophy. ln 170y,
& ladies muster team was formed,composed mostly of wives ol wewbers oI lhe
depertment. botn teams joined the Mass&cnusetis Muster League and took part in
seven musters. The men's team scored fifth place for the season ovut tne laagies
scored third place. Un &sugust £,1970 & very successiul musiter wu&s neld &i
Crowe Perx. The last such event to be held in tne town was in 19Us.

In 1968,The Reverand Richard 4. Taylor,Rector of Seint George bpiscopadl
Church,wes named the department chaplé&in,tne Lirst cnapisin in the aepariment's

history.
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/ THhrsday,February 23,1939,was Tony Coiliins' regular azy ofi,and as was nis

l .
usuzil custom,he took the morning trein to Boston. He went to & Weshington Street

theatre. Nobody saw what happened or &t leest did not volunteer gny information
if they did,but Tony was found at the foot of & flight of stairs,unconcious with

& frectured skull. He died in the hospitel the foliowing dey. 4s he he haa no
esteblished home other than the fire station,and &s funerel noues were still
considered by meny of the older people as being cold and impersonal,nis boay was
teken for repose,to the home of Chiel George Priest,from which it was teken to
Seint Bridget's Church ior the funeral service,with burial in tae femily lot in
Huason

Harold friest was &ppointea to fill tne vacancy ieit by the deatn of Tony
and the pey of the two drivers was egualized at 335.50 per veek,Tony had been
getting $35.0v and Bill uinn nza been getting only $3<.0U.

In Novemper of 1939,Chief Priest informed the selectmen that ne courd no
longer carry on the work he was doing for anything like tae $150 PET yeur Salary
that he was getting. The femily business was heading for the inevitsble fate
that befell most swell independent markets. His father could no ionger afford to
pay help to replace the time thet Tom was devoting to the fire department. If they
chose to keep nim on the job,he requested a pay of $35.00 per week,wnich vwes $1.50
more than the two drivers were getting. The selectmen then oilered him & lump sum
of $400 if he would carry on the job &s he was doing until town meeting. At Tae
Merch 1940 town meeting,tne fire department budget was increasea sufiicisntly
To meke the job of chief engineer iull time at ¢35.00 per week.,

With the 1940 appointments,Walter Priest was returnea to the board,maing
it & four man board. In tnis same yesr,the contributory retirecment system was
zdopted by the town.

Late in this same year an underwriters survey of tne town's iire protection
vas maae by the rating Bureau. In tneir tests of the water system,of which

former chief,William Naylor was tne superintendent,many glaring aifficiencies
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Buildings

Prior to the orgenizeticn of & Iire deperiment,tie only firefinting eyuip-
ment owned by the town were & couple of ladaers,stored in & shed ovwned by tne mill,
located on the site of the present Post Uifice Builaing. In 1873,the town spent
$1,65 for & padlock and chein to secure these laaders egeinst unauthorized use.
VWhen the new hose wagon arrived Mey 30,1390,it wes placed in this shed.%nen the
lacder wegon wes delivered on sugust 30,1890,it wes put in tnis sned in piece of
the hose wagon vwhich was woved over to & smeller shed in the reer of the
Congregetionel Cnurch. This ves & temporary &arrengement wnile tne station on
Neson Street was peing built.

i tovn meeting neld on Jenuary 1,18%0 nad voted 1o orgenize end equlp &
fire deperiment. $6,0UU wes epproprieted for liend end & bullding. Tone committee
nemed to cerry out the project consisted of jherren Peters,David nenaerson,Juius
Loeve,ibel Heynes and M.Howell Geriield.

Tne first choice of & site considered by tuis committee,vas the present
location of & gas stetion &t the intersection of Main and Sudoury streets. Tids
land wes then owned by irtemus Mhiiney. It vas,ena still is,ez better location
for the purpose then either of the subsequent locations of the fire aepartment.
However;the committee could not reach & favorable &greement on price,so tney
purchesed & small parcel of land on the westerly side of Nason Street Irom Thomes
Brooks &t & totel cost,including legal feés,of $961.66. This is the present
loczticn of the Town Paint Company.

4 contréct was given to Barker & Mershall of Hudson for $5,485.19,tc erect
& two story frame building,without busement,51' X 35' with & 9! X 9' hose tover
attached to the center of tne rear outside wall. The hose tower vas &bout sixty
feet high,so that full lengths of hose could be hung without tolaing. Unlike
wost hose towers built before this time,this one wes not designed to nave & Dell,

es it was pub & matter of & few years when Iire alerm bells were generally
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snow on the ground,these brands sterted grass end brush fires in the mill yerd
thet ignited and exploded three of the wheel mills.

In sddition to the two horses that could not be saved,& thirc norse was SO
badly burned that it hea to be killed;several other horses n&a tneir hair singea.
Seven hogs in the bern cellar were lostjelong with & lerge quantity of ney,grein
hernesses end £ll other steble equipment. This fire was of suspicious origin.

July <<,1913- 11:30 4.M. 4 cell for essistence vas receivea from West iacton,
where & general conflegration was raging out of control;eventually destroying
fourteen buildings &nd adameging meny more.

As Chief Gutteridge did not want to sound the whistlie,he celied the mill
to heve the lights blinked throughout the mill,this was usea &s & signel that all
cellmen were wanted;they would get directions from the gate tenders &s to the
locetion of the elarm. This wes done,because &s loud &s the whistle was,&na it
could be heerd in Welthsm,with & favorable breeze,it could not be heerd in some
parts of the mill sbove the ncise of the mechinery. He also called the street
railwey,requesting the use of the car on the West Acton brench,which was due
back in Meynard shortly. This cer was to be run &s & speciel car to carry ine
men to West Acton. The chief sent Tony Collins out &lone with the two norse hose
vegon,celculeting thet the men would get to kest Acton before the hose wagon.

It did not work out that weyj;nobody was leaving West Acton in the midst of the
greatest catastrophe to befell the village,so the crew of tme trolly car were
in no hurry to leave either.

Collins trotted the horses elong &t & fair clip until he wes pest Soutn
hcton without meeting the car. 4s it weas &ll single track,Tony knew that taey
could not send another car out of Meynerd until this one had returnea. S0 ne
slowed the horses down to & welk. Just before Richardson's Crossing,he heera
the car coming down the private right of way. He then knew that it would pe
more then helf en hour before the car could possibly get back Irom Maynard

with the men. It was &n extremely hot day,so when Tony reached & point
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June 31,1965,80x 51,-4:uu £.M. The ola Maynara mansion,locatlea &l TuE
corner of Derumouth and Elmwooa streets,& toted loss. Tnis ireawe buliaing,ol
three stories,including the mensard roof,was built by The Maynara lawiliy,iounaers
of the woolen industry that once dominatea the economy Ol une town. wunen tne
Americen woolen Company &cguirea the property of tne Assabel Manulacturing Lompany,
this mension &nd & similer one,located &t the lower ena oi Lartwmoutn Street,were
included in the transaction. They were botn convertea to multiple lawily dweiiings.
Lround 194U this one that burned had peen convertea 10 & Foilsh Lnurcn woicn was
used but & short time. At tne time oi utne iire it was &gain being converted back
to an apertment house. The plaster naa been &il torn out ol The interior,sc inatl
wnen the fire was discovered,ilemes were roaring irom tne ceiLl&r 1O lne rool.

Tne Stow &na kcton departiwents WOTrked witn leynera &1 lne 1ire waiie Loncord
covered tne mMaynard stetion. pecause Ol lne nign elevation and loe swall aead ena
main,weter pressure was poor,umaKing lines tnal were comnnectea airecily 0 ayarants
without & pump,&lmost useless. The iire wes of suspicious origiu. & total of
360U feet of two and one hali inch hose was used.

September 9,1965,80x 14,-6:36 P.M. puildings of Seaar &« hichmona,usea for
storage &nd sales oif hay,grain &na building materials,e total Lloss. Tnis puliding
was actumlly two buildings that haa been connected logetner,being the l&st of &
number of builcings that were originally built by warren k.Haynes,over & perioa
of yeers when he conductea an extensive business,deeling in nay,grein,lumber
end ferm impiements. During the years most of tne buildings nad Deen 1OIT AOWI.
the remeining buildings were between Nason Sireel &ana uine Fai¢roaa TracLs,norua
of Summer Street. The part oif the builaing directly in tne resr oi utne present

frame business and eapertment block,&t tne corner of Sumwer &na Neson sSireeis,



